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Enterprise Culture
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OUR MISSION:

Developing environmental
friendly energy to secure
sustainable development
and make contributions to
our future.
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OUR VISION:

Turning the Group into an
internationally influential
enterprise which produces

environmental friendly
and clean energy.
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OUR OBJECTIVES:

Create values for our customers;

Create profits for our shareholders;
Create future for our employees;
Create prosperity for our society.
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OUR CULTURE:

e Integrity
e Rewards
e Excellency
e Harmony
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China Oil And Gas Group Limited (the “Company”) (stock code: 603) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in investment
in natural gas and energy related business. Operations of the Group include
piped city gas business, pipeline design and construction; transportation,
distribution and sale of compressed natural gas (“CNG”) and liquefied
natural gas (“LNG"); and development, production and sale of crude oil and
gas and other upstream energy resources.

As a piped city natural gas service provider, the Group supplies city natural
gas through long-distance transmission pipelines. With 67 concession
rights, the Group has built up city pipeline networks which offer stable and
sufficient natural gas resources to local household, industrial, commercial
and other users. As a non-pipeline natural gas provider, the Group has
established 2 LNG plants in Qinghai Province, the PRC. Meanwhile, the
Group has also built certain CNG primary stations to ensure a smooth supply
of natural gas all year round. These facilities support supplies of natural gas
to cities not yet covered by pipeline networks and are treated as emergency
backup gas sources for the Group.

As a major national operator of natural gas stations for automobile natural
gas filling, the Group has built 36 CNG stations, 7 LNG stations and 3 L/
CNG stations across the country. All kinds of automobiles, city buses and
long-distance buses can be converted into natural gas operation system
by paying an affordable fee. Some of the provinces will provide subsidy to
automobile owners who are willing to convert their automobile into natural
gas operating system. With support from the PRC government, the Group
offers inexpensive, clean and environmental friendly natural gas to the
transportation sector.

As an operator of natural gas branch line business, the Group has already
completed 1,082 km branch lines in 10 provinces including Qinghai, Hunan,
Jiangsu, Jiangxi, Ningxia, Shandong, Guizhou, Anhui and Hubei Province.
Apart from bringing in stable natural gas transmission revenue, the branch
line constructions will also facilitate the development of projects along the
down-stream.

The Group has well established a large-scale developed natural gas transport
and logistics operation in the PRC, including the set up of LNG and CNG fleets
which have reinforced the mobility and coverage of our natural gas supplies.

As an upstream energy resources producer, the Group engages in the
development, production and sale of crude oil and gas and other resources
in Alberta of Canada. The exploration and production business of the Group
has proven reserves of approximately 20.5 million barrels of oil equivalent
and proven plus probable reserves of approximately 30.1 million barrels of oil
equivalent. Its average daily production was 5,386 barrels of oil equivalent in
2015. Our exploration and production business possesses energy business in
production, a very experienced management team with proven track record,
stable production assets portfolio and strong profitability with considerable
potential for growth.
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Natural Gas Distribution Business in China

B R AR D HET

Main trunk pipelines TE®# &4 Company operating assets/data A 7 & E&E R HiE

= \Nest-to-East line 1 = Branch p\peling
FASRURE 4% REBEXREE
— West—to—AEas’t‘\me 2 ° City gas project with concession right
FISRR B — 4R REHRARIER
\{&\r/%t%(gzisz%\(n%;(wder construction) A LNG processing plant
R NAVBRIERARILIER

== Se-Ning-Lan line
7 %8 il 45 || CNG/LNG station
RAIRARINRIL
= Shaan-Jing line 4
PR AR | Province with natural gas sales volume
=== Shaan-Jing line 3 >\500mn r‘mlr‘ngAS SN, 4
B = 48 ANE 2015 FHHRE 5.0 B RIAEED

== Cang-Zi Line ] Province with natural gas sales volume
BIEER between 100-500mn m? in 2015
A12015FF A E 1.0-5.018 ) NE

m=—Zhong-Wu Line
BEAR

=== Myanmar-China Line
AR

Heilongjiang & #ET

Horgas
(gas from Central Asia),
B

(T OFAT)

Liaoning # &

Lun-nan Xinjiang ¥758
oil & gas
field
BRI

Tibet 7E

Sichuan ~ Chuanyu
puef]

i
Guangxi
Gas from SuangE R A Chaozhou
Burma M

A0

pistE
Note: For illustrative purpose only, actual scale and location might differ slightly @
i kB AREE - IR E R AR ERIS A HA

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015



5,000

4,000

3,000

2,000

1,000

Oil and Gas Production Business in Canada
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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2015, the operating activities of the Group were facing a complex and
volatile international and domestic market environment. The slowdown in
economic growth and the deceleration of industrial activities as a result of
de-capacity had caused a decline in demand of industrial gas. Meanwhile,
the continuous fall in international oil price and the delay in adjustment
of the natural gas price in China had weakened the competitiveness of
the selling price of natural gas. The weak demand in natural gas caused a
downturn in growth rate, which is rare in the development of China natural
gas industry. In order to support the industry, the National Development and
Reform Commission of PRC (“NDRC") announced a tariff cut of RMB700 per
thousand cubic meter on the non-residential city-gate natural gas price on 18
November 2015. Until now, the Group has successfully completed the price
adjustment on the major natural gas distribution area in PRC. Despite of the
lacking drive of natural gas demand, the Group achieved a 6% increase in
the total natural gas sales volume in 2015.

As impacted by the significant decline in international oil price, the provision
of impairment on relevant oil and gas asset has dragged down the overall
result performance of the Group. In 2015, the Group suffered a loss of
HK$507 million from a one-off or non-operating item, which is a non-cash
item and would not affect cash flow of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

(continued) (4&)

CITY PIPELINE NATURAL GAS BUSINESS WhEBRXARER

Sales and distributions of natural gas income SHERBAERARBA
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's total gas sales volume
reached 2,650 million cubic meters (2014: 2,506 million cubic meters),
representing an increase of 6% as compared with 2014; pipeline gas
transmission volume reached 427 million cubic meters (2014: 569 million
cubic meters); and the transportation volume was 51 million cubic meters
(2014: 132 million cubic meters).
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Gas sales volume to residential users was 684 million cubic meters (2014:
598 million cubic meters); to industrial and commercial users was 1,520
million cubic meters (2014: 1,487 million cubic meters); and to gas stations
was 447 million cubic meters (2014: 422 million cubic meters), representing
an increase of 14%, 2% and 6% respectively.

Natural Gas Sales Volume (million m3)
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Gas pipeline construction and connection income

In 2015, the Group connected 158,923 new residential users and 1,855 new
industrial & commercial users. The accumulated connections of residential
users were around 995,729, and for industrial & commercial users, the
accumulated connections were 8,398, representing an increase of 19% and
28% respectively as compared to the year before. It is expected that the
number of new users will maintain stable growth in the future. The industrial
& commercial users have higher demand for natural gas as compared with
residential users. As such, in addition to fulfilling the demand of residential
customers for natural gas, the Group also speeded up gas connections for
industrial & commercial users. With the increased number of users, the
Group will continue to trigger more channels for the sales of natural gas
and provide services to more natural gas end-users, which will lay a solid
foundation for the sales of natural gas by the Group in the future.

Chairman’s Statement
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New Projects Expansion

In 2015, notwithstanding the grim situation resulting from the insufficient
natural gas end-user demand, the Group remained confident and increased
the intensity of market development. While promoted the organic growth
of the existing projects, the Group focused on coastal and riparian market,
conducted an in-depth research and development on the surrounding area
of the main natural gas pipeline. During the year, the Group has successfully
obtained city gas concession rights in Xinghua Economic Development
Zone, Taizhou Jiangsu province, Qingyuan (Yingde) Economic Cooperation
Zone, Shunde Guangdong province, Qichun County, Hubei province,
and Xiangdong District, Pingxiang City, Jiangxi province, and successfully
extended the concession rights in Lishui, Nanjing city from the original Lishui
Economic Development Management Zone to the whole Lishui District.
The area under this concession rights has been enlarged from 28 square
kilometres to 1,067 square kilometres. In June 2015, the Group entered
into a Coalbed Gas Supply Agreement with China Petroleum & Chemical
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

(continued) (#&)

Corporation East China branch. The Group has established a total of 108
natural gas project companies in 15 provinces and autonomous regions
in China with 67 concession rights as at 31 December 2015. In 2015, the
Group extended 49 km of new high pressure pipelines, forming a high
pressure pipeline network of 1,082 km, which prompted the development
of downstream projects effectively. The city and courtyard pipeline network
extended by 708 km in 2015, reaching an aggregated length of 6,541
km. The Group will make persistent efforts to obtain more projects on
industrialised cities, economic development and industrial zones. Such
projects will be one of the great forces promoting the development of
natural gas distribution business of the Group.

EXPLOITATION AND PRODUCTION OF CRUDE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS

In 2015 the Group continued the business of exploitation and production
of light oil and natural gas in Canada. According to the reserve report
prepared by GLJ Petroleum Consultants for the year ended 31 December
2015, the Group has proven reserves of 20.5 million barrels of oil equivalent
(2014: 18.2 million barrels of oil equivalent), and the proven plus probable
reserves of 30.1 million barrels of oil equivalent (2014: 25.2 million barrels
of oil equivalent), representing an increase of 13% and 19%, respectively. In
2015, the average daily production was 5,386 barrels of oil equivalent (62%
is liquified products, 38% is natural gas), representing an increase of 26%
compared with the year before (2014: 4,266 barrels of oil equivalent). The
average operating netback value was CAD21.16 per barrel of oil equivalent
in 2015 (2014: CAD43.97).

The oil prices plunged by nearly 70% from the peak with great fluctuation
over the year. The Group acted with cautious and monitored closely to the
market condition in order to grasp the timing of any potential rebounce and
also reacted reasonably by adjusting the proportion of liquefied products.
The Group executed conservative development plan and made strict control
on cost, so as to enhance production efficiency and effectively alleviate
the impact effect of declined oil price. During the year, the average cost
of oil exploitation was successfully controlled within CAD10 per barrel of
oil equivalent, which was substantially lower than other producers in the
same play. Meanwhile, the Group took advantage of low oil price to obtain
high quality reserves and working interests by ways of acquisitions and joint
operations. The proven plus probable reserves exceeded 30 million barrels
of oil equivalent for the first time and the average daily production capacity
exceeded 5,000 barrels of oil equivalent. The scale of oil and gas assets
and the production capacity has reached a new milestone, setting a solid
foundation for the future development on oil and gas production business of
the Group.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

(continued) (#)

Average Daily Production (boe/d)
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BUSINESS PROSPECT

The economy of China stayed at the “new normal” status in 2015. The
annual GDP maintained above 7 with difficulty due to the adjustment of
industrial structure, excess productivity of traditional manufacturing industry
and the declining rate of operation in some of the factories. A negative
growth rate on main energy consumption was seen for the first time in the
past thirty years. However, the portion of natural gas consumption over the
main energy consumption increased to 5.9% because of the positive effect
of adjustment of energy industry structure, which is still not close to the
objective of above 10% in 2020 planned by NDRC (National Development
and Reform commission). Hence, there will be a prosperous prospect
for the natural gas industry in China. Looking forward, the economy of
China continues to develop at a more environmental and more sustainable
development route, and natural gas continues to act as the main force to the
adjustment of energy structure.

The increase rate of natural gas demand in China slowed down in 2015
because of the macro factors such as the continuous decline of international
crude oil price, the delay in the price adjustment of natural gas supply
and the warm global weather. The statistics showed that the natural gas
consumption of China in 2015 increased by only 4.8% to 184.5 billion cubic
meters with an year-on-year increase of only 8.4 billion cubic meters which
was the lowest in the past ten years. The annual production of natural gas in
China was about 131.8 billion cubic meters, and import volume was about
62.4 billion cubic meters, showing a glut of annual total natural gas volume.

The Chinese government has faced a big pressure on the adjustment of
energy structure and environment protection due to the slow increase of
natural gas demand. The government decreased the non-residence city
gate price by RMBO0.7 per cubic meter in November 2015, which improved
the marketisation of natural gas price. In early 2016, the government made
the decision that the domestic refined oil price will not be reduced when
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

(continued) (#&)

the international crude oil price is below USD40. These policies ensure the
advantage of natural gas price, easing the burden of downstream industry
and improve the consumption demand in the natural gas market. It is shown
that the natural gas consumption in China recorded a double-digit growth
in January 2016. The economy of China is still facing the pressure of de-
capacity in 2016, but the Group expects that the Chinese government
will keep working on the adjustment of energy industrial structure and
environment protection and the market will continue to adapt to the
business encouragement policies. Therefore, the Group has the confidence in
our natural gas distribution business in China.

In 2015, the Group proceeded with caution on the development plan of
crude oil and natural gas business in Canada. Taking advantage of low
international crude oil price, the Group is minimising positively screening to
acquire the potential working interests of high-quality oil and gas properties.
Looking forward in 2016, time is needed for the balance on demand and
supply of international crude oil. The excess supply have determined the
international oil price would linger at a low level. The Group will continue a
strict control on the investment scale, decreasing the inefficient production,
optimising the production structure and operation costs, in order to increase
the income and reduce the expenditures with efficiency.

Looking forward in 2016, the macro economy will still at the phase of
intense adjustment, and the market will continue to adapt to the business
encouragement policies. Confronting the challenges and opportunities,
the Group, with a cautious and optimistic attitude, will positively adapt to
the changes of the market, improve the operation and the management,
enhance the market development and sales, increase the income and reduce
the expenditures, optimise the asset structure and business distribution and
create the sustainable return to the clients, the society and our shareholders.

On behalf of the Board
China Oil And Gas Group Limited
Xu Tie-liang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following discussions should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group and its notes and other
sections in the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2015.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded a revenue of
HK$7,374 million (2014: HK$7,698 million), representing a decrease of 4%.
Such decrease is principally attributable to the enlarged exchange differences
arising on translation from the operating currencies to presentation currency.
Gross profit amounted to HK$1,036 million, representing a decrease of 10%
over the same period last year.

The Group's principal activities are divided into three segments.

(1) Sales and distribution of natural gas and other related products
(“Sales and distribution of natural gas”)

Sales and distribution of natural gas continued to be the Group’s major
source of revenue and constituted 82% of the total revenue (2014:
82%). Revenue and cost of sales related to Sales and distribution of
natural gas amounted to HK$6,052 million (2014: HK$6,296 million)
and HK$5,486 million (2014: HK$5,698 million) respectively. Segment
results was HK$323 million (2014: HK$379 million). Gross profit margin
and segment profit ratio were 9% (2014: 9%) and 5% (2014: 6%)
respectively, remain stable as compared with last year.

(2) Gas pipeline construction and connection (“Connection”)

Revenue and cost of sales related to Connection amounted to HK$892
million (2014: HK$1,077 million) and HK$450 million (2014: HK$595
million) respectively. Considering the Group placed great emphasis
on the effectiveness of cost control and centralised procurement,
Connection’s gross profit margin and segment profit ratio both
increased from 45% to current year's 50%.
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(3) Exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas
(“Exploitation and production”)

Revenue and cost of sales related to Exploitation and production
amounted to HK$430 million (2014: HK$325 million) and HK$402
million (2014: HK$252 million) respectively. Exploitation and production
segment contributed six months of results to the Group in 2014 but
a full year in 2015. The Group realised crude oil price of CAD54.01
per barrel of oil equivalent in 2015 compared to CAD79.77 per barrel
of oil equivalent in 2014 with a decrease of 32%); while West Texas
Intermediate ("WTI") averaging US$48.76 per barrel of oil equivalent
compared with US$82.83 per barrel of oil equivalent in 2014 with a
decrease of 41%. The reduction in WTI in 2015 was partially offset by
a decrease in the differential for the Group’s crude oil and weakness
in the Canadian dollar in 2015. As a result of lower prices for crude
oil, NGLs and natural gas and corresponding lower price forecasts, the
Group recorded a non-cash impairment of HK$507 million in 2015.

The Group’s selling and distribution costs increased 11% from HK$62 million
to current year's HK$69 million and administrative expenses decreased 4%
from HK$333 million to HK$319 million. The Group placed great emphasis
on the effectiveness and appropriateness of sales strategies and successfully
controlled the selling and distribution costs at less than 1% of total revenue
in both years and administrative expenses at 4% in both years.

Finance costs net of capitalisation has been increased from last year's
HK$136 million to current year's HK$231 million, which was mainly
constituted by coupon interest on our senior notes issued on 11 November
2014, where coupon interest expenses accounted for less than two months
in 2014 but accounted for a full year in 2015. The Group's weighted average
cost of all indebtedness (including bank borrowings, other borrowings and
senior notes) as at 31 December 2015 was 5.7% (2014: 5.2%).

Loss attributable to the owners of the Company was HK$184 million,
compared to the profit attributable to owners of the Company of HK$309
million in 2014. The dramatic decrease was mainly due to the one-off non-
cash impairment of HK$507 million resulted of lower prices for crude oil and
a lower price forecast.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The table below sets out the comparative figures without the one-off and
non-cash items of the Group for the years 2015 and 2014:

BEEFNWR DM
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EB—RUMFERGUIRAR  EE_T—1F
R ZE-NEZ HRBUEFIRIATR -

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—OF
HK$000 HK$'000
TET FHBT
(Loss)/profit attributable NEER A
to owners of the Company fEfh2mE (F18), Wt (183,831) 308,650 -160%
Add: -
Impairment losses on oil and M - BEREEET
gas properties under HREEREEE
property, plant and equipment 507,441 -
Other losses/(gain): HeiiE, () -
— Losses/(gains) from disposal of —HEAHLENEEE
available-for-sale financial assets ZEB () 1,434 (17,146)
— (Gains)/losses on disposal —HERATFELEZAR
of financial assets at fair ZEBEEY
value through profit or loss (M), Ea (10) 8,021
— Fair value losses on financial assets —RATELBERARZ
at fair value through profit or loss M EEZ R 1,876 237
— Gain on a bargain purchase —ZEBERERE (5,551) (37,497)
— Others —Hftp (577) (4,045)
Share granted from share award RME AR R 528
scheme on market price basis FTEIR AR5 18,827 2,782
Profit for the year after one-off Wk —RMIERSIER &
and non-cash adjustments 2 F R A 339,609 261,002 30%
As shown in the table above, the loss for the current year was driven by MERR  BHEFKMNEREEISRAENE

the sharp drop in oil prices and worldwide adverse financial environment.
Without these extraordinary reasons, the Group’s core profit increased by

30%.

BRAFEELERAHEBEAREER - ETZE
PRELEFLEERE  KELEEMNBELA

30% °

FHRREBER AR 2015FF3H

17



18

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

(continued) (#&)

Meanwhile, the adjusted EBITDA remained stable for the year.

RIE - ABIRAE - BR - TEREEAA
Fb MR AR P RREYKF o

Adjusted EBITDA 2015 2014
RRAENMBRAL BB - IERBHAET —E-HF —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Earnings before tax HADE M 50,190 854,163 -94%
Depreciation e 455,670 363,732 25%
Amortisation iy 8,827 7,093 24%
Finance cost IHEER 230,782 135,860 70%
Provision for impairment of W - BE R
oil and gas properties under FABEIE TRR
property, plant and equipment AEREEE 507,441 - 100%
Interest income FBRUA (111,562) (125,371) -11%
1,141,348 1,235,477 -8%

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

It is the Group's policy to adopt conservative financial strategies by using
the cash flow generated from operations as the principal source of fund
to finance its capital expenditures. As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s
total indebtedness (including bank borrowings, other borrowings and senior
notes) amounted to HK$5,965 million (2014: HK$5,787 million). Total
availability credit facility amounted to HK$3,708 million as of 31 December
2015 (2014: HK$2,906 million) with an utilisation rate of 16% (2014: 5%).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had cash and cash equivalents and
time deposits with maturity over three months of approximately HK$2,570
million (2014: HK$3,665 million). Total assets of HK$14,088 million (2014:
HK$15,467 million), and among which current assets were HK$4,340 million
(2014: HK$5,421 million). Total liabilities of the Group were HK$8,887
million (2014: HK$9,375 million), and among which current liabilities were
HK$3,565 million (2014: HK$3,856 million). The Group’s debt-to-asset ratio,
measured on the basis of total indebtedness divided by total assets was 42%
(2014: 37%). The current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) of
the Group was 1.22 times (2014: 1.41 times).

The Group’s financial and liquidity remain stable, and well prepared for the
Group's development in 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At the end of 2015, the Group employed a total of 3,713 (2014: 3,828) full-
time employees, where mostly were stationed in the PRC. Total staff cost for
the year amounted to HK$343 million (2014: HK$327 million). The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, working experience
and the prevailing market wage level. The total remuneration of the
employees consisted of basic salary, cash bonus and share-based incentives.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

No assets of the Group have been pledged as at 31 December 2015.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

The Group has no material contingent liability as at 31 December 2015.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND TREASURY POLICY

The financial risk management of the Group is the responsibility of the
Group's treasury function at the head office in Hong Kong. One of the
major objectives of the Group’s treasury policies is to manage its exposure
to fluctuation in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. It is the
Group's policy not to engage in speculative activities.

The Group conducts its business primarily in Renminbi. The Group’s certain
bank deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
Stated dollars, and the Group’s offshore bank loans and senior notes are
denominated in Renminbi, United Stated dollars and Canadian dollars.

Other than those disclosed, the Group does not have any material exposures
to foreign exchange fluctuations. The Group does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the Group monitors its foreign currency
exposure closely and may, depending on the circumstances and trend of
foreign currencies, consider adopting a significant foreign currency hedging
policy in the future.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has no litigation.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

In January 2015, the Company repurchased a total of 3,500,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company at prices ranging from HK$1.01
to HK$1.02 per share in the open market for an aggregate consideration of
HK$3,538,200. The above ordinary shares were subsequently cancelled.

During the year, 529,607,621 shares had been issued under the bonus issue
by way of one bonus share for every ten shares to those shareholders whose
names appeared on the register of members of the Company on 2 June
2015 as the final dividend for 2014.

As at 31 December 2015, the issued share capital of the Company was
HK$58,256,838 divided into 5,825,683,834 Shares with a nominal value of
HK$0.01 each.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: final dividend by way of bonus issue of
one bonus share for every ten shares, the bonus issue credited as fully paid
by way of capitalisation of an amount of approximately HK$5,296,000 in the
share premium account of the Company).
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Biographical Details of Directors

CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Xu Tie-liang, aged 52, was appointed as an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board of the Company on 30 August 2006. He was also
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 4 November
2009. Mr. Xu is the chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee of
the Company (the “CG Committee”) and a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Xu graduated from Xi‘an Shiyou University (7% f)f
KE) and University of International Business and Economics ($14MEEE 5
K, he is a certified public accountant and lawyer. Mr. Xu has 27 years’
experience in management, investments, legal and finance.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhu Yuan, aged 63, was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 10 September 2010. He was appointed as the senior vice
president of the Company on 4 November 2009. Mr. Zhu is a member of
the CG Committee. He graduated from China University of Mining And
Technology and is a certified senior accountant. He is engaged in oil and gas
industries for over 40 years, and has deep research and extensive experience
in investment and operation of the usage of natural gas, city gas and
liquefied natural gas projects.

Ms. Guan Yijun, aged 51, was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 10 September 2010. She was appointed as the vice president
of the Company on 1 September 2006. Ms. Guan is a member of the CG
Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She
graduated from Changchun Normal University and has extensive business
operation management experiences over 20 years.
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Mr. Cheung Shing, aged 63, was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 13 January 2006. Mr. Cheung is a member of each of the CG
Committee, the Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”). He worked in China Petroleum Qilu Petrochemical Refinery (1
Bl Am &AL BomE), China Petroleum Shengli Oilfield (AR B4 5 B F1lh
M), China Petroleum Zhongyuan Oilfield (fF B 3f A EMA) and has ever
been a management economist of China National Petroleum Corporation
(FFBIARMAARERAQF) ("CNPC”) during the period between 1969 and
1993. He was the chairman of each of Wah Chung (HK) Limited GEFR (&
#) BMAT]), Henan Shenghua Petrochemical Co., Ltd. (il FEI& B
{ETHBRZAR]) and Liaoning Xinmin Petroleum Company Limited during the
period between 1993 and 2004. Mr. Cheung was the deputy chairman and
an executive director of Yanchang Petroleum International Limited (stock
code: 346), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, from January 2007
to September 2010 and from February 2005 to October 2010 respectively.
He was the chairman and an executive director of Birmingham International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2309), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, from February 2014 to March 2015 and May 2013 to March 2015
respectively. He is also currently a visiting lecturer of Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics, the vice president of Hong Kong General Association
of International Investment (B/EBIFRIE ) and the vice president of
China Petroleum Business Council (PG EHEEES).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Yunlong, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 18 April 2008. He is the chairman of each of
the Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) and the
Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Nomination Committee.
Mr. Li graduated from the Accounting School of Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law (PRI EBUE R E & 5522 0T) with a Bachelor Degree in
Economics. Mr. Li is a registered certified public accountant in the PRC and
possesses the qualification of PRC senior auditor. Mr. Li had been working
at the National Audit Office of the PRC for over 16 years in various audit
departments, and he is currently a partner of Hua Wen CPA Ltd (ZEEE&!
BfSE 75 F) in the PRC. He is the financial consultant of various companies in
the PRC, and an independent director of Sichuan Tuopai Shede Wine Co.,
Ltd. (P9)1VE 1S B 2R D B MR A R]) which is listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. He is being a national financial expert of The Ministry of Science
and Technology of the PRC. He has extensive experience in legal, accounting,
auditing and finance aspects.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Shi Xun-zhi, aged 81, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 30 August 2006. He is a member of the
Audit Committee. He is a deputy minister and a professor senior engineer.
He has been awarded the Youth and Mature Scientist with outstanding
contributions by the State Council. He graduated from Petroleum Institute of
Beijing (1t 5 A MERT) (renamed as China University of Petroleum, Beijing)
(FFEIAMAE(dE5)) in 1956 in the profession of petroleum geology. He
worked as geology engineer, associate director of the technology division,
director of human resources division, supervisor in the Ministry of Petroleum
Industry, CNPC president's special assistant and also a member of the
Ninth Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He had been the
chairman of CNPC Sino-Russian Oil & Gas Corporation Committee and
the chairman of China National Oil & Gas Exploration and Development
Corporation (FEIAH#ENEFZEAF]) and the chairman of CNPA Alberta
Petroleum Center (FFEINE A A AAF L), and the president of
Northeast Asian Gas And Pipeline Forum and the president of Asia Gas
& Pipeline Cooperation Research Center of China, responsible for the oil
and gas works between China and Russia, and worked on the overseas
petroleum exploration and development as well as international cooperation
work.

Mr. Wang Guangtian, aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 4 November 2009. He is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee, and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He holds a master’s degree
in world economics from the Hebei University and has over 31 years of
experience in financial and administrative management. He is currently the
managing director of Guofu Group and a director and the general manager
of Guofu (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited. He was an independent non-
executive director of ENN Energy Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, from December 2000 to May 2015.
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The Board is pleased to submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group
is principally engaged in investments in natural gas and energy related
businesses.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the state of
affairs of the Group as at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 54 to 187.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Review of the Company’s Business

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 and a discussion on the Group's future business development, and also
the Group’s performance during the year ended 31 December 2015 using
the key financial performance indicators are provided in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 15 to 20. No important event affecting
the Group has occurred since the end of the year under review.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Facing the Company

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, and business prospects
may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties directly or indirectly
pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The followings are the key risks
and uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not known to the
Group or which may not be material now but could turn out to be material
in the future.

Natural Gas Price Control Risk

The Group is principally engaged in distribution of natural gas in the PRC,
the city-gate price of natural gas is determined with reference to the
In China, wellhead prices for
residential and fertilizer users are fixed, while wellhead prices for industrial

wellhead price and transmission charges.

and commercial users may vary from the benchmark price set by the PRC
National Development and Reform Commission. Piped gas end-user tariffs
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are determined by local pricing bureaus. There may be risk that the Group
is unable to obtain approval for passing through any increase in natural gas
price which would deteriorate the Group's profit

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s principal business is located in the PRC and its major
transactions are conducted in Renminbi. Most of its assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi and Canadian dollars.

The Renminbi is not freely convertible. There is a risk that the Chinese
government may take actions affecting exchange rates which may have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s net assets, earnings and any dividends
it declares if such dividend is to be exchanged or converted into foreign
exchange. The Group has not entered into any hedging transactions to
manage the potential fluctuation in foreign currencies. The Group does not
consider that it has any significant exposure to the risk of fluctuation in the
exchange rate between HK$ and RMB.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that the Group will be unable to meet its
obligations when they fall due because of an inability to obtain adequate
funding or liquidate assets. In managing liquidity risk, the Group monitors
cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash and cash equivalents to
ensure the ability to finance the Group’s operations and reduce the effects of
fluctuation in cash flows.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or from external events. Responsibility for
managing operational risks basically rests with every function at divisional
and departmental levels.

Key functions in the Group are guided by their standard operating
procedures, limits of authority and reporting framework. The management
will identify and assess key operational exposures regularly so that
appropriate risk response can be taken.

Environmental Policy and Performance

With increasing concerns of environmental issues, both in governmental
and civilian sectors become hypersensitive, despite certain expensive
environment-friendly measures have been planned and will be implemented,
some more strict requirements could be put into practice.
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Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and therefore the Company is
subject to The Bermuda Act. In addition, the Company is registered as a non-
Hong Kong Company under Part 16 of the Company (Chapter 622, Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”) and therefore is subject to the
relevant provisions under the Companies Ordinance.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange and therefore the Company
is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules including the disclosure
requirements and corporate governance provisions therein. Under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (the
"SFO"), the Company is required to maintain a register of interests in
shares and short positions and a register of directors’ and chief executives’
interests and short positions and is obliged to disclose price sensitive or inside
information.

During the year under review, as far as the Board and management are
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on
the businesses and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable assets. Thus the
Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate
the employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with business partners and bank enterprises to achieve its long-
term goals. Accordingly, the management have kept good communication,
promptly exchanged ideas and shared business update with them when
appropriate. During the year under review, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its business partners or bank
enterprises.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 188. This
summary does not form part of the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by operating segments for
the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donations during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the Company’s share capital during the year are set
out in note 32(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 529,607,621 ordinary shares
of the Company had been issued and credited as fully paid at par value by
way of capitalisation of an amount of HK$5,296,000 in the share premium
account of the Company under the bonus issue by way of one bonus share
for every ten shares to those shareholders whose names appeared on the
register of members of the Company on 2 June 2015 as the final dividend
for 2014.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Group has not issued any debenture during the year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes and the restricted share award scheme
of the Group in this Report of the Directors and as set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered
into by the Group during the year or subsisting at the end of the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Share Option
Scheme”) on 31 January 2002 and terminated the same at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 23 November 2011 (“SGM"),
details of the Old Share Option Scheme are set out in note 32(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 23 November 2011 at the SGM, details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in note 32(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 4 November 2011, the Board adopted a restricted share award scheme
(the “Restricted Share Award Scheme”) as an incentive to recognise the
contributions by employees and to give incentives in order to retain them for
their continuing operation and development and to attract suitable personnel
for further development of the Group, details of the Restricted Share Award
Scheme are set out in note 32(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-Laws”) or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company repurchased
3,500,000 shares of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company at prices
ranging from HK$1.01 to HK$1.02 per share on the Stock Exchange. Details
of the repurchases are as follows:
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Month/Year repurchased Purchase price per share (excluding
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&S RIE (F5HEX)
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
January 2015 —E—RF—A 3,500,000 1.02 1.01 3,538,200.00
3,500,000 3,538,200.00

During the year, the Company, through the trustee of the Restricted Share
Award Scheme, purchased from the market 178,580,000 shares for the
purpose of the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the amount standing to the credit of the
Company’s share premium account in the amount of HK$24,578,000 may
also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares, and the Company’s
contributed surplus account in the amount of HK$1,520,328,000 may be
distributed under certain circumstances.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers and customers are as follows:

TEEFRHAES

SETXEHEBRIREPRAZRENEEEERD
DI

2015 2014
—E-hfF —ET—OF
% %
Purchases 2
— the largest supplier —BAHER 31.9 328
— five largest suppliers combined —hAARHEFEF 81.3 70.9
Turnover S
— the largest customer —mARF 3.0 3.1
— five largest customers combined — AR ER 7.6 9.1

None of the Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”)) or any shareholders
(who, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had any beneficial interests in the Group's five
largest customers or five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive Directors

XU Tie-liang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
ZHU Yuan

GUAN Yijun

CHEUNG Shing

Independent Non-Executive Directors
LI Yunlong

SHI Xun-zhi

WANG Guangtian

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Cheung Shing, Mr.

Zhu Yuan and Mr. Li Yunlong shall retire from office as Directors by rotation
at the 2016 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES”
and “RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME" above and in notes 32(b) and
(c) to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Xu Tie-liang entered into a service contract with the Company on 10
April 2014 for a term of three years commencing from 10 April 2014. The
appointment of Mr. Xu can be terminated by six months’ advance notice in
writing by either party.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2016
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Group
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"), are set out below:

Interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company

EERFETHRAERRKRND - 1HE
BRAD R &5 2

R_ZE—HF+-_A=+—H BFRAAZE
BITRABR AR S MR AE (E& R FEH
MEBE GO ([#EHREEGD ) EXVELD) 2 &
5 ABERD RESFHEEREES KEEED
EXVEHEBIRESHEMBINE A A R RZFT
SR (BIEREEFARPE KL AR
XM REREERE 2ERIOAE) IR
15 M IS 160 55 352 168 R0 850 sZ I Bl By it
ZERMERSIAR - SRE ETAR AR SR+
FTEz BT AERHITEFR H ZIZESTA
([1Z/ESFAI]) MBEME QR R AT 2 a0k
BT

RAFZRED - HEARGRES 2EE

Approximate
percentage of the

Company's issued

Number of share capital

Long position/ ordinary | Amount of
Name of Director Capacity short position shares held BRITRE debentures held
EspE a4 #E/ %R BEEERYE BHEI FEseR
Xu Tie-liang Interest in controlled corporations Long position 1,287,286,130 22.10 US$1,000,000
FHAR RIEHAE 2 s e 1,000,000%7T
Zhu Yuan Beneficial owner Long position 2,750,000 0.05 -
Kig EREAA He
Cheung Shing Beneficial owner Long position 1,518,000 0.03 -
RRSEE BEEEAA HE
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Notes:

353,120,130 ordinary shares and 934,166,000 ordinary shares of the Company
are held through Sino Advance Holdings Limited (“Sino Advance”) and Sino
Vantage Management Limited (“Sino Vantage”) respectively, both of which
were incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and are
wholly-owned by Sino Best International Group Limited (“Sino Best”) (a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability) which in
turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xu Tie-liang (“Mr. Xu"). Therefore,
Mr. Xu is deemed to be interested in the 1,287,286,130 shares pursuant to the
SFO.

An amount of US$1,000,000 of the US$350,000,000 5.25% senior notes of the
Company due 2018 are held through Sino Vantage.

These 2,750,000 shares include (1) 2,350,000 ordinary shares of the Company
held by Mr. Zhu Yuan; and (2) 400,000 restricted shares granted to Mr. Zhu
Yuan pursuant to the Restricted Share Award Scheme adopted by the Board on
4 November 2011.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31

December 2015, the register of substantial shareholders maintained

by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO showed that other
than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors and chief
executives, the following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant

interests in the issued share capital of the Company:

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

Report of the Directors

Hyat

ESHEE

(continued) (#)

%33 Sino Advance Holdings Limited ([Sino Advance |)
JSino Vantage Management Limited([ Sino Vantage )
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shareholder Capacity short position shares held 2EITRAK
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Sino Advance Beneficial owner Long position 353,120,130 6.06
EREEA e

Sino Vantage Beneficial owner Long position 934,166,000 16.04
BaEAA ey}

Sino Best Interest in controlled corporations Long position 1,287,286,130 22.10
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Note: Sino Advance and Sino Vantage are wholly-owned by Sino Best which in turn is

wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xu Tie-liang. Hence, Mr. Xu is deemed to
be interested in 353,120,130 ordinary shares and 934,166,000 ordinary shares
of the Company held through Sino Advance and Sino Vantage.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as having
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2015.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Director’s
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by
section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong)
when the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the Directors is
approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Exempt continuing connected transaction

The following continuing connected transaction constitutes an exempt
continuing connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

Appointment of Trustee for Restricted Share Award Scheme

The Trustee (Note) was appointed by the Company as trustee for the
administration of the Restricted Share Award Scheme adopted by the Board
on 4 November 2011. Service fee will be payable by the Company to the
Trustee according to the share award trust deed entered into between the
Company and the Trustee on 4 November 2011. The payment of the service
fees to the Trustee by the Company constitutes a continuing connected
transaction of the Company, but is exempt from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

HK$200,000 was paid/payable to the Trustee for the financial year ended 31
December 2015.

Note:

Best Thinker Limited (the “Trustee”), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Xu Tie-liang,
an executive Director, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
which is therefore a connected person of the Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules during the year and
up to the date of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 37 to 51 of the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in 1998 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee has been revised on 31 December 2015 to be in line with the
revised Corporate Governance Code effective for the financial year started
from 1 January 2016. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process, and to review the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Li Yunlong (as chairman), Mr. Shi Xun-zhi and Mr. Wang Guangtian. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2016 AGM to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

China Oil And Gas Group Limited
Xu Tie-liang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance standard
and procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure
in order to enhance the shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company was in compliance
with the relevant code provisions set out in the CG Code except for the
deviations as explained below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the responsibilities
between chairman and chief executive officer should be divided. Mr. Xu Tie-
liang is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The
Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership
within the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic
planning for the Group. The Board believes that the balance of power and
authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired and is adequately
ensured by current Board which comprises experienced and high caliber
individuals with sufficient number thereof being independent non-executive
Directors.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. The
independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term,
but they are subject to retirement from office by rotation at least once every
three years in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company (the “Bye-
Laws").
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Code provision D.1.4 of the CG Code requires that the Company should
have formal letters of appointment for directors setting out the key terms
and conditions of their appointment. The Company did not have formal
letters of appointment for Directors (except for Mr. Xu Tie-liang). However,
the Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the Bye-Laws. In addition, the Directors are required to refer to the guidelines
set out in “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies Registry
and “Guidelines for Directors” and “Guide for Independent Non-executive
Directors” (if applicable) published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors
in performing their duties and responsibilities as Directors. Besides, the
Directors are required to comply with the requirements under statute and
common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and
the Company’s business and governance policies.

Save as the aforesaid and in the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
met the relevant code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company,
and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well as reviewing
the operation and financial performance of the Group. The Board reserved
for its decision or consideration matters covering overall Group strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim results,
approval of major capital transactions and other significant operational
and financial matters. The management was delegated the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the daily management of the Group. In
addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this report.
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The Board currently consists of seven Directors including four executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Tie-liang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZHU Yuan

Ms. GUAN Yijun

Mr. CHEUNG Shing

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LI Yunlong

Mr. SHI Xun-zhi

Mr. WANG Guangtian

Save for Ms. Guan Yijun is the spouse of Mr. Xu Tie-liang, the Board
members have no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with each other. Such balanced Board composition is formed to
ensure strong independence exists across the Board. The composition of the
Board reflects the balanced skills and experience for effective leadership.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out on pages 21 to 23
under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors”.

The Board decides on corporate strategies, approves overall business plans
and evaluates the Group's financial performance and management. Specific
tasks that the Board delegates to the Group’s management include the
implementation of strategies approved by the Board, the monitoring of
operating budgets, the implementation of internal controls procedures, and
the ensuring of compliance with relevant statutory requirements and other
rules and regulations.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board
remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development and
provided a record of training they received for the financial year ended 31
December 2015 to the Company.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended 31
December 2015 is set out below:

Name of Director

HE-_ZT-—RAF+-_A=T—HILFEMEES
EXZARSEIREEIIMT

Attending or participating in seminars/

in-house briefing or reading materials relevant to

the Group’s business/director’s duties

HERSEEREEYE

BEEHR ESHEREEE I RS MR
Mr. XU Tie-liang FFERR A v
Mr. ZHU Yuan K OBEE v
Ms. GUAN Yijun BHELL v
Mr. CHEUNG Shing K AL v
Mr. LI Yunlong FEERE v
Mr. SHI Xun-zhi SIS E v
Mr. WANG Guangtian TERLE v

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company does not have a separate chairman and chief executive officer,
Mr. Xu Tie-liang currently performs these two roles. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same
person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group
and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the
Group. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority for the
present arrangement will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by
current Board which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with
sufficient number thereof being independent non-executive Directors.

Non-executive Directors

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of high caliber,
with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of accounting,
finance and petroleum. With their experience gained from various sectors,
they provide strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties
and responsibilities of the Board. Each independent non-executive Director
gives an annual confirmation of his independence to the Company, and the
Company considered each of them meets the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and is independent. The independent
non-executive Directors are not appointed for specific term, but are subject
to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Bye-Laws.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 26 August 2013 (the
"Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board level will
support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable
development. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including, but not limited, to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from time to time in
determining the optimum composition of the Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Policy to the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee will discuss and review the
measurable objectives for implementing the Policy from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness and the progress made towards achieving those
objectives will be ascertained.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure
its continued effectiveness from time to time.

Board Meetings

The Board has four scheduled meetings a year at quarterly interval and
additional meetings will be held as and when required. The four scheduled
Board meetings for a year are planned in advance. During the regular
meetings of the Board, the Board reviewed the operation and financial
performance and reviewed and approved the annual and interim results.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board held 9 meetings. All
Directors are given an opportunity to include any matters in the agenda for
regular Board meetings, and are given sufficient time to review documents
and information relating to matters to be discussed in Board meetings in
advance.
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Name of Director

Number of attendance

BEEHR HEEERE
Mr. XU Tie-liang AR A 9/9
Mr. ZHU Yuan Kk EEAE 9/9
Ms. GUAN Yijun s E Tt 9/9
Mr. CHEUNG Shing K KEAE 9/9
Mr. LI Yunlong TEEEE 9/9
Mr. SHI Xun-zhi SEEIFEE 9/9
Mr. WANG Guangtian TERLEE 9/9

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have access to
Board papers and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required.

General Meetings
During the year ended 31 December 2015, 1 general meeting of the

Company, being the 2015 AGM, was held on 26 May 2015.

Name of Director

EERGHCHBARNERT YA HEES
Bl - BREFRKBHEREHNESR T R
BER - TR EAERHTREARWEZER
RERERYE AARBEEIKINAEEE
8

BEXE
HE-_Z-—AF+-A=1+—HIFE 27%
TE-RERA-HANERTIAKRREAE (B
T-RERRBEFAE)

Number of attendance

BEEHR HERE
Mr. XU Tie-liang AR e 171
Mr. ZHU Yuan KOREHE 01
Ms. GUAN Yijun ¥y 11
Mr. CHEUNG Shing ok BRSEAE 01
Mr. LI Yunlong FERESEE 1”1
Mr. SHI Xun-zhi SEFE%E 0/1
Mr. WANG Guangtian FREMESLE 0/1

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or other general
meetings to communicate with them and encourage their participation. Mr.
Xu Tie-liang, being the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the CG
Committee, attended the 2015 AGM to answer questions and collect views
of shareholders.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Board will take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates, especially their experience in the
natural gas industry and/or other professional area.

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference on 15 March 2006 and currently consists of two independent
nonexecutive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Guangtian (as chairman) and Mr.
Li Yunlong, and one executive Director, namely Mr. Cheung Shing. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee is currently made available on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The function of the Nomination Committee are to review and monitor the
structure, size and diversity of the Board and made recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Group'’s strategy;
to identify qualified individuals to become members of the Board; to assess
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors; to review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the Policy, the
progress on achieving the objectives; and to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination Committee held
1 meeting. The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board composition,
assessed the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
considered and made recommendation to the Board on the re-election of
Directors.

Name of member
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Number of attendance

REHE HEERRH
Mr. WANG Guangtian FREMESLE 11
Mr. LI Yunlong FERESLAE 1”1
Mr. CHEUNG Shing gk RSEAE 11
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms
of reference on 13 January 2006 and currently consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Yunlong (as chairman) and Mr. Wang
Guangtian, and one executive Director, namely Mr. Cheung Shing.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is currently made
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration Committee
held 1 meetings. The Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management and the service contract
of an executive Director.

Name of member
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Number of attendance

REHE HESRRE
Mr. LI Yunlong TEEEE 2/2
Mr. WANG Guangtian FREHEE 2/2
Mr. CHEUNG Shing Bk KEAE 2/2

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on 23 November
2011. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Board to
grant options to selected eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Group. The Board has also adopted the Restricted
Share Award Scheme on 4 November 2011 as an incentive to recognise the
contributions by employees and to give incentives in order to retain them for
their continuing operation and development and to attract suitable personnel
for further development of the Group.

Details of the Share Option Scheme and the Restricted Share Award Scheme
are set out in notes 32(b) and 32(c) to the consolidated financial statements.
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The emolument payable to Directors and senior management will depend
on their respective contractual terms under the employment agreements, if
any, and is fixed by the Board with reference to the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee, the performance of the Group and the prevailing
market conditions. Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in notes 11
and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in 1998. The Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Li Yunlong (as chairman), Mr. Shi Xun-zhi and Mr. Wang Guangtian.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the revised CG Code.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of resignation or dismissal of such
auditor; reviewing the interim and annual reports and financial statements
of the Group; and overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system
including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
in charge of the Company’s financial reporting function and their training
arrangement and budget, and to review the risk management and internal
control systems.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss any area
of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews the interim and
annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices
but also on the compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and
the legal requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual
report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee held 2
meetings.

Name of member

Number of attendance

RE®E HESBERH
Mr. LI Yunlong TEEEAE 2/2
Mr. SHI Xun-zhi selEngkE 2/2
Mr. WANG Guangtian FTEREE 2/2
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee reviewed HE_Z-—AFT_A=T—HILFE BZ
the annual and interim results of the Group, which were in the opinion of BeEHNEEC2FRTPHES  KEZLZES
the Audit Committee that the preparation of such results complied with the ZER RERFEEFABERgERR LT

applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee noted the existing internal control system of the Group
and also noted that review of the same will be carried out annually.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established the CG Committee, with written terms of
reference, on 20 March 2012. The CG Committee comprises four executive
Directors, namely Mr. Xu Tie-liang (as chairman), Mr. Zhu Yuan, Ms. Guan
Yijun and Mr. Cheung Shing, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
Ms. Law Yin Shan, Jenny and the Company Secretary of the Company, Ms.
Chan Yuen Ying, Stella.

Terms of reference of the CG Committee is aligned with the code provisions
set out in the CG Code.

The functions of the CG Committee are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance to comply
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory requirements and make
recommendations to the Board; to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director; to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and to review the Company’s
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the CG Committee
held 1 meeting. The CG Committee reviewed the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; and also
reviewed the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Name of member

TRERHRE

(continued) (4&)

 E_E-RAF+ A=+ —HIMBEFE &
XERTESRITINGE - DEBERZTEIR
HNEERSREREMNEIIRBESEERE T
R ARREE_T—NF+_A=+—HLF
EESTREERATANENR

Number of attendance

RE®S HESERE
Mr. XU Tie-liang FTERR A 11
Mr. ZHU Yuan K RIEE 1/1
Ms. GUAN Yijun MRAX+ 11
Mr. CHEUNG Shing sk RKSEAE 11
Ms. LAW Yin Shan, Jenny AWM+ 11
Ms. CHAN Yuen Ying, Stella BRIGIEZ 22+ 11

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s auditor is
set out below:—

Services rendered

BTN =

REERN - BB A RIZEED 2 Bl #5140
™

Fee paid/payable

FriR iR 7% B ENER
HK$'000

FET

Audit services BAZRTE 2,300
Non-audit services EBEZRTE -
2,300

FHRREBER AR 2015FF3H
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial services
provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to provide compliance
and full range of company secretarial services to the Group in order to assist
the Group to cope with the changing regulatory environment and to suit
different commercial needs.

Ms. Chan Yuen Ying, Stella (“Ms. Chan"), the representative of Uni-1, was
appointed as the named Company Secretary of the Company.

Ms. Law Yin Shan, Jenny, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, is
the primary point of contact at the Company for the Company Secretary.
According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Chan
had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual general
meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may
be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an annual
general meeting, shall be called a special general meeting. The Board may
whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings.

Shareholders to convene a special general meeting

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the Company
according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws and the Companies
Act of Bermuda. The procedures shareholders can use to convene a special
general meeting are set out in the document entitled “Procedures for
a Shareholder to Propose a Person for Election as a Director”, which is
currently available on the Company’s website.

Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board
Shareholders of the Company may send written enquires to the Company for

the attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals by shareholders at
shareholders’ meeting

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward a
proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@  any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights at the date of the requisition; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be deposited,
with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in giving
notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any necessary statement, at
the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong in the case of:—

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six weeks
before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.
The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with the
necessary procedures.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a
general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the
resolutions to be set out in the notice of 2016 AGM will be voted by poll.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication
and reasonable disclosure of information to its shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the shareholders in the
following manner:

o Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all shareholders;

o Publication of announcements on the annual and interim results on
the Stock Exchange website, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing disclosure
obligations under the Listing Rules; and

o The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and shareholders.

Mr. Xu Tie-liang, the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the CG
Committee, attended the 2015 AGM to answer questions of the meeting
and collect views of shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group and the Group’s financial
performance and cash flows of the Group for that year. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

Management had implemented a system of internal control to provide
reasonable assurance that the Group’s assets are safeguarded, proper
accounting records are maintained, appropriate legislation and regulations
are complied with, reliable financial information are provided for
management and publication purpose and investment and business risks
affecting the Group are identified and managed.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board has conducted a
review of the system of internal control to ensure the effectiveness and
adequacy of the system. The Board shall conduct such review on an on-going
basis.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
year ended 31 December 2015.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Oil
And Gas Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on
pages 54 to 187, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_T—AFt+-_A=1t—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-RF —H4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
bz THET FiBT
Revenue ERE 6 7,373,902 7,697,811
Cost of sales SHE A (6,338,364) (6,544,604)
Gross profit EAH 1,035,538 1,153,207
Other income HAb YA 7 31,167 47,657
Other gains, net HfUrzs - EEE 8 2,828 50,430
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER (68,982) (61,775)
Administrative expenses THAX (319,357) (332,583)
Impairment losses on oil and gas properties  #13 ~ ME K RHEE NEREE
under property, plant and equipment REEE 16 (507,441) =
Operating profit B m A 9 173,753 856,936
Finance income BRSHA 10 111,562 125,371
Finance costs 7% 10 (230,782) (135,860)
Share of (losses)/profits of investments AMEEAEREARZIZE
accounted for using the equity method (E518), %= 5 20 (4,343) 7,716
Profit before taxation BREE RT3 A 50,190 854,163
Taxation HiIA 13 (20,857) (217,565)
Profit for the year F R A 29333 636,598
Other comprehensive loss: Hit 2 HEES -
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss AEH P E
Currency translation differences f’ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁlgiﬁﬁ (660,561) (144,762)
Change in value of available-for-sale A S
financial assets EEEEZE 8,594 (11,033)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, Hth 2 EE (HBRTIE)
netofta Gs1967) (155,795)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year £ A2 (E518) Uk 2542 %8 (622,634) 480,803
(Loss)/profit attributable to: E‘Efﬁ (F518), %A
Owners of the Company NRER A (183,831) 308,650
Non-controlling interests IEE AR R 213,164 327,948
29,333 636,598
Total comprehensive (loss)/income & WF’EE%E (B8R),/
for the year attributable to: Hﬂ/\ﬁ"ﬂ
Owners of the Company T%’Eﬁ/\ (696,168) 152,855
Non-controlling interests AR A A 73,534 327,948
(622,634) 480,803
(Losses)/earnings per share attributable to NalEE AN FRNEEERR
owners of the Company for the year (E518) /&F| 15
— Basic (HK cents) — AR (B (3.609) 6.234
— Diluted (HK cents) — 858 OBl (3.609) 6.195

The notes on pages 62 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

As at 31 December 2015
RZE—RAF+=ZA=+—H

2015 2014
—E-AF —E—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FET FAT
Assets BE
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment L E Y 16 6,535,541 6,883,531
Exploration and evaluation assets R R EE 17 249,139 222,655
Land use rights T e R 18 314,013 253,663
Intangible assets | EE 19 1,055,676 1,071,912
Investments accounted for FEREREARZIRE
using the equity method 20 316,854 55,109
Available-for-sale financial assets A ETEEE 21 354,947 585,211
Other non-current assets HibIEmeh&EE 23 904,806 968,436
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E 30 16,735 5,643
9,747,711 10,046,160
Current assets REEE
Inventories A 22 201,470 195,603
Deposits, trade and other receivables e« BHREMEKFIA 23 1,562,686 1,474,664
Financial assets at fair value BATELERARZ
through profit or loss MIEEE 24 50,271 53,859
Current tax recoverable & B AT U O] F 18 5,796 31,867
Time deposits with maturity A =1E A &
over three months EHTE 25 216,000 973,739
Cash and cash equivalents ReRASEFMEIER 25 2,303,704 2,691,557
4,339,927 5,421,289
Total assets BnEE 14,087,638 15,467,449
Liabilities =l
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables Z 5 R HMFERFRIE 26 1,376,420 1,680,480
Receipt in advance TEURFRIA 27 1,089,707 1,229,109
Short-term borrowings RHEE 28 972,774 808,379
Current tax payable &R FIE 126,288 137,664
3,565,189 3,855,632
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR R
As at 31 December 2015
RZZE—RF+_A=+—H
(continued) (4&)

2015 2014
—E-EfF —ZT—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b FET FET
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Senior notes BEERE 29 4,992,169 4,978,675
Deferred tax liabilities RETIBEE 30 231,700 419,090
Other non-current liabilities Hi3pmEaE 31 98,326 121,303
5,322,195 5,519,068
Total liabilities BERE 8,887,384 9,374,700
Equity s
Equity attributable to owners ARHEE AELER
of the Company
Share capital &N 32 58,257 52,996
Reserves B 2,718,807 3,548,111
2,777,064 3,601,107
Non-controlling interests FEIZERR R A 2,423,190 2,491,642
Total equity R 5,200,254 6,092,749
Total equity and liabilities EnRkaEEE 14,087,638 15,467,449

The notes on pages 62 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 54 to 187 were approved by the Board of
Directors on 23 March 2016 and were signed on its behalf.

Xu Tie-liang
Director

Guan Yijun
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—AFt+_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAEEAELR
Shares
held for
share (Note) ~ Exchange  Share-based Non-
Share Share award Other  fluctuation compensation ~ Retained controling Total
capital  premium scheme  resenves Tesenve Teseve profits Total  interests equity
=0 Wi

RhiE (D) BiEm ERebe
B BEE  ARED  EER R R R BE REL  RiRLE
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSO0D  HKS00D  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HK$O00  HK$000  HKS'000
TRT TR TR TR T TR TR TR TET  TEn

At 1 January 2014

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Changesin value of available-
for-sale financial assets

Total comprehensive income for the year

Issue of shares upon exercise of share options
Shares issued for share award scheme

Equity-settled share-based payments

Shares purchased for share award scheme

Capital injection by non-controlling interests
Dividend paid to non-controling interests

Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013

Changes in the ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result n a loss of control

Reduction of share premium allowance
(Note 40(o))

At 31 December 2014

W-5-mE-A-A 50007 1594280 (652600 103291 294571 11163 1559318 3547380 2278767 5,806,147
EREA - - - - - - 308650 308650 307948 636598
Efb2ARA
BERNEHCERAE

- - - - (14476 - - (14762 - (14476)
THERBAEREEY

- - - 1) - - - 1) - (1103
ER2AhEEE = - - (11033 (14476) - 0BES0 152855 3798 480803
REREETEnEIRR 489 3290 - - - (14 - il
BROEEEZNRG 2,500 - (2,500) - - - = = s .
WEREEHRNAER LR - - 278 - - 1,275 - 4057 - 4057
AROEEHEEERD - - (85897 - - - - (B89 - (85897)
ERER A - - - - - - - - B 73304
SHREFHERER - - - - - - - - (18552) (185520
BB F=FftzA=1-H
LERZRERE - - - 38014 - - - (38014 - (3801
MRS LR
figERRE - - - (289) - - - (8 87 B4
HiR A EERE
(Fizdo)) - (1,594280) - 147153 - - - - -
W-E-ME+-p=1-A 5299 31960 (150875 1526112 149,809 - 1990105 3600107 2491642 6,092,749
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE—_ZT—
(continued) (#&)

AF+—A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

DR AR
Shares
held for
share (Note)  Exchange Share-based Non-
Share Share  award Other ~fluctuation compensation ~ Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  scheme  reserves  reseve  reserve profits Total interests equity
RRf HRHA
REHE (W) EXR® ERNHE
Bx  ROEE fRRE  HiER i B REEH B% FEREE  EREE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000
Thn  FEn TR TEn TR TEr  TEn TEr TR TEn
At 1 January 2015 RZ5-15-f-H 52,99 3960 (150875 1526112 149,809 - 1990105 3,601,107 2,491,642 6,092,749
(Loss)/profit for the year En(ER)/ 5 - - - - - - (183831)  (183831) 213164 2938
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: B2 (FE)/ s
Exchange differences on translating AERIEH R 2R
foreign operations - - - - (520931) - - (520931)  (139,630)  (660,561)
Changes in value of avallable- TRILENHEERERY
for-sale financial assets - - - 8,594 - - - 8,594 - 8,594
Total comprehensive (oss)/income for the year £ 27 (§8)/ hHAE - - - 8504 (520,931) - (183831) (696,168) 73534 (622,634
Bonusissue of shares (Note 14) R (1) 50  (4878) (w18) - - - - - - -
Equity-settled share-based paymens LMEE?S%KHXM%MH%X - - 1887 - - - - 188 - 188
Shares purchased for share award scheme BRAERERER - - (18183) - - - - (18163) - (w183)
Repurchase of shares (Nofe 32(al) R WTBZ(an) 3 (35M) - 3% - - () (359 - (35
Capitalinjection by non-controlling interests FRRERTE - - - - - - - - 1933 193%
Dividend paid to non-controling interests XFRE T ARER - - - - - - - - (161339  (161,339)
At 31 December 2015 R-F-ZEtZR=1-R 58,257 1578 (275629 1534741 (311122) - 1806239 2777,084 2,423,190 5,200,254
Note: P

As at 31 December 2015, other reserves mainly comprise capital and other reserve
amounting to HK$64,165,000 (2014: HK$55,536,000) and contribution surplus
amounting to HK$1,470,576,000 (2014: HK$1,470,576,000).

The notes on pages 62 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FaN A IE%/)ILE%%

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—AFT-_A=1T—HILEFE

2015 2014
—E-RE —TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Firsr THET AL
Cash flows from operating activities REXBRENE
Profit for the year F R 29,333 636,598
Adjustments for: ot ORI R
Taxation FiE 20,857 217,565
Finance costs HEER 230,782 135,860
Finance income BRI (111,562) (125,371)
Dividend income from listed securities FiEHZREMA = (573)
Share of losses/(profits) of investments accounted AMEERERENEL
for using the equity method REER /(&) 4,343 (7.,116)
Equity-settled share-based payments MR AR D RER 25K 18,827 4,057
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 1,666 1,442
Depreciation and depletion of property, W% - BERRETERER 455,670 363,732
plant and equipment
Amortisation of land use rights i fF R 7,161 5,651
Provision for impairment on oil and M - BEREEETHR 507,441 -
gas properties under property, BERBERE
plant and equipment
Losses on disposals of property, HEME « BERS&EEE 5,847 547
plant and equipment
Fair value losses on financial assets BRATEEESAR K EE 1,876 237
at fair value through profit or loss ATEERE
(Gains)/losses on disposal of financial HERATELER AR (10) 8,021
assets at fair value through profit or loss PBEE (W), B
Losses/(gains) on disposals of HETHE N ERBEE 2 BE/ (RE) 1,434 (17,146)
available-for-sale financial assets
Gain on bargain purchase HENE R (5,551) (37,497)
1,168,114 1,185,407
Changes in working capital: EEESEE
Financial assets at fair value through BRATESES AR HBEEE
profit or loss 1,722 83,695
Inventories FE (16,644) (9,677)
Deposits, trade and other receivables e B REMENGE (126,436) (657,759)
Trade and other payables B REMENZE 44,873 277,072
Receipt in advance FMEIA (53,364) 222,516
Non-current liabilities FEnBak (14,309) (23,161)
Cash generated from operations REEREE 7R 1,003,956 1,078,093
Taxation paid [RANEE (147,635) (194,055)
Net cash generated from operating activities REXBEE H2FR 856,321 884,038
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z-—AF+_A=t+—HILEE

(continued) (#&)

2015 2014
—E2-0F —TE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(i THET TAL
Cash flows from investing activities REZDRETE
Interest received BIFIE 77,800 102,845
Dividend received B E - 573
Purchases of property, plant and BENE  WEREE
equipment, land use rights and TR AR R A
prepaid construction costs (819,835) (1,189,291)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE  BERRE
plant and equipment FTfS30E 30,276 4,673
Purchases of other intangible assets and BEHMENEERRET
prepaid of intangible assets BEBMNHE (6,108) (8,449)
Purchases of available-for-sale BEMRNENEEE
financial assets (276,400) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEHNERBEEMSTE
available-for-sale financial assets 26,574 520,913
Acquisition of businesses/subsidiaries, net of cash WEaER /HEAR KBS 33 (469,560) (1,708,600)
Loan to a third party BEXT—%E=F (30,000) =
Advance to an associate Eb il /NG (98,190) =
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with maturity FrHRE=1ARNTH
over three months BIRA,/(3810) 757,739 (178,312)
Net cash used in investing activities RBEDMERSFE (807,704) (2,455,648)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEBRERE
Share issued upon exercise RITfEEBREMET 2R R
of share options - 21,011
Repurchase of shares BB & {n (3,539) =
Interest paid BAFE (343,305) (215,343)
Issue of senior notes RIRERE - 2,300,975
New borrowings raised MEEE 1,031,760 276,437
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (806,032) (1,314,076)
Net cash paid arising from changes in WB AR REREE
the ownership interests in subsidiaries BNREFE - (3,142)
Capital injection by IR T E
non-controlling interests 19,353 73,304
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests IATRE TR E R (67,032) (129,639)
Purchase of own shares for AROEBHEEER S KRG
share award scheme (143,163) (85,897)
Dividends paid BRRE - (38,014)
Net cash generated from financing activities BERDELZESFE (311,958) 885,616
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= =B
n. \éiﬁﬁ;ﬁlii
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—AFt+_A=1+—HILFE

(continued) (#)

2015 2014

“E-HF —TmEF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

Bt TR THL

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BeMReSEEBRDFE (263,341) (685,994)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BR&FREEEER 2,691,557 3,377,551
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExgeE (124,512) -

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+ZA=+—BHE&EHEE

EEER 25 2,303,704 2,691,557

The notes on pages 62 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

1

General information

China Oil And Gas Group Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered office is at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The address of its
principal place of business is at Suite 2805, 28th Floor, Sino Plaza, 255-
257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaging in
investment in energy related business in various regions in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"”) and West Central Alberta, Canada, including
but not limited to 1) piped city gas business, pipeline design and
construction; 2) transportation, distribution and sales of compressed
natural gas (“CNG”) and liquefied natural gas (“LNG”); and 3)
development, production and sale of oil and gas and other upstream
energy resources. The Company and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to the “Group”.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of certain available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(i)

(ii)

Amendments to standards adopted by the Group

The Group has adopted the following amendments to
standards which are relevant to the Group’s operations and
are mandatory for the financial year beginning on or after 1
January 2015:
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans —
employee contributions
Annual improvements
2010-2012 cycle
Annual improvements
2011-2013 cycle

Annual Improvements Project

Annual Improvements Project

The adoption of above amendments to standards did
not have any material impact on the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and
Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) became effective during the year, as a result, there
are changes to presentation and disclosures of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements.

e MR HRAR MR

(continued) (4)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (#&)

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments to standards not yet

adopted

The following are new standards and amendments to existing
standards that have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2015 and have not been early

adopted.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

HKAS 16 and HKAS
38 (Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS
41 (Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Amendment)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 11 (Amendment)
HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Annual Improvements Project

Disclosure initiative"

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation
and amortisation®

Agriculture: Bearer plants ®

Equity method in separate
financial statements®

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture®

Investment entities:
Applying the consolidation
exception®

Financial instruments®

Accounting for acquisitions
of interests in
joint operations”

Regulatory deferral
accounts™

Revenue from contracts
with customers®

Annual improvements
2012-2014 cycle®

l Effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2016

2 Effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018

The Group is assessing the impact of these new standards and will

apply them once they are effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(@) Subsidiaries
(i) Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

(1) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

Consolidation (Continued)

(1) Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwvill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR HRAR MR

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i) Consolidation (Continued)

(2)

(3)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)
(ii) Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

(b) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's investment
in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon
the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and the Group's
share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The cost of an associate acquired in stages is measured as the sum
of the fair value of the interest previously held plus the fair value
of any additional consideration transferred as of the date when
the investment become an associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

3 FESHBEHME(E)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised
in the profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the

(b)

B NT (HF)

£ B R AG BE 2 A R U T 12 5 B S B 1B
ZIMEN RS ER - EEGKRER
H A2 w4 A Z ) RN E 2 ERA
hEER - WHIREREEELAER

carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share B EEEEEHMERREEENK
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the BIEBE R LIS AR FT A s (B1E
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group EE AR EIE) i SET
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal BE—THERAEE  BIFERBUEE

or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to share of profit of investments accounted for using
equity method in the profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9]

Joint arrangement

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements are classified
as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangement and determined it to
be joint venture. Joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses and movements in other comprehensive income. The
Group's investment in joint venture include goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in a
joint venture, any difference between the cost of the joint venture
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.
When the Group’s share of losses in joint venture equals or
exceeds its interest in the joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint ventures), the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the joint venture. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the joint venture have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the interest in the joint venture is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the joint venture and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to share of profit of investment accounted for using
equity method in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(d) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors that
makes strategic decisions.

(e) Foreign currency translation
(i)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in HK$, which is the Company’s functional and
the Group's presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated profit or loss within ‘other gains/(losses)’.

(d)

(e)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available-for-
sale are analysed between translation differences resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive

income.

(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

- income and expenses for each profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange fluctuation

reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the year
end closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

()

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the currency translation differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly buildings, plant
and machinery, oil and gas properties, pipelines and construction
in progress. Accounting policies for oil and gas properties are
set out in Note 3(g). All other property, plant and equipment is
stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the profit or
loss during the year in which they are incurred. Except for oil
and gas properties and construction in progress, depreciation on
property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

12.5 to 25 years or remaining lease
period of the land where applicable

Buildings

Plant and machinery
Pipelines
Others

3 to 20 years
20 years
3 to 20 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

()

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each date of the statement of financial
position. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 3(j)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“administrative expenses” in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents pipelines under construction
and is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Costs comprise direct and indirect
incremental costs of acquisition or construction. Completed items
are transferred from construction in progress to proper categories
of property, plant and equipment when they are ready for their
intended use.

Oil and gas properties

Expenditure on the construction, installation or completion
of infrastructure facilities such as platforms, pipelines and the
drilling of commercially proven development wells, is capitalised
within construction in progress under property, plant and
equipment. When development is completed on a specific field, it
is transferred to oil and gas properties under property, plant and
equipment. No depreciation and depletion is charged during the
development phase.

Oil and gas properties are aggregated exploration and evaluation
assets and development expenditures associated with the
production of proved reserves.

Oil and gas properties are depreciated and depleted using
the unit-of-production method. Unit-of-production rates are
based on total proved plus probable reserves, which are olil,
gas and other mineral reserves estimated to be recovered using
current operating methods and taking into account estimated
future development costs necessary to bring those reserves into
production. Future development costs are estimated taking into
account the level of development required to produce the reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Oil and gas properties (Continued)

Proven oil and gas properties are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Oil and gas exploration and evaluation expenditures are
accounted for using the successful efforts method of accounting.
Costs are accumulated on a field-by-field basis. Geological,
geophysical costs and pre-licence costs are expensed as incurred.
Costs directly associated with an exploration well, and exploration
and property leasehold acquisition costs, are capitalised within
exploration and evaluation assets until the determination of
reserves is evaluated. If it is determined that commercial discovery
has not been achieved, these costs are charged to expense.

Once commercial reserves are found, exploration and evaluation
assets are tested for impairment and transferred to construction
in progress under property, plant and equipment. No depreciation
and depletion is charged during the exploration and evaluation
phase.

Exploration and evaluation assets are tested for impairment
when reclassified to construction in progress, or whenever
facts and circumstances indicate impairment. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the exploration and
evaluation assets’ carrying amount exceeds their recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the exploration
and evaluation assets’ fair value less costs of disposal and their
value in use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
(i) Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identified net assets

acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash
generating units (“CGUs"”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment

level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
and more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of the
CGU containing the goodwill is compared to the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less cost of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(ii) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets comprise mainly exclusive rights, club

membership and computer operating system.

Exclusive rights are shown at historical cost.
rights have definite useful lives and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of exclusive
rights over their estimated useful lives ranging from 30 to 48

years for natural gas supply services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(0]

()]

(k)

Intangible assets (Continued)
(i) Other intangible assets (Continued)

Investment in club membership is shown at historical cost.
Investment in club membership has indefinite useful life and
is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses and is not amortised.

Computer operating system is shown at historical cost.
Computer operating system has definite useful lives and is
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the
cost of computer operating system over its estimated useful
lives of 10 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill or
intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

Land use rights

Land use rights are lump sum upfront payments to acquire
long-term interest in lessee-occupied properties. Land use
rights relating to buildings of the Group under operating lease
arrangements are stated at cost and are amortised over the period
of the lease on the straight-line basis to the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(0]

Financial assets

(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available for sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

1

(2)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as
non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period. These are classified as
non-current assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise deposits, trade and other receivables, time
deposits with maturity over three months and cash and
cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(I) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification (Continued)
(3) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated profit or loss.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value, except for those
investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market, and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, which are measured at cost.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category
are presented in the profit or loss within “Other (losses)/
gains, net” in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss is recognised in the profit or loss as part of “other
income” when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(0]

Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the profit or loss. As “gains or
losses from investment securities”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the profit or loss
as part of “other income”. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the profit or loss as
part of “other income” when the Group's right to receive
payments is established.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets

(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

o Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

o A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

3 The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the
borrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

o It becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

o The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

o Observable data indicating that there is a measurable

decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
portfolio of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the
portfolio, including:

(1) adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the portfolio;

(2) national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the
portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the profit or
loss. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis
of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(n)

(ii)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the cumulative
loss-measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss-
is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss. If,
in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available for sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the profit or loss.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence
that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists
the cumulative loss-measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through
the profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less all costs to completion and all direct costs
to be incurred in selling and distribution.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for sales and
distribution of oil and natural gas and other related products or
gas pipeline construction and connection services performed in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. The Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that trade and other receivables are impaired.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated
statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and the costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in

profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Sales and distribution of natural gas

Sales and distribution of natural gas are recognised when
the gas is used by the customers. Payments received in
advance on pre-paid I/C cards that are related to sales of
natural gas not yet delivered are deferred in the consolidated
statements of financial position. Revenue is recognised when
goods are delivered to the customers.

Gas pipeline construction and connection fee income

Gas pipeline construction and connection fee income is
recognised using the percentage of completion method, but
when the period of construction works is short, the revenue
is recognised when the relevant construction works are
completed and connection services are rendered.

Revenue from exploitation and production of crude oil
and natural gas

The sales of crude oil and natural gas is recorded when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the product
is transferred to the buyer which is usually when legal title
passes to the external party and this is generally at the time
product enters the pipeline.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(u) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Sales of equipment

The equipment sold are mainly the gas meter. Sales of
equipment are recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the equipment sold.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
tenant lease.

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognised on an accruals basis in
accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.

e M RAR MR

(continued) (4)

3 FEESTTBREEA)

(u) WARER(E)

(iv) $HERE
DERETEAMRRE - RER
EzENEARNERGETE R
MEBYZEHEDRERE —
AR A B A AR 2 B IR AE
HE SR 2B T HIEEER
SHERME -

(v) FEWKA

F B A fE A B B A R R A T
iR o

(vi) HEHA

HEWAREH IR B R EEHE

R o
(vii) ¥FREWA

SR A AR B 1 KA
SRR -

FHRREBER AR 2015FF3f

87



88

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(v)

Employee benefits

(i)

Retirement benefit costs

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC based employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
the relevant municipal and provincial governments in the
PRC under which the Group and the PRC based employees
are required to make monthly contributions to these plans
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly contributions,
the Group has no further obligation for the payment
of retirement and other post retirement benefits of its
employees. The assets of these plans are held separately
from those of the Group in independently administrated
funds managed by the provincial governments.

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for those qualifying employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance,
and who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, contributions to the
scheme by the Group and the employees are calculated as a
percentage of employee’s relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. The retirement
benefit scheme costs charged to consolidated profit or
loss represent contributions payable by the Group in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(v) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
payment are recognised when they accrue to the employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service payment as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the statement of financial
position date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of share options or restricted
shares is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options or restricted shares granted:

e including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save or
holding shares for a specified period of time).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(v)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Share-based payments (Continued)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options or restricted shares that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end
of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options or restricted shares that are expected
to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

Share option scheme

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(v) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Share-based payments (Continued)

(iv)

Share award scheme

When restricted shares are granted, the fair value of
restricted shares are recongised as expense with a
corresponding adjustment to equity over the vesting period.

Where the Group purchases the Company’s shares from
the market, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is presented as “shares held
for award scheme” and deducted from total equity.

The social security contributions payable in connection
with the grant of the share options and restricted shares
is considered an integral part of the grant itself, and the
charge will be treated as a cash-settled transaction.

Incentive compensation plans

The Group operates a cash settled compensation plans for
officer, employee and eligible contractor. The fair values of
the amounts payable to eligible participants under these
plans are recognised as an expense with a corresponding
increase in liabilities over the period that the compensation
pertains to. The recorded liability is re-measured at the end
of each reporting period until settlement with the resultant
change to the fair value of the liability recognised in earnings
in the period. When the plans are settled, the cash paid
reduces outstanding liability.

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the Group's
employees and contractor. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice
that has created a constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(w) Provisions

(x)

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs
and legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(i)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date in the countries
where the Group, its associates and joint ventures operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (4)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESTBEBE (&)

(Continued)
(x) Current and deferred income tax (Continued) (x) BEHRELESIEZ)

(ii) Deferred income tax

(i) EAEFZH

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the date of the statement of
financial position and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
(x) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(i) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liability is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, joint
venture and associates, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures only to the extent
that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in
the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

(iii) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(y)

(2)

(aa)

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payment made under operating leases, net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants
and are credited to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the expected lives of the related assets.

Exceptional item

Exceptional items are disclosed and described separately in the
financial statements where it is necessary to do so to provide
further understanding of the financial performance of the Group.
They are material items of income or expense that have been
shown separately due to the significance of their nature or
amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (#&)

4 Financial risk management 4 BiEREIE

4.1 BERHEDZEHMIA

4.1 Financial instruments by categories

Available- Financial Financial
for-sale assets at fair liabilities at
financial value through Loans and amortised
assets  profit or loss receivables cost
N REBHER A
AHEE  REZAR BXK HEZ
BKEE ZHBEE W RIE BgaE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FisE FAT FAT FAT FAET
As at 31 December 2015 RZZE—ARF
+=-A=+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets At HEHEEE 21 354,947 - - -
Deposits, trade and e BEHREAM - - 1,708,262 -
other receivables FEWFRIR
Financial assets at fair value BATEESER AR
through profit or loss 2B E 24 - 50,271 - -
Time deposits, bank balances EHGER - RITEH
and cash &k 25 - - 2,519,704 -
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M ERTRIR - = - 1,342,114
Borrowings a8 28 = = - 972,774
Senior notes BEZE 29 - - - 4,992,169
354,947 50,271 4,227,966 7,307,057
As at 31 December 2014 RZT—MmF
+=A=+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets A HHE & EE 21 585,211 = = =
Deposits, trade and other we  BHRAEM
receivables [EW B - = 1,495,033 =
Financial assets at fair value BATESER AR
through profit or loss ZETEEE 24 - 53,859 - =
Time deposits, bank balances TFEHIFR « RITAES
and cash kRE 25 - - 3,665,296 =
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERTRIE - - - 1,568,413
Borrowings BE 28 = = = 808,379
Senior notes BEZERE 29 = = = 4,978,675
585,211 53,859 5,160,329 7,355,467
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.2 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, price risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising in the normal course of
its business and financial instruments. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Market risk
(i) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to United States dollars (“US$"”), Canadian dollars
(“CAD") and Renminbi (“RMB"). Currency risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. In addition, the conversion of Renminbi
into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government. This currency exposure
is managed primarily through sourcing supplies
denominated in the same currency.

Management has set up a policy to require group
companies to manage their foreign exchange risk
against functional currency. It mainly includes
managing the exposures arise from sales and purchases
made by the relevant group companies in currencies
other than their own functional currencies. The Group
also manages its foreign exchange risk by performing
regular reviews of the Group’s net foreign exchange
exposures. The Group has not used any forward
foreign exchange contracts to hedge its exposure.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Prices for oil and natural gas in Canada are determined
in global markets and generally denominated in US$.
Qil prices obtained by the Group are influenced by
both United States and Canadian demand and the
corresponding North American supply. The exchange
rate effect cannot be quantified but generally an
increase in the value of CAD as compared to US$
will reduce the prices received by the Group for its
petroleum and natural gas sales.

As US$ is pegged with HK$ under the Linked Exchange
Rate System, the Group has minimal exposure to
currency risk arising from US$. Accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis is performed. As at 31 December
2015, if Renminbi had weakened/strengthened
by 5% against HK$, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been
HK$10,816,000 (2014: HK$61,212,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of Renminbi denominated cash and cash
equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

4 Financial risk management (Continued) 4 BIBRERER(E
4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.2 HEEBEZE (A

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THEfE (&)

(ii) Price risk (i) EEE

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Other than unlisted debt and
equity securities held for strategic purposes, all of
these investments are listed. Most of the Group's
listed investments are listed on the stock exchanges of
Hong Kong and other countries. Decisions to buy or
sell trading securities are based on daily monitoring of
the performance of the individual securities compared
to that of the index and other industry indicators, as
well as the Group’s liquidity needs. Listed investments
held in the available-for-sale portfolio have been
chosen based on their longer term growth potential
and are monitored regularly for performance against
expectations. The portfolio is diversified in terms of
industry distribution, in accordance with the limits set
by the Group.

As at 31 December 2015, debt and equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss amounted to HK$50,271,000 (2014:
HK$53,859,000). Price risk arises on account of debt
and equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is not material to the
Group as a whole.

Commodity price risk is the risk that fair value or
future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes
in commodity prices. Commodity prices for oil and
natural gas in Canada are impacted by the relationship
between CAD and US$ as well as world economic
events that dictate the levels of supply and demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Price risk (Continued)

It is the Group’s policy to economically hedge certain
oil and natural gas sales through the use of various
financial derivative forward sales contracts when
situation arisen. The Group does not enter into
commodity contracts other than to meet expected
sales requirements. The Group does not apply hedge
accounting for these contracts. All derivative contracts
have settled as at 31 December 2014 and the Group
had not entered into any derivative contracts as at 31
December 2015.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets, except for short-term bank deposits and loans
to third parties, the Group’s income and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. Management does not anticipate
significant impact on interest-bearing assets resulted
from changes in interest rates because the interest
rates of bank deposits are not expected to change
significantly.

The Group'’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings
and senior notes. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

4 Financial risk management (Continued) 4 EIEERRER (&)
4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.2 BEREKREE (&)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) WHEE (&)

(iii) FEREE (&)

(iii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Details of the Group’s borrowings and senior notes are
set out in Notes 28 and 29 respectively.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk as the interest
rate risk exposure is not significant. In order to manage
the cash flow interest rate risk, the Group will repay
the corresponding borrowings when it has surplus
funds.

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates on floating rate borrowings, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group's post tax profit for the year by approximately
HK$6,679,000 (2014: HK$8,374,000). The above
sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the date
of the statement of financial position and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis
points increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the year until the next annual statement of
financial position date. The analysis was performed on
the same basis for 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

4

MERERE (&)

4.2 BiEBEEE (&)

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk
arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with
banks and excludes cash on hand of HK$1,646,000
and HK$2,763,000, as at 31 December 2015 and 2014
respectively. Credit risk also arises from outstanding trade
and other receivables from customers and a number of
counter parties.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015

(b) Credit risk (b) EEERE
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and SBEZEERRETERESRE
other receivables, the debt instruments under available-for- fb FENG Z0IE -~ SR ARt &8
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through BEERERATFELESARY
profit or loss with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying WK EAENGERES  FTEYZ
amounts of these financial instruments. Management has a TeRBEERZEsmIAY
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks FREE - BREEHERKZE
are monitored on an on-going basis. BHER - WHZEEERRISTE
BT o
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, all of the Group’s RZE—RFER-ZT—NOF+=
bank deposits are deposited in major financial institutions A=+—8 SBEMERITER
located in the PRC, Canada and Hong Kong, which the BHEAMRFE . IE2XAEE
management believes are of high credit quality without BZEESHEEE  BEERA
significant credit risk. The Group’s bank deposits as at 31 Exéﬁ&%r,\,\ HIHEK
December 2015 and 2014 were as follows: SERK R-_ZE—RFR=_F
*EEJF_H =t+—B &£@82Z
RITERA T
2015 2014
—ZE—hEF —Z—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHBT
State-owned and BB & _ETiRTT
listed banks 2,448,262 3,511,703
Other banks HAhiRT 69,796 150,830
2,518,058 3,662,533

EERBREEBEEEE - 55
EReRkEREeRESEHEES
RITFER  TRER=ZZE—AF
r=—FE—NF+=-_A=+—H%
A1141,646,00078 T 52,763,000
BILZFHERE - EERB IR
BREWEFRZZHFHRIRE

BE S RHEAMEWFIE -
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e M RAR MR

(continued) (#)

4 Financial risk management (Continued) 4 IIEERER (&)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.2 BEEREZE(F)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEERE (&)

The management considers the credit risk on loan to third
parties after considering the financial conditions of the
counter parties. Management has performed assessment
over the recoverability of the balances and management
does not expect any losses from non-performance by these
counter parties.

The Group generally requests advances from customers.
In circumstances of credit sales, to manage the credit risk
in respect of trade and other receivables, the Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers
with appropriate credit history and the Group performs
credit evaluations of its customers, and generally does not
require collateral from the customers on the outstanding
balances. Based on the expected recoverability and timing
for collection of the outstanding balances, the Group
maintains a provision for impairment of receivables and
actual losses incurred have been within management'’s
expectation.

Debt instruments held by the Group are normally only in
liquid securities quoted on a recognised stock exchange,
except where entered into for long-term strategic purposes.
Given their high credit standing, management does not
expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

BEBUFHZ2MBHR - BE
ERRERTE=NZEERR
Hif - EEEERZFHEBZA
WEIMEE LT - BERERS
NEREREE T T ENMELSE
&R -

SE—RERKEFPEMNBR - £
BREERIBIA T - EMEE%&E
HEBREEENEERR £
EE2sTHECR - LM%.:&%#J%JBF@
BEEBEERARENEEEL R
SEHEF#ETEHRERNMG
—RBERFHAREEL SIS
I o BB RIBEERHTERR
WEERRKERR  SEEH
FEWGRIRE L R E R - MER
EREFEEEEEE -

’%lﬁ*ﬁéﬁﬁixlﬂ—ﬁ%%?%%
ERAUBFRZZAEEEEN R
%a’é% HEREERKLED
METERIN - ENREHF
EARGEEFH BEEEBERHAT
SHEEMNREHFHEEETA
(E

SE B R E M A Z e &
EAEEERR 2R -
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e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the Company’'s Board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and readily realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables detailed the remaining contractual
maturities at date of the statement of financial position
of the Group's financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the statement of financial position
date) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015

4

B RRERE (&

4.2 BiEBEEE (&)

(c)

BB LA

SEAERHKLERAARER
HHNBREER  BERSAKRE
REMREREEEFUARAEAS
ReFHf EEEBREETERE
RERKTE - AERAREEBI
ETHEE - RERRASEME
2R REMRBESFR - A
RERES IR 7 N BERS B
ANEBRSURRRCZIES
BB ARESHEE  UFA
MR ERNRBESTE
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tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

Financial risk management (Continued) 4 BIBEREIR (&)
4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued) 42 BKEKBEE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REELERE (&)
Total Less than
Total contractual  Repayable 1year  Between  Between
carrying undiscounted on oron 1t02 2t05
amount  cash flow demand demand years years

BRANE  ARER  1FRE
REAE ReREL: B8 ZERIM 182f 2255
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL

As at 31 December 2015 i
+=-A=1t-H
Trade and other payables B o RAMENTIE 1376420 1376420 1,376,420 - - -
Borrowings &8 972,774 1,017,653 - 1,017,653 - =
Senior notes (Note) BERE () 4,992,169 5,918,426 - 212904 273701 5371821
7301363 8312499 1376420 1,290,557 273,701 5,371,821
As at 31 December 2014 N=Z-mE
+=-A=1-H
Trade and other payables B o RAMENTIE 1,680,480 1,680,480 1,680,480 - - -
Borrowings fE& 808379 830422 - 830422 - -
Senior notes (Note) BERE () 4978675 6,357,625 - 155,813 261,380 5,940,432
Other non-current liabilities AthIEnEaE 40,137 40,137 - 20,068 20,069 =
7507671 8908664  1,680480 1006303 281449 5940432
Note: MisE -
The Group complied with senior notes covenant and did not trigger SEETEAERBRRO R EEERE
the callable terms. ERBANEEIE -
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.3 Capital risk management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder
returns, taking into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and projected
profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected capital
expenditure and projected strategic investment opportunities. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, repurchase
the Company’s shares, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of available cash and
cash equivalents and current ratio as shown in and derived from
the consolidated statement of financial position. The table below
analyses the Group's capital structure:

4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

B RRERE (&

4.3 EXREARER

SEEAERTIRERARESRE
BSEERERQEZRHN  URERK
REREFRBE M ES BT EF K
M XYRFREEXARBIURDE
AR o

SHEERE RN REEERRRE
VTREBEBEZARESELRER
M BRI RBHANE N RIS
BRERE  FAHMERHX MIEHR
BEREREMERBILEARERK
RO - BRFAFHBEARE &
BRERBEXNTRRZIBESHE
BEARRD  ARREBREARS -
TR EBEENR D ER o

SERBHEAMBIRRRIRRFTE
sz ARERIREFEER KR
B RERER TRAKEERKE
BZo

2015 2014
—E—EfF —E—UE
Cash and cash RekBFEEFEEE
equivalents (HK$’000) (F%&m) 2,303,704 2,691,557
Current ratio (Current assets MENLLEE (R BN & ERR
divided by current liabilities) LURBI & &) 1.22 1.41

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the current ratio above 1.00
and sufficient cash and cash equivalents to support the operations
and development of its business in the long term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.4 Fair value estimation

(i)

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of the
financial instruments measured at fair value at the statement
of financial position date across the three levels of the fair
value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial instruments
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of input
that is significant to that fair value measurement.

The levels are defined as follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments.

o Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in
active market for similar financial instruments, or using
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly based on observable data.

. Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input is
not based on observable market data.

e M RAR MR

(continued) (4)

4 HIBEREE(E

4.4 RDFEMLE

()

URFES LM T A

TREJINFBARKBBER
BUBREENEIRIEHT
B:REIMREZAFE=E
BRE - AAFESIR ST
AZRHEE MEEWTAZA
FEAHZATFEAEBEAZ
RIEERBABEMBEOE -

PR EZ BIRAT

o E—EBR&ERER) KA
5l T B BB T %5 P R
BROREHRB)AEQT
B

e FIER:AEUeRIA
EEBRTIZMIE - FIABER
fir (AR B ERE ABUE
TyE B AR B R 2R
RAE)AERFE-

s FZEBR(HEER): MU
CIEECHETE PPN
T S AT A B
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e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.4 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

4 HIBEMREE(E

4.4 RNV{EMGE (&

(i) HURFEIEZEZHTE (F)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—BR FBIR FZBR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T B T T
As at 31 December 2015 RZZ—HF+-A=+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets: A HEMBEEE :
— Listed equity investments — ETRARE 2 - - 2
— Listed debt instruments —FmEBIA 354,495 - - 354,495
— Unlisted debt instruments —FLEmEFIA = 450 = 450
Financial assets at fair value BATERBS AR ZTBEE
through profit or loss:
— Listed equity investments — EmRAE 2,945 - - 2,945
— Listed debt instruments —FEBTIA 21,045 - - 21,045
— Unlisted debt instruments —FLEmEHIA - 26,281 - 26,281
378,487 26,731 - 405,218
As at 31 December 2014 RZE—MF+=A=1—H
Available-for-sale financial assets: At HEM K EE
— Listed equity investments — EmRARE 2 - - 2
— Listed debt instruments —EmEBIE 129,759 - - 129,759
— Unlisted debt instruments —JFLMmEBKIA - 450 - 450
Financial assets at fair value BATELSEE AR MBEE
through profit or loss:
— Listed equity investments — FTRARE 4,657 - - 4,657
— Listed debt instruments - EmEKIA 21,419 - - 21,419
— Unlisted debt instruments —JFELMmEBIA - 27,783 - 27,783
155,837 28,233 - 184,070

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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e M RAR MR

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.4 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

During the year, there were no transfers between
instruments in level 1 and level 2.

(a

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the date
of the statement of financial position. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1. Instruments
included in level 1 comprise primarily Hong Kong and
Dow Jones equity and debt investments classified as
trading securities or available-for-sale.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

(continued) (#)

4 BRERER(E)

4.4 NFEME (F)

(i)

HURFESEz2MT A (F)

REFE  E—EBRRE_ER
2Bz TRE MR-

(a)
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KAz HERENH -
IR BT 5 Ty A 8 5
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e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.4 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(ii) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other

than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments,
including non-current assets carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair values as at 31

December 2015 and 2014.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities)
is based on quoted market prices at the date of the
statement of financial position.The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price (i.e. level 1-highest level). The fair value of financial
instruments that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by

using valuation techniques.

The Group uses a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing
at each statement of financial position date. Quoted market
prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for
long-term borrowings. Other techniques, such as estimated
discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for

the remaining financial instruments.

The carrying values less allowance for impairment of
current receivables and of current payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. Estimated discounted
cash flows at the current market interest rate are used to
determine fair value for these financial instruments (i.e. level

3-lowest level).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group’s management makes assumptions, estimates and
judgements in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies that affect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses in the
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS.
The assumptions, estimates and judgements are based on historical
experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. While the management reviews their judgements,
estimates and assumptions continuously, the actual results will seldom
equal to the estimates.

Estimates and judgements are regularly evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The matters described below are considered to be the most critical
in understanding the estimates and judgements that are involved in
preparing the Group'’s consolidated financial statements.

(@) Estimation of impairment of investment accounted for
using the equity method and non-financial assets including
goodwill

The Group assesses whether investments in associates and
investment in joint venture have suffered any impairment in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 3(b) and
3(c). The recoverable amounts of investments in associates and
investment in joint venture have been determined based on
value in use calculations. These calculations require the use of
judgement and estimates, in particular of future revenue or cash
flow. Judgement is required by the directors to determine key
assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and changes
to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash flow
projections and therefore the results of the impairment reviews.

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment. Property, plant and equipment and goodwill
are also reviewed for possible impairments whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Determination as to whether and how
much an asset is impaired involves management estimates and
judgements such as future prices of natural gas and crude oil.
However, the impairment reviews and calculations are based on
assumptions that are consistent with the Group’s business plans.
Favourable changes to some assumptions may allow the Group
to avoid the need to impair any assets in these years, whereas
unfavourable changes may cause the assets to become impaired.

5

e IR R M
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(continued) (4&)

5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Estimation of impairment of investment accounted for
using the equity method and non-financial assets including
goodwill (Continued)

The Group relied on experts to assess the geological prospects for
the discovery of oil in the oilfield and estimated the value of oil to
be produced in the future at a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. For drilling costs and other exploration
and evaluation assets, the Group determined whether the related
well costs are expensed if it is determined that such economic
viability is not attained after performing further feasibility studies.
Judgement is required by the Board to determine key assumptions
adopted in the cash flow projections and changes to key
assumptions can significantly affect these cash flow projections
and therefore the results of the impairment reviews.

Estimation of useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and residual values for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technological advancement and
innovations in the natural gas industry. Management will adjust
the depreciation charge where residual values vary with previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic
review could result in a change in depreciable lives and residual
values and therefore depreciation in the future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimate of petroleum reserve

Estimates of petroleum reserves are key elements in the Group's
investment decision-making process. They are also an important
element in testing for impairment. Changes in total proved
plus probable petroleum reserves will affect unit-of-production
depreciation and depletion recorded in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for property, plant and equipment related
to oil and gas production activities. A reduction in proved plus
probable reserves will increase depreciation and depletion
charges. Petroleum reserve estimates are subject to revision, either
upward or downward, based on new information, such as from
development drilling and production activities or from changes
in economic factors, including product prices, contract terms or
development plans.

Estimate of natural gas consumption

Revenue for natural gas supply may include an estimation of
the natural gas supplied to the customers of which actual meter
reading is not available. The estimation is done mainly based on
the past consumption records and recent consumption pattern
of individual customers. As of the statement of financial position
date, the overall billed natural gas sales are in line with the natural
gas supplied to the customers.

e M HRAR MR

(continued) (#)
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(continued) (4&)

5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(e)

()

Estimation of impairment of available-for-sale financial
assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine
when an available-for-sale financial assets is impaired. This
determination requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment
is less than its cost; and the financial health of and short-term
business outlook for the investee, including factors such as
industry and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income
taxes in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions and
calculations during the ordinary course of business for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
When the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and
taxation charges in the period in which such estimate is changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue and segment information

The Group’s principal activities are the sales and distribution of
natural gas, crude oil and other related products and provision of
construction and connection services of gas pipelines in the PRC, and
the exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas in Canada.
Revenue for the year comprises the following:

e M RAR MR

(continued) (4)

EXRERDBER

SETENEHENRDHERAR KRBk
HBMERRRTPERERNRAEBZE
REBRE - ARENEXRARIREER
HERAR - FREXBABEATEIA

2015 2014
—B-HF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Sales and distribution of natural SHE MR R AR R EMABRAER
gas and other related products 6,052,178 6,296,143
Gas pipeline connection and MARE B R R ERB YA
construction services income 892,133 1,077,009
Revenue from exploitation and REFRRREERBR
production of crude oil and RARLZEHERE
natural gas 429,591 324,659
7,373,902 7,697,811
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6 Revenue and segment information (Continued)

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of performance focuses more specifically on sales of natural
gas, gas pipeline construction and connection; and exploitation and
production of crude oil and natural gas.

The Group has presented the following three reportable segments for
the year ended 31 December 2015:

—  sales and distribution of natural gas and other related products
- gas pipeline construction and connection
—  exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above
reportable segments.

The executive directors assess the performance of the business
segments based on profit before taxation without allocation of other
(losses)/gains, interest income, finance costs, share of (losses)/profits
of investments accounted for using the equity method, impairment of
non-financial assets, oil and gas properties under property, plant and
equipment, available-for-sale financial assets and other unallocated
corporate expenses, which is consistent with these in the consolidated
financial statements. Meanwhile, the Group does not allocate assets
or liabilities to its segments, as the executive directors do not use this
information to allocate resources to or evaluate the performance of
operating segment. Therefore, the Group does not report a measure of
segment assets and segment liabilities for each reportable segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided
to the executive directors for the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014 is set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

6 Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6 EEBROBER(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2015: HE_Z—RF+-A=1t—HIFE:
Sales and
distribution
of natural Gas pipeline  Exploitation and
gas and construction production of
other related and crude oil and
products connection natural gas Group
HERBX RRR
RAR N H RREE EERM
HEER BERER RARER &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TET TET

Segment revenue and results PBRAREE

Sales to external customers HINBEPHER 6,052,178 892,133 429,591 7,373,902
Segment results NEERE 323,492 441,958 26,129 791,579
Finance income FBBA 111,562
Other gains, net Hitlzs - 55 2,828
Finance costs H%ER (230,782)
Impairment losses on oil and WE - BERFEBET

gas properties under property, HREERERE

plant and equipment (507,441)
Share of losses of investments AEEREREANR

accounted for using the REEE

equity method (4,343)
Unallocated corporate expenses APEECERT (113,213)
Profit before taxation BREL AR A 50,190
Taxation I8 (20,857)

Profit for the year FRmET 29,333

FHRREBERAT 2015FF3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2014:

6 Revenue and segment information (Continued)

6

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS AR MR

(continued) (4&)

EXRBRDEER (&)

BE-T-—WE+=A=T—ALFRE -

Sales and
distribution
of natural Gas pipeline  Exploitation and
gas and construction production of
other related and crude oil and
products connection natural gas Group
THE R EEEE
RARKEA MEEE HER#
MR ER RERES RARAR 5B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET FHET THT
Segment revenue and results DTBRAREE
Sales to external customers INBEPIEEE 6,296,143 1,077,009 324,659 7,697,811
Segment results AEFE 378,941 482,491 60,871 922,303
Finance income FBWA 125,371
Other gains, net Hitfzs - 558 46,385
Finance costs BB (135,860)
Share of profits of investments AR AR EAR
accounted for using the ZRE G
equity method 7,716
Unallocated corporate expenses ADEEEHRS (111,752)
Profit before taxation BREtATR A 854,163
Taxation IR (217,565)
Profit for the year FRmH 636,598

No external customers of the Group contributed over 10.0% of the
Group's revenue for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

HE-_Z—AHAFE=-_ZZ—NF+=A
=+—HALEFE fSELREIBERFRE
B2 WA EEEE 10.0% ©
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e M HRAR MR

(continued) (#)

Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6 EEBROBER(E)
Analysis of the Group’s assets by geographical market for the years HE_T—hHAFRER_FT—NFE+=HA
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 is set out below: =+—HLFE SEEMEMSE S Z
BEZDWHINWT :
Assets BE
2015 2014
—E-AF e Sputics
Additions to Additions to
Total non-current Total non-current
assets assets assets assets
nE NE
BEE ERBEE BEE FrBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR FATL FAL
Hong Kong B 726,579 408 2,094,294 1,899
Mainland China B At 10,529,668 1,099,445 10,027,192 1,525,298
Canada JIEFN 2,092,584 687,545 2,646,141 323,840
Total A&t 13,348,831 1,787,398 14,767,627 1,851,037
Unallocated RO
Investments accounted for FREREARZ
using the equity method A 316,854 55,109
Deferred tax assets ELETREEE 16,735 5,643
Available-for-sale A HERSEE
financial assets 354,947 585,211
Financial assets at fair value BEATECER AR
through profit or loss ZITEEE 50,271 53,859
Total assets BEE 14,087,638 15,467,449

FHRREBER AR 2015FF3f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (4&)

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015

7 Other income 7 HAUgA
2015 2014
—Z-hfF —ZE—OF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Government subsidies BTG 11,738 27,724
Service income BRASUTA 5,408 8,296
Rental income WA 5,543 5,306
Dividend income from listed securities &% 2 B8 U A - 573
Others EAh 8,478 5,758
31,167 47,657
Other gains, net 8 Hibuhzk » B8
2015 2014
—ZT-hfF —ZE—OF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fair value losses on financial assets at XA ELES ARNGHEERN
fair value through profit or loss AN EEE (1,876) (237)
Gain/(losses) on disposals of financial ~ H&EZR AT ELESZARRN
assets at fair value through s EER, (&)
profit or loss 10 (8,021)
(Losses)/gains on disposals of HEREEEEE (BB) ke
available-for-sale assets (1,434) 17,146
Gain on bargain purchase (Note 33) B M (1sE33) 5,551 37,497
Others EoAh 577 4,045
2,828 50,430
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

Operating profit

Operating profit has been arrived after charging the following items:

TR LK 3L
R R

KNSR TFI%E

2015 2014
—E-AHF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAIT
Employee benefit expenses (Note 11):  EERAFAZ (FIzE11) : 343,380 327,357
Minimum lease payments under HE T REF 2 &K
operating leases for leasehold EETHENR
land and buildings 17,208 14,041
Cost of inventories recognised [T AR AN A e S AR
as expense 5,234,694 5,674,154
Auditors’ remuneration ZHEME
— Audit services — B AR 2,300 2,200
— Non-audit services — BT - 2,751
Depreciation and depletion Y - BE REETE
of property, plant and MABFE (MisE 16)
equipment (Note 16) 455,670 363,732
Amortisation of land use s AR S (P52 18)
rights (Note 18) 7,161 5,651
Amortisation of intangible m g EEE (i 19)
assets (Note 19) 1,666 1,442
Losses on disposals of property, HEME - BE K&
plant and equipment ZEE 5,847 547
Net exchange losses b 3 518 R 1,279 2,052
Impairment losses on oil and gas M BERZBEE NEREELZ
properties under property, B EE (fiFE16)
plant and equipment (Note 16) 507,441 -

FHRREBER AR 2015FF3f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

10 Finance income and costs

10 BWARER

2015 2014
—Z-hfF —ZE—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Finance income from: BRERARE :
Interest income on bank deposits HRITIFRZ F EWA 76,950 65,477
Loan to an associate BERTHE AR 33,406 58,878
(Note 23(c)) (B 23(0)
Loans to third parties (Note 23(c)) BERTFE=7 (MizE23() 1,206 1,016
111,562 125,371
Finance costs from: W BERRE
Interest expense on: MEEM :
Bank borrowings RITEE (70,061) (45,356)
Other borrowings HifEE (2,287) (23,855)
Senior notes BERE (272,150) (169,024)
Less: Amounts capitalised B BERNME R 113,716 102,375
(230,782) (135,860)
Net finance costs B 758 SRR (119,220) (10,489)

11 Employee benefit expenses, including directors’
emoluments

11 BEERARX  BRESHE

2015 2014

—E-EfF —E—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAxT

Salaries, wages and bonuses e TERES 285,987 278,712

Share awards A% (7 42 Eh 18,827 4,057
Pension costs — defined BIREKA

contribution plans — R EH-REE 38,469 44,529

Other benefits HAbiaF 97 59

343,380 327,357
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

11 Employee benefit expenses, including directors’ 1M EERAFAX  BFEE#HE

emoluments (Continued) (#&
(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) EEBEFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the EEFAREEaMEe 2 ATBE—
Group for the year include one (2014: one) directors whose HEF(ZZTE—OF: —F) EMe
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 12(a). EERMITE 12(a) 278 5T - FRE
The emoluments paid or payable to the remaining four (2014: NN THEHAREE (ZT—MNEF : 1
four) individuals during the year are as follows: H)ATH ST
2015 2014
—B-HF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAIT
Salaries, allowances and e R REYR
benefits in kind 6,721 4,058
Equity-settled share-based VAR 2= 45 B DA (0 A ELTR 2 5K
payments 8,652 5,629
Retirement benefits scheme RRENET SR
contributions 18 18
15,391 9,705
The number of employees whose remuneration fell within the BUATHESSE ZES ASMT :

following band was as follows:

Number of employees

EEAH

2015 2014

—E-AHF —T—mE

HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7% 3,000,000 % 7T - 4

HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 & T % 4,000,000 %5 7T 3 =

HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 7T % 5,000,000 77T 1 -
No emoluments were paid or payable to the directors and above HE—_Z—RAFKR_Z—NFE+_H
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join the Group or as =ST—HIEVBEERE  SEFTESA
compensation for loss of office during the financial years ended HEMNTANETFEER LS
31 December 2015 and 2014. MRS  ERBEHREMESEK

ER SRR 2 /1 -

FHRREBER AR 2015FF3f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (#&)

11 Employee benefit expenses, including directors’

emoluments (Continued)

(b) Senior management’s emoluments

Details of remuneration paid to members of senior management

fell within the following bands:

11

EERIFX BRESEH=

(&

(b)

BREERERSHMN

BUATHEHEENENEREREX
BHBNES

Number of employees

BEAE
2015 2014
—EB—FHF —E-lF
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 0/87C% 1,000,000/8 7T 10 =
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T 2,000,000 57T 1 7
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7T 4 3,000,000 87T = 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 7T = 4,000,000 /57T 7 8

HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000

4,000,001 % 7TE 5,000,000 % 7T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (4)

12 Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures 12 ESFmKRER (BB D a5
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong (56622F) %3831k ~ AR (K
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies BEENRER) (£5622GE)
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of FBILA R EFB EmR R ERIK
Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK &)

Listing Rules)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=EE&
Details of remuneration of directors for the year ended 31 HE-_Z—AF+_-_A=+—HItHF
December 2015 were as follows: EsEEMEFENT :
Salaries, Employer’s Equity-
allowances contribution to settled

and benefits a retirement share-based

Fees in kind  benefit scheme payments Total
e EH NRHEE
EHR RN R 5
ik EWAE TR ERZHR “m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TERT THERT THERT TET
Executive directors: HTES:
Xu Tie-liang (Chief TR
Executive Officer) (fTH8%,) 120 6,370 18 13,200 19,708
Cheung Shing ® K 120 - - - 120
Guan Yijun BEA 120 1,125 18 - 1,263
Zhu Yuan X R 120 68 - 372 560
Independent non- BYFHTES:
executive directors:
Shi Xun-zhi p& 120 - - - 120
Li Yun-long 3 120 - - - 120
Wang Guang-tian TEH 120 - - - 120
Total @5t 840 7,563 36 13,572 22,011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

12 Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures 12 ESF @ KER (82 aRA
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong (5£622F) %3831k + AR (K
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies EESHHmER) (6226 E)
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BHALREE EmHRNERE
Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK =)&)

Listing Rules) (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) E=M< (&)
Details of remuneration of directors for the year ended 31 HE-_ZT-—NFE+-_A=+—HItHF
December 2014 were as follows: EZzEZ=MEFELT
Salaries, Employer's Equity-
allowances  contribution to settled
and benefits a retirement share-based
Fees inkind  benefit scheme payments Total
¥é ExH Nigm s
IR RN AR B
ik BNz STEIAR B 253K fak
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT AT T TR
Executive directors: HITES:
Xu Tie-liang (Chief KR
Executive Officer) (1TH#H) 120 5,130 18 12,800 18,068
Cheung Shing KR 120 - = 1,891 2,01
Guan Yijun B 120 585 18 - 723
Zhu Yuan K E 120 1,063 - 1,101 2,284
Independent non- BYFHTES:
executive directors:
Shi Xun-zhi eilz 120 - - - 120
Li Yun-long FEY 120 - - - 120
Wang Guang-tian TEH 120 - - - 120
Total HE 840 6,778 36 15,792 23,446
No directors of the Company waived any emoluments and no MEAREZTRELMIE - SEIT
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors of the EREMNARESENME  ER#E
Company as an accepting office as director or as a compensation REFBML REIIBEEEERLZ
for loss of office as director. o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK
Listing Rules) (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking (2014: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to directors as compensation for the early
termination of the appointment during the year (2014: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making available
directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of directors
for making available the services of them as a director of the
Company (2014: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors during the year (2014: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year (2014: Nil).

e M RAR MR

(continued) (#)

12 ESNm K ER (BB AMEA
(58622F) 5383 1% ~ A (K

==
EE

EENHER) (£622GE)

RAILIK BB LR B RR

=) (&)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

EZRAKEF

EEVEAEAHEER AR KNENES
DA BTS2 A ARSI S S WUR
REN(ZF—0F : &) -

ESBEER

FA - WEAEEELIRAAKLLED
MEE(CT—mE &) -

REREERBEE=FZNHRE

T EREREFFER/RAEFREHED
R mAEAEEFERTR(ZF—M
FE) e

FHUES  ZEESENIEHZEE
RBEERRAZREANER  EERX
REMRZNER

FR-BENES  IRFEEZR
ZHEENBEERAREAZE
R EERREMR S (ZF M4
&)

EERRS  ZHIESHNERES

R BB AR B (AR B PR AT
EEMARREERNEPERAME
BEEMEAREEERXBEER
ZERXS RERAH(ZF—N
FE)
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13 Taxation

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
did not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong profits tax for
the year (2014: Nil).

In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income tax laws,
regulations and implementation guidance note, subsidiaries in
Mainland China are subject to the PRC corporate income tax rate at
25% (2014: 25%). Certain subsidiaries are entitled to tax concessions
and tax relief whereby the profits of those subsidiaries are taxed at a
preferential income tax rate of 15% (2014: 15%).

Taxation on overseas (other than Hong Kong and PRC) profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
applicable rates of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.

13

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

IR

HREERAFEY BERREIMELRE
%flJ’E%)fEZVE%)%iﬁTiﬂ IR E R E BT
SUIFREEA (T —mEF - &) -

RIBEERBEEEMERE - GO RERE
A R E AR KB A RE25% (=
T4 : 25%) 2T BB B EFRS
H-BTHWBRRAZEHBEEERES -
Bl ZEMBRRZHFAEEMBH
FHREN15% (ZF—MF : 15%) AFi -

BN (BR BB R BISN) i T5 A SR B AR &
FrERDEERERRITRERIZF ARG E
AR METERIA o

2015 2014
—E-HF —ET—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T

Current tax: EHITIIE
PRC corporate income tax A SRS 166,803 222,168
Overseas taxation YRINR IR 3,379 (28,089)
(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFE (B &), BHET R (5,376) 10,860
164,806 204,939
Deferred tax (Note 30) IRIER IR (MI7E30) (143,949) 12,626
Taxation A 20,857 217,565

There is no tax impact relating to components of other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

13 Taxation (Continued) 13 I8 (&)

S BIRR B AN F) 2 B0 TR S0 A O R & B s
MZMEFORERELEZERSBERN

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax

rate applicable to profits of the Group as follows:

T~

2015 2014

—B-HF —E-F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Profit before taxation R A% A& A 50,190 854,163

Tax calculated at the applicable rates 125 BF#% R AR [R 2 @ A

in the tax jurisdictions concerned MERAE 2 FE - 227,299
Tax effect of income not EEFBBAZ RIS E

subject to taxation (20,156) (51,028)
Tax effect of expenses not DB RS 2 &

deductible for tax purpose 41,417 51,949

Tax effect on change in tax rate MEEE) o B2 26,675 =

Tax effect of tax concessions BEME BT E (21,703) (21,515)

(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFEE (RS BETR (5.376) 10,860

Taxation TIE 20,857 217,565

The weighted average applicable tax rate is 41.6% (2014: 25.5%).
The increase is caused by a change in the profitability of the Group's

subsidiaries in the respective jurisdictions.

During the year, one of the tax jurisdiction’s corporate tax rate

increased from 25% to 26%.

ERMEFIEIRERA41.6% (—F—MO4F :
25.5%) * BiE LR AN EEKITEQRR
BRENBREEER 2 BN BB -

W — AR AR R O R B %

H25%38E26% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

14 Dividend 14 |RE
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT-F
HK$000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Final dividend proposed by way NGB IR R 3%
of bonus issue of one bonus —RRATRE 2 AR AT 2 =
share for every ten shares R AR HAAR B - 5,296
The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend in respect of EERTEEMEBE_ZE—HEt+t_8
the year ended 31 December 2015. =T —BUEFERMEMRS -
The bonus issue related to the year ended 31 December 2014 credited HBEE T NFEF+_A=+—BILFE
as fully paid by way of capitalisation of an amount of approximately BREANAKREITE AR RO RERS A
HK$5,296,000 in the share premium account of the Company. 81#95,296,000 /8 T FE RN 2 5 AR
TERILR ©
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15 (Losses)/earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic

The calculation of basic losses (2014: earnings) per share
is based on the Group’s loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$183,831,000 (2014: profit of
HK$308,650,000) and weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue less shares held under share award scheme
during the year of approximately 5,093,724,000 shares (2014:
4,950,778,000 shares).

Diluted

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts
presented for the year ended 31 December 2015 in respect of
a dilution as the impact of the shares held under share award
scheme outstanding during the year had an anti-dilutive effect on
the basic loss per share amounts presented.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, diluted earnings per
share is calculated based on the profit attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$308,650,000, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of approximately
4,982,548,000 shares which is the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue less shares held under share award
scheme during the year plus the weighted average number of
dilutive potential ordinary shares in respect of share options
of approximately 13,979,000 shares, share warrants of
approximately 15,930,000 and the effect of awarded shares
of approximately 1,861,000 shares deemed to be issued at no
consideration if all outstanding share options granted had been
exercised.

e M RAR MR

(continued) (#)

15 BR (B1R) BF

(a)

(b)

E= 98

RETESREAESE(ZZ—0NF : &
FEEER A RS AEIGEEEIE
#7183,831,0008 7L (=T —H4F : 4
#1308,650,000 % 7T) R FRE #H1TE
AR INAE T 19 B Rl = F NARIRAR (D 48
BhEtBIFTHE A1) ) 495,093,724,000 %
(== —PU4 : 4,950,778,000f%) °

#g

HRBE_Z-—AF+_A=+—H
LEFE A ARTITE R IR R 2R R
BN EMESNERERER
SHAGREEYE  ARHERE
AEESEEAELRHE -

REE-_ZT—NF+=_A=+—HL
FE - R ESREER TR THER
N A A A FE1h 4 T 47 308,650,000
BT R FAE BT ERINE T
474,982,548,000% A1 2 377 & A% N
T U AR IR I B2 E S P S
B& 17 I LBk AT R 17 (0 B8 AR i JE 77
MR RASREET 2 ELEE
8 A% N 19 E4Y 13,979,000 % -
RREAE A 15,930,000 {5 & 22 B A% 1D
491,861,000 g 2 S22 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS AR MR

(continued) (#&)

16 Property, plant and equipment 16 Y% - MERRME
Plantand  Oiland gas (Note (i) Construction
Buildings ~ machinery  properties Pipelines Others in progress Total
i) GE0)

BT HRREE RARME BE At ERIE it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TR AT THT TR TAT THT TR

As at 1 January 2014 R=E-ME-F-H

Cost A 495,128 691,237 - 1,741,973 407,828 1,210443 4,546,609
Accumulated depreciation ZETHTE (79,155)  (200,411) - (372,483)  (181,668) - (833,717)
Net book value FRFE 415,973 490,826 - 1369490 226,160  1,210443 3,712,892

Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z-ME+CR

=t-HLEE

At 1 January 2014 R=Z-MF—A—A 415973 490,826 - 1369490 226160 1210443 3,712,892
Currency realignment EHRe - - (196,634) - (36) - (196,670)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33(@)  KEEMIBAR (Fi3E33(a)) - - 2336388 - 274 - 2,336,662
Additions e 21,664 46520 315,940 18,073 40700 956,702 1,399,599
Transfers B 94,585 177,671 = 491,248 7,768 (771,272) -
Disposals ik (523) - - - (4,697) - (5,220)
Depreciation and depletion FRTERIER

for the year (24183)  (55771)  (138014)  (90,249)  (55,515) - (363,732
At 31 December 2014 R=B-mE+=A=+-H 507516 659,246 2,317,680 1788562 214,654 1395873 6,883,531
As at 31 December 2014 R=B-ME+=A=1-H
Cost AR 610854 915039 3040408 2,251,294 441580 1395873 8,655,048
Accumulated depreciation ZETERER

and depletion (103,338)  (255793)  (722,728)  (462,732)  (226,926) - (1,711,517)
Net book value REFE 507516 659,246 2317680 1,788,562 214654 1395873 6,883,531
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

perty, plant and equipment (Continued)

e R R AR M

(continued) (4)

16 M=~ BENRME (&)

Plantand Oil and gas

(Note (i) Construction

Buildings  machinery  properties  Pipelines Others in progress Total
BHR GEL)
BT BERRE RARNE EE .  ERIE st
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR THT TR TAT THET TR TAR
Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-E-1F
TZAZt-ALEFE
At 1 January 2015 N S e = 507,516 659,246 2,317,680 1,788,562 214654 1395873 6,883,531
Currency realignment EHRE (30,206)  (36,362)  (363,736)  (110483)  (11,393) (65185  (617,365)
Acquisition of businesses (Note 33(b))  UiE& 2 (Hi3 33(b)) - - 3178 - - - W18
Additions NE 14,448 4,827 185,113 7,858 15,285 603,305 830,836
Transfers Y 86,768 77,839 - 477,785 20535  (662,927) -
Disposals & (1,561) (30,968) - (1,656) (1,938) - (36,123)
Depreciation and depletion for the year  ERFTER £ (30,409) (50,916)  (225,944) (102,250 (46,151) - (455,670)
Impairment (Note (iv)) 8 (P () - - (507,441) - - - (507,441)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RAF+-A=+-H 546,556 623,666 1,843,445 2,059,816 190,992 1,271,066 6,535,541
As at 31 December 2015 RZE-EF+-A=t-H
Cost A 671,133 913,644 3,123,650 2,564,223 440,124 1,271,066 8,983,840
Accumulated depreciation, ZitHTE  BERAE
depletion and impairment (124,577)  (289,978) (1,280,205)  (504,407)  (249,132) - (2,448,299
Net book value REFE 546,556 623,666 1,843,445 2,059,816 190,992 1,271,066 6,535,541
Notes: L

(ii)

Others mainly represent motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures and equipment,
and tool and moulds with net book values amounting to approximately
HK$86,102,000 (2014: HK$119,422,000), HK$58,029,000 (2014:
HK$47,443,000) and HK$46,861,000 (2014: HK$47,789,000) respectively.

Depreciation and depletion of approximately HK$432,182,000
(2014: HK$339,006,000), HK$2,399,000 (2014: HK$1,376,000) and
HK$21,089,000 (2014: HK$23,350,000) have been charged in cost
of sales, selling and distribution costs and administrative expenses
respectively.

(i)

EMmEEERE B BEERRK
HERERIAEUNERER: REFED
#) %86,102,000% L( = T — M@ F :
119,422,000 7t ) * 58,029,000 7T ( =
T4 : 47,443,000/5 7T) 546,861,000
BT (ZZ—P4 : 47,789,000/ 7T) °

& & 18 #F 49432,182,000 t( = T
— P44 : 339,006,000 7T ) ~ 2,399,000
Bt (=ZF — 4 : 1,376,000 Jt )
%.21,089,000% T( = T — M £ :
23,350,00087T) A RIRIHEKA - SHE R
R AN RATH A PR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (4&)

16 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs amounting to
HK$113,716,000 (2014: HK$102,375,000) on qualifying assets. Borrowing
costs were capitalised at the weighted average rate of its general
borrowings of 5.7% (2014: 6.3%).

As a result of the decrease in forward benchmark crude oil prices in 2015,
an impairment test on the Group’s oil and gas properties was performed.
The recoverable amount of oil and gas properties is determined at the
fair value less costs of disposal using a discounted cash flow method
and is assessed at the cash generating unit (“CGU") level. The fair value
measurement of the Group’s oil and gas properties is designated Level 3
on the fair value hierarchy.

The key assumptions for the calculation are those regarding the discount
rates, and expected changes in future oil prices. The expected future
oil prices for the next five years range from US$44.0 to US$70.0 per
barrel. Forecast benchmark crude oil price assumptions tend to be stable
because short-term increases or decreases in prices are not considered
indicative of long-term price levels, but are nonetheless subject to change.
The Group used a pre-tax discount rates ranging from 8% to 20% to
discount future cash flows from the Group’s CGUs. These rates differ
based upon classification of reserve type, commodity type, timing of future
development expenditures and operating burdens.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group determined that the carrying
amounts of the CGUs amounting to approximately HK$2,421,267,000
exceeded their fair value less costs of disposal amounting to approximately
HK$1,913,826,000. Accordingly, an impairment loss of HK$507,441,000
was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Changes in any of the key judgements and assumptions, such as a
downward revision in reserves, a decrease in forecast benchmark crude
oil prices, changes in foreign exchange rates, an increase in royalties or an
increase in operating costs would decrease the recoverable amounts of
the oil and gas properties and any impairment charges would affect profit
or loss for the year. At 31 December 2015, 1% increase in the assumed
discount rate would result in an additional impairment of approximately
HK$117,730,000, while a 5% decrease in the forecast operating
cash flows would result in an additional impairment of approximately
HK$95,770,000. An increase in discount rate and decrease in forecast
operating cash flows would result in an additional impairment of
HK$208,010,000.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015

16 M=%~ MENRME (&)

BsE : (&)

(iii)

(iv)

FR SEREAEREEEALLEES
X 74~113,716,000%8 7t( = & — I & :
102,375,000 7T ) ° fE B AN R E — &
BEEMNEFHLEERS 7% (ZE—NF :
6.3%) BARA(L ©

R -AFEHREERBMETLK &
SE A RRARYELET TIRmER -
AHRRARDENATRE SR TIEAF
BERHEXRANERFTRASREEETE
WitReELEM([REELEM]) BER
AHh o KRES A RRXARYEN A FE
AEEERATEERNE=E -

ZETE R ANEIEREATBERE BEH
MNIBEE( - RERAFNBBRBEHEN
T EiRBaE2440ETLET0.05E T © A
EERBESBRIBE  ARNESEHEA
N BRI NE A RERKENEEZ - |/
NeEs - EEFERN T8%E20% MR
AITIRRNBEBMIR S EAEMAARRE
SRE RSN ERENFEEL BB
Al KRR HAORERES B ENS
1t o

R-T—FHE+-_A=+—0 £EHET
HeEABMWREMEL2,421,267,000
BITHBEHEAFERLEEKEXLD
1,913,826,0008 L - At - REBEE=-F
—AFE+_A=+—BLEEABRRE
58 507,441,0008 7T °

FREZHE RBRNEE  WEERT
1B5T - BRAEEFAE T  EREE .
155 FA B 3 DN SR AR & AR AN IS < A0l RR
SRR B A UK Bl IR A R AT AR E S
P EFRBRS  RZT—AF+=A
=+—H ' BEFEE EF1% 155 BEEN
TR{EZI117,730,00078 7T © MIBAILERE
MR 5% 1 5| BEEINRIEA795,770,000
B TR EARBALERESRER
i1 3| BUEB SMNE{E 208,010,000 8 7T ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17 Exploration and evaluation assets

18

e IR R M

(continued) (#)

17 R EE

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—UE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Cost D%

At 1 January R—H—H 222,655 -
Currency realignment BEAz (38,175) (17,768)

Acquisitions of W%, MB AR (MiEE33)
businesses/subsidiaries (Note 33) 46,262 238,087
Additions NE 18,397 2,336
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H 249,139 222,655

Exploration and evaluation assets represent the Group’s costs of
acquiring licenses and interests in undeveloped lands in West Central
Alberta, Canada, which are pending the determination of proven or
probable oil and gas reserves. The costs are accumulated in cost centers
by well, field, or exploration area pending determination of technical
feasibility and commercial viability.

The technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting mineral
resource is considered to be determined when proven reserves are
determined to exist. A review of each exploration license or field is
carried out, at least annually, to ascertain whether proven reserves have
been discovered.

Land use rights

MREFEEEREERINE AN B AE
B TED RGBT A FF AT B R s R
A AfFEEERB RFERAHR
E - BERAEBBT  m AR EE
AL RTE - FEERM kB EATT
1 o

EETFERARFER  AREEERN
RMNEEATERRREEE - E08
FUZYHRFA FE OB B ETRE - R
ERCHREARE -

18 =+ ithf FAHE

2015 2014
—B-HF —EME
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FHT

Net book value BREFE
At 1 January n—A—H 253,663 192,365
Currency realignment R (16,042) =
Additions NE 83,553 66,949
Amortisation for the year F B (7,161) (5,651)
At 31 December ®nt+—-—A=+—8H 314,013 253,663

FHRREBER AR 2015FF3f
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e MR MR

(continued) (#&)

19 Intangible assets 19 B EE
Other
(Note) intangible
Goodwill assets Total
(B &E) Hith
e BREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT FH&T BT
As at 1 January 2014 R=—Z—NFE—H—H
Cost R AR 1,043,478 31,369 1,074,847
Accumulated amortisation EFHE#E - (2,620) (2,620)
Net book value BREFE 1,043,478 28,749 1,072,227
Year ended 31 December 2014 BHE=-ZT P4

+T-A=1+—HLFE
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—NF—HA—H 1,043,478 28,749 1,072,227
Additions INE - 1,127 1,127
Amortisation for the year FANEH = (1,442) (1,442)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NFE+=—A=+—H 1,043,478 28,434 1,071,912
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE-—NE+=-A=+—H
Cost B 1,043,478 32,496 1,075,974
Accumulated amortisation RET R - (4,062) (4,062)
Net book value BREFE 1,043,478 28,434 1,071,912
Year ended 31 December 2015 ®BHE-ZT—FH&F
+=A=+-— Emﬁg

At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—R&— 1,043,478 28,434 1,071,912
Currency realignment Bz (23,825) (1,665) (25,490)
Additions NE - 10,920 10,920
Amortisation for the year F N - (1,666) (1,666)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+=A=+—H 1,019,653 36,023 1,055,676
As at 31 December 2015 R-ZE-—HF+=A=+—H
Cost [DE 1,019,653 41,751 1,061,404
Accumulated amortisation RETEEH - (5,728) (5,728)

Net book value BREFE 1,019,653 36,023

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Intangible assets (Continued)

Note:

Goodwill is allocated to a group of CGUs identified for sales and distribution
of natural gas and other related products business, which is also an operating
segment, representing the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes.

The recoverable amount of the group of CGUs is determined from value in use
calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling
prices and direct costs during the year. Management estimates a discount rate of
11.2% (2014: 11.5%) using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to this group of CGUs. The
growth rate of 3.0% (2014: 3.0%) for the next five years are based on industry
growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past
practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

The value in use calculations is derived from cash flow projections based on the
most recent financial budgets for the next 5 years approved by management.
Cash flows beyond 5-year period have been extrapolated using growth rates of
3.0% (2014: 3.0%) per annum, which is based on industry growth forecasts. The
Board considered no impairment loss is necessary as at 31 December 2015.

In sales and distribution of natural gas and other related products business, the
recoverable amount calculated based on value in use exceeded carrying value by
HK$10,282,338,000. An increase in discount rate to 21.0% or growth rate for
the next five years become -21.6% would remove the headroom.

19

e M RAR MR

(continued) (#)

BVEE (&)

GEE

BB DRI RHE R %%ﬁ&ﬁwm@
EBABMNN— AR EEEM (T2 —
DEB ﬁ%lﬁW%M@EMWHﬁﬁém
H&REER) -

w%
HY I ”D

BB EABN 2 AT Bl B IRBEREE
MmetE - FARBEEZBRESSRFATEE
BREREEREERAZBHES - EREEF
AREZ MBI HESREEERZERSE
EBEMETRABRZBEAMEGBNEE11.2%
(ZZE—WF :11.5%) c RKRAF3.0% (=
—PO% :3.0%) ZEERDERTEZLRTEA -
EEREERAESH HENEMSRRES 2B

B RIEH -

EAEBEEHEDREEEBAFORRAFEANRK
e FHAEMEL RS REBFRITEME
BESFNRESRECAREF3.0%(ZF—H
F 3.0%) KPR REHER - WHERTEERTE
A BXERRBA/AN_Z-—AF+_A=+—H8"
W R HRERR -

HERDPHAARREGMHEBERELH
AhEsERFEAEERHERENEZE
10,282,338,000,%71; B REEFAFE21.0%
UAKAFRNIEERA-21.6% B HEBREE -

Investments accounted for using the equity 20 EAERZEARZERE
method
The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial REFEHBARRRERZ ST -
position are as follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —PE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Associates i Al/NG] 274,008 4,650
Joint venture SR 42,846 50,459
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 316,854 55,109

FHRREBER AR 2015FF3f
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e BT R R M

(continued) (4&)

20 Investments accounted for using the equity 20 ERAERZEARZKRE (/&)

method (Continued)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated profit or loss are as

follows:
2015 2014
—E-EfF —ZT—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T T
Associates iG] 794 (1,512)
Joint venture aEbE (5,137) 9,228
For the year ended 31 December HE+_A=+—HILFE (4,343) 7,716

Interests in associates

Nature of investments in associates, which are unlisted limited liability
companies, as at 31 December 2015:

P14

AR £

al

R-Z—RE+-A=+—H RBEEA
ARk EMERAT)EAZIE

Percentage of

Registered Country of Principal interest held
Name capital establishment activities indirectly
BEGEES
=L EfEAR R ZBR FEXK BoL
F3E R A H R m B4 RMB20,000,000 PRC Trading of natural gas 30%
RARABRAA] AER# 20,000,000 7T H AAREE
("EmEEHE")
5 HRIPEER RMB20,000,000 PRC Trading of natural gas 49%
BRAF] A% 20,000,000 7T i ARREE
(“RIBREIR")
Sino Director Limited Us$10,000 BVI Investment holding 25%
(Note 21) 10,000 37T RERARES REREK
(Bf=E21)

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015



Interests in associates (Continued)

20 Investments accounted for using the equity
method (Continued)

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the
associates which are accounted for using the equity method.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR MR

(continued) (4)
20 ERAEREARZIRE (&)

R AR ()

TXHINEREREARZBE AR
BEMBE -

2015 2014
—E-afF —E—UE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Assets: BE :
— Non-current assets —IEmEBEE 1,502,572 9,860
— Current assets —mENEE 23,359 10,550
1,525,931 20,410
Liabilities: afE
— Non-current liabilities —EREBEE 8,400 =
— Current liabilities —nREEE 4,622 4,910
Net assets BESE 1,512,909 15,500
Revenue T 50,459 20,207
Expenses sz (48,209) (26,807)
Profit/(loss) before taxation B ATEA, (E51E) 2,250 (6,600)
Income tax (expense)/credit FriSHt (FX), /#8R (661) 1,560
Profit/(loss) and total FREF(EE) &
comprehensive 2 EME(EE)
income/(loss) for the year Rk 1,589 (5,040)

FHRREBER AR 2015FF3f
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e BT R R M

(continued) (4&)

20 Investments accounted for using the equity 20 FRAERZEARZERE ()
method (Continued)
Set out below are the reconciliation of the summarised financial DA &5 B 2 3 01 75 4 B E 38 B H A B
information presented to the carrying amount of its interest in associates NaElEmREE . R
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
Opening net assets 1 January R—A—BOHEEFE 1,513,774 20,540
Profit/(loss) for the year FRRF(EE) 1,589 (5,040)
Currency translation differences BEEME =R (2,454) =
Closing net assets EHREESFE 1,512,909 15,500
Carrying amount BREE 274,008 4,650
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interests in WiEmEEFENEE NG ESERB 2 AA
the associates. & o
Interest in a joint venture REEbEER
2015 2014
—2-n% —T-me
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FBT
Share of net assets: FEIEEEFE
At 1 January w—A—H 50,459 41,231
Currency realignment ERETAE (2,476) =
Share of (loss)/profit of EE—RAE % (BE), #F
a joint venture (5,137) 9,228
At 31 December Wt+=ZHA=+—H 42,846 50,459

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 Investments accounted for using the equity

method (Continued)

Nature of investment in a joint venture, which is a private limited
company, as at 31 December 2015:

e IR R M

(continued) (#)

20 EREREARCIRE (F)

RZB-—RAF+-A=+—H REED
X (RILEERARDKREZME :

Percentage of

Registered Country of Principal interest held
Name capital establishment activities indirectly
ME®SEER
=L AfER R ZBIR FTEEH Bl
L PE B B R RMB 100,000,000 PRC Trading of coalbed methane 35%
BERBRAF AR 100,000,000 7T i REREE

The following amounts represent the Group’s 35% share of the assets
and liabilities, and revenue and results of the joint venture for the year
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014:

AT2BABE_TAFR_T—OF
T-A=+T-"BLEEKEEEEELE
LEERAE  EXBRFEHEZ235% :

2015 2014
—E-HfF —=—mE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHxT FHT
Assets: BE -
— Non-current assets —IERENEE 393,243 371,415
— Current assets —RENEE 56,257 49,077
449,500 420,492
Liabilities: a&:

— Current liabilities —mEaE 327,083 276,323
Net assets BEFE 122,417 144,169
Revenue e 392,763 750,443
Expenses sz (406,200) (723,646)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BELAT (E518) 2 F (13,437) 26,797
Income tax FiSHt 303 (431)
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive  FER (E518) %5 &

(loss)/income for the year 2 (E18) /WS a5 (13,134) 26,366

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in the

joint venture.

TREARERA SO ERS AR ARE
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e B RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

21 Available-for-sale financial assets 21 AHHEKEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Equity securities: RAFE S
— listed outside Hong Kong —HBIN ET 2 2
— unlisted outside Hong Kong (Note) — BB LASNE L () - 455,000
Debt securities: BEES
— listed in Hong Kong — BB LW 325,604 108,485
— listed outside Hong Kong — BB ET 28,891 21,274
— unlisted —JEEm 450 450
354,947 585,211
At the date of the statement of financial position, all the listed equity MR ERRKBE B ETIRARE
and debt securities are stated at fair values. FEBEE AN FETER °
The carrying amounts of the available-for-sale financial assets are AIHHEVEEERBENATERE :

denominated in the following currencies:

2015 2014
—EB-AF —E-lF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Renminbi AR#E - 457,020
uss$ ETT 354,945 128,189
Others Efth 2 2
354,947 585,211

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the statement of financial R A e ZE8RMB A5 E

position date is the carrying value of the debt securities classified as AuHEHEEERESZERE

available-for-sale.
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21 Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014, except for the unlisted equity securities
outside Hong Kong amounted to HK$455,000,000, the available-for-
sale financial assets are pledged as a security for the Group’s banking
facilities (Note 34).

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group entered into an agreement
(the “Agreement”) with controlling shareholders of Sino Director Limited (the
“Controlling shareholders”) to acquire additional interests in Sino Director
Limited (the “Target Company”) for a total consideration of HK$265,000,000
(the “Additional Shares”). After the acquisition of the Additional Shares, the
Group's interest in the Target Company has increased from 8% to 20% and
HK$190,000,000 to HK$455,000,000, respectively.

The current volatile market and decline in commodity prices have impacted
the Target Company's future business plans. In light of this, the Controlling
shareholders pursued to continue with the Group’s business alliance and
support to its future business plans, the Controlling shareholders and the
Group have entered into an agreement in December 2015, where the Group's
remaining consideration payable to the Controlling shareholders amounting to
HK$197,750,000 for the Additional Shares is waived, and the Group is given
a further interest of 5% in the Target Company. Consequently, the Group’s
interest in the Target Company has increased from 20% to 25% and it has
become an associate of the Group.

The above transactions have been conducted and accounted for based on the
fair values of the interests in the Target Company, there was no overall impact to
the Group's consolidated profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 as
a result of the above arrangements.

Based on this agreement, the Group's interest in the Target Company which
was accounted for as an available-for-sale financial asset in previous years was
derecognised and accounted for as an interest in an associate as at 31 December
2015. A business valuation was performed for the underlying business of the
Target Company where the recoverable amount and the carrying amount have
no material difference. No profit or loss was recognised in the consolidated profit
and loss during the year ended 31 December 2015.

The recoverable amount is determined from value in use calculation. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculation are discount rates and forecasted
commodity prices. Management estimates a discount rate of 12.6% using a
pre-tax rates that reflects current market assessment of time value of money.
The commodity price growth rate of 3.0% used in the calculations is based on
inflation growth forecasts. The Board considered no impairment loss on the
Group's investment in associate is necessary as at 31 December 2015.

The assumptions used in the value in use calculation are highly judgemental,
and heavily dependent on the discount rate used and commaodity price forecast.
For example, if the discount rate increases by 0.1% or the commodity price
growth rate decreases by 0.1% with other variables remain constant, any of
such changes if adopted, would reduce the recoverable amount as determined
by the value in use calculation to approximate the carrying value of the Group's
investment in the Target Company.

e IR R M

(continued) (#)

21 EHEMBEE (&)

R-ZE—MNE+-_A=1+—8  BEBMN
SNEYIE TR AN EE %52 455,000,000 7T 5h
AHEEHBEETANER  (EAEER
TTERE ROIEHR (Fi7E34) -

ff

REBEE-_T-—HNF+_A=+—HLEE &£
B #Sino Director Limited KRR A% ([122p%
BRRDITZ—mwmzE(&HaEl)  KeKRE
265,000,000 % 7T Y& Sino Director Limited ([ B
ZAA)]) REEIMER ([ F8IMNRD 1) o EBEEINIR
0% SEREERGINEREHE% EE20%
K 1 190,000,000 % JT I %= 455,000,000 # 7T

w

BATTIS K E REmER TKREH B IZARMNR
REBFTEERTZE - BERIL - ERBRFEHS
BECSENERHBARYERREBTENX
B OERBRREEBRRN —E—RFE+ = A5 —
D - IR - SEBEINED BT TR R
##2 TH{B 197,750,000 TE#E + BEBE#
—SERBIERTINS5%E - Fitk - EENAE
ZNEIHAERSH20% B = 25% KM AK A S B M2
AF] o

iz ZEETRIBER B RABNERN AT
EHfR - BERE LR e EREBE—_T—AF
T A=t BLFENGABEREKERY
2,

BREZHZE  SENRERAANRERE (NBESF
EARIIEATHEENBEE) 2 BUBERRR
“E-AF+ A=+ BARIMEREE QT
i o EHERRAMABERETEBGEE
Al EeEERREYEEAER - HEEE
BERRNBE_T-AF+-_A=t—"HLFEN

fRefRE -

A B R R E R EESEmEE - EHAE
Bt E2ARBRBTRERARNERER - B
BB A RRE T ST h B SR REEE A
FEBEAFIRE12.6% ° sHEPRAHERER
BEX30% DERNBRERRA R-_T—H
FH_A=1—H EZ2RREERNMEAQF
BV A I AR A R R E A -

FREEHEMANRE S RSEHE  WikA
BURRFT T35 R K pE fn B TR o BlA - T
BEEA01% K mERIERETF0.1% » &
AT R EEFTE - EAZEEE (WNFER) 1
CLREAEBETEETHAKRESEEREHE
EREEZARMNRENREEES °
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e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

22 Inventories 22 &
2015 2014
—E—fE —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT
Raw materials Rt 40,985 51,595
Work-in-progress IR 77,951 43,287
Finished goods and natural gas 2K R RAR 82,534 100,721
201,470 195,603

23 Deposits, trade and other receivables

23 % - EH REMEBRFIE

2015 2014
—E-AfF —ZE—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
Trade receivables (Note (b)) EC ) ESAGE() 803,503 758,349
Loan to an associate (Note (c)) BT R A () 445,364 347,674
Loans to a third parties (Note (c)) ERTE=7H (M) 54,000 25,400
1,303,367 1,131,423
Prepaid construction costs TR AR 101,202 153,770
Prepayment for acquisition LS8 + 3 (55 FREFE T 3R
of land use rights 175,232 191,045
Prepayment for acquisition e ESEINEN
of properties 74,239 78,570
Prepaid natural gas costs B RARKA 171,869 243,530
Prepaid material and equipment costs  FEfIA L K 2R AR 97,415 143,295
Interest receivables YA B, 147,121 113,359
Other prepayments HAb B 108,588 137,857
Other receivables H A FEGR 288,459 250,251
2,467,492 2,443,100
Less: Non-current portion R« 3EREIF D (904,806) (968,436)
Current portion mENE D 1,562,686 1,474,664
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23 Deposits, trade and other receivables
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The Board considers that the carrying amounts of deposits, trade and other
receivables approximate their fair values as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

At each date of the statement of financial position, the Group’s allowance
for impairment of trade receivables will individually be determined based
on the credit history of its customers, such as financial difficulties or
default in payments, and current market conditions. Consequently, specific
impairment allowance will be recognised.

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 60 to 90 days to
its trade customers and keeps monitoring its outstanding trade receivables.
Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior management of the
Group.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

e MR HRAR MR

(continued) (4)

23 B - EFREMEWRIR

(&

MiaE

(a) HARFTEFELITERN EZRRR &
& EHREMERFAZRAERRELR
FEMRE -

(b) MREREHBHRAREE SEHEZREEE
FRERBHREETPHERESL (Y
TSR B sl R 300D RIRTT T 35 (4 1B 51| 28
JE o Bt - HERERIRERE -

SERTESEP 2 FHEEHMN F60R
E0HZME  WEATEEZER N RERZ
BHERPER SESREEEENEN
BHRIE 2 KE8A o

RIFERHHNE ZRUEERRZ R DT

I
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Up to 3 months =1ER AR 722,367 678,647
3 to 6 months =@AZE~EA 31,031 29,129
Over 6 months NEA A E 50,105 50,573
Total A5 803,503 758,349

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of approximately
HK$81,136,000 (2014: HK$79,702,000) that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent customers for whom there
is no recent history of default. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in their credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

R-ZZE—RE+=-_A=+—8 cafE
RRERE FFEWERF A 81,136,000 8 7T
(ZZ—mm4 : 79,702,000 7T ) B3 HASY
EENTHNBEBIZSAR - RIZA
FER TEERE MAXSEHKRIEN
BERERE  NEREEEENESEX
BERERDE AT 2HKE - £EIE
BEEMERRIEMBBZEEH2E
BYE -
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e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

23 Deposits, trade and other receivables
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

M (%)

23 B B REMEWIR

(&

() Loans to third parties comprised of the followings: (0 EBERFE=ZABIEAT:

(i) On 23 September 2011, the Group entered into a loan agreement i) RZZE——FNA=-_+=H £FH
with an associate for an interest no more than 2.5% of committed Bt ARG BRI - FIETEER
loan amount. As at 31 December 2015, the Group loaned to an AAEBMEEZ25%  R_FT—AHF
associate amounted to approximately HK$445,864,000 (2014: +—A=+—H £8MR¥KZEAA
HK$347,674,000) for the construction of assets. The amount is B 3K #445,864,0007 0 ( =& —
interest bearing at 6.0% per annum. & 1 347,674,000/ 70) © BIEEE

R RIERFENE6.0% 1 H o
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the interest income arising BE_Z—RFE+_-_A=+—8H
from this arrangement amounting to HK$33,406,000 (2014: HEFE HWEZHENFBEKAL
HK$58,878,000). 33,406,000% T( = & — @ £ :

58,878,000/ 7T ) °

(i)  On 1 December 2015, the Group loaned to a third party amounted (i) RZZBE—AF+=—_A—H &£E@E—
to approximately HK$30,000,000 (2014: Nil) for 3 years. The %% = 875/ #730,000,000/8 7T (=
amount is interest bearing at 8.0% per annum. T—F: &) RE=F - BAR

ERFFE8.0%FME ©
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the interest income arising REBE_ZT—RF+_A=+—81t
from this arrangement amounting to HK$214,000 (2014: Nil). FE ELEEBRTHENNERAR
214,000 BT (=T —PU4 : &) -

(i)  The remaining balance represented a loan to another third party (i) BTEBRABEITFR—FE=FUIE
to support the third party’s acquisition of natural gas friendly FZEZTBEERAREH - ZEHE
vehicles. The loan to the third party is unsecured, interest bearing at =HERDERR  RFNEL40%
4.0% per annum and repayable annually in five equal installments FEYR-_Z—RNENA+—BH
by 11 August 2016. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the NEF—H HsFHEE -B#E_-T
interest income arising from this loan to a third party amounting to —hF+ZA=+—HIFE F=
HK$992,000 (2014: HK$1,016,000) (Note 10). 7 ERRE £ RS A % 992,000 8

JTL(=Z—M% : 1,016,000 7T ) (B
#£10) °
(d) The carrying amounts of the deposits, trade and other receivables are (d) e  BHREAMBERKIEZETENA
denominated in the following currencies: TE¥BEE -
2015 2014
—E-4fF —ZTmE
HK$000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT

Renminbi ARHE 2,356,836 2,341,876

CAD iz 43,641 72,653

Others Hih 67,015 28,571

2,467,492 2,443,100
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR HRAR MR

(continued) (#)

24 Financial assets at fair value through profit or 24 BAFELERARZUEE
loss =
2015 2014
%% —= e
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FT
Equity securities: IRAE S
— listed in Hong Kong —&BLEm 2,945 =
— listed outside Hong Kong — BN ET - 4,657
2,945 4,657
Debt securities: EBES
— listed outside Hong Kong — BB £ 21,045 21,419
— unlisted —JFEm 26,281 27,783
50,271 53,859

The carrying amounts of the financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are denominated in the following currencies:

BAVEKBRARZUBEEZREE

RATIIEEEHE

2015 2014

—E-AE —E—E

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

us$ T 47,325 49,202
Others Hi 2,946 4,657
50,271 53,859

147

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the statement of financial RIBERRARBENRXEERB AED B
position date is the carrying value of debt securities classified as BEATELES ARNESESNER
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. =N

BRAFTEKEBEZEARNTKEET NG
A EAREERITREE KT (M 28 &
34) °

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are pledged as a
security for the Group's banking facilities (Notes 28 and 34).

FHRREBER AR 2015FF3f
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e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

25 Time deposits, bank balances and cash 25 EHIFER - RITEHRRRE
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Cash at banks and on hand RARFERE 2,106,904 2,394,584
Short-term bank deposits REIRIT R 412,800 1,270,712
2,519,704 3,665,296
Less: Time deposits with maturity o FREEA=EAN
over three months TEHITER (216,000) (973,739)
Cash and cash equivalents RekFEFEER 2,303,704 2,691,557
The interest rates for short-term bank deposits was approximately HHRTERANEMNENFTLH28%E
2.8% t0 4.2% (2014: 2.7% to 4.2%) per annum. The deposits have a 42% (ZZF—MF :27%24.2%) > FK
maturity of ranging from 90 to 365 days. HANFI0HZE365H °
Included in bank deposits, bank balances and cash are amounts of IRTTER - RITAERR IR £491,824,940,000
approximately HK$1,824,940,000 or RMB1,520,783,000 (2014: BTl A RE 1,520,783,000 70 ( ZZF— P04 :
HK$1,567,000,000 or RMB1,234,000,000) denominated in Renminbi 1,567,000,0007% 7T sk A & # 1,234,000,000
which are deposited with banks in Mainland China. The conversion T0) HAAREETE - WFR A B A AR
of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign currencies and 17 o ZE AR ETELES E B INE Rt
the remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules B (A9 b, FEE & < 78 38 5T R B IR T 28 40 Y S NEE
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC BEIEREHIE -
Government.
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25 Time deposits, bank balances and cash

26

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the time deposits, bank balances and cash are

denominated in the following currencies:

e MR HRAR MR

(continued) (4)

EMER  RITEGRREE

(&

EMFER  ROTEHRBASZ ZEEEAT
SIEREEHE

2015 2014
—E-AfF —Z—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Renminbi AR 2,041,320 2,804,454
us$ =1 324,001 753,578
HK$ BTT 56,360 12,640
Others Hth 98,023 94,624
2,519,704 3,665,296

Trade and other payables 6 BEREMENEIE
2015 2014
—E-AF —T—mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Trade payables B IR 670,774 662,265
Consideration payables ERRE 18,400 250,020
Construction cost payables FERTEERR AN AR 201,167 328,300
Interest payable FERTFILE 46,135 44,942

Dividends payable to FET FEHERR

non-controlling interests R E 128,159 61,127
Salaries payables e 5,834 28,871
Accrued employee benefits fERHEE R - 49,545
Other taxes payable Hip I8 28,472 33,651
Other payables and accruals HAfERRIE R T & A 277,479 221,759
1,376,420 1,680,480

FHRREBER AR 2015FF3f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R M
(continued) (#)

26 Trade and other payables (Continued) 26 EZ R EHMBETRIE (&)

EXZRRAR BEZREMENFEZER

The Board considers that the carrying amounts of trade and other

payables approximate their fair values.

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date is as
follows:

BEEENFERS °

REZZAHNESENERZKEDT

T -

2015 2014

—Z—hfF —ZT—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

Up to 3 months =EAAR 565,916 554,963
3 to 6 months =BAZEEA 45,933 37,651
Over 6 months NER LA E 58,925 69,651
Total &5 670,774 662,265

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are denominated in

BHREMENFBENREENTIEE

the following currencies: =HE :
2015 2014
—E-HF —Z—OF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Renminbi AR 1,237,561 1,174,101
HK$ PSIT 53,550 372,812
CAD i 85,309 133,567
1,376,420 1,680,480

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

27 Receipt in advance 27 FEWIE
2015 2014
—ZE-HF —E-F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Receipt in advance for sales of natural  SHE&R AR & E A FEEEZE a2 FEUEIE

gas and other related products 953,875 983,259
Receipt in advance for connections MRE BER 2 Bk RIE

of gas pipelines 135,832 245,850

1,089,707 1,229,109
As at 31 December 2015, included in receipt in advance for sales R-ZFE—FaE&+—-A=+—H HEXRA
of natural gas was the amount received from customers using I/C SMTERZEAREERFERI/ICKRER
cards amounting to approximately HK$606,255,000 (2014: H) 5 I8 49 606,255,000 1 ( —F — PO 4F -
HK$534,559,000), in which the movements are as follows: 534,559,000 7t ) © TEUW K IE 2 & &0

I

2015 2014

—E-AF —T—pmE

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET T

At 1 January n—A—HB 534,559 502,198

Currency realignment BERE (41,982) -

Payments received in advance B FERIA 2,237,865 2,646,881
Redemption during the year FRFERE (2,124,187) (2,614,520)

At 31 December Wt+ZH=+—H 606,255 534,559
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e MR MR

(continued) (#&)

28 Borrowings 28 6 &
2015 2014
—E—fE —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Bank borrowings, unsecured RITEE —EIER 897,286 450,557
Bank borrowings, secured RITIEE —HEA = 69,751
Other borrowings, unsecured H{gE — K0 75,488 288,071
Total borrowings tEERE 972,774 808,379

The Group's borrowings are repayable within 1 year.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the EEMEEmmENLTY +E » WA T3
following currencies and carried at the following interest rates: 2= 51|BE -
2015 2014
—E-AfF —TmE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Renminbi ARE 747,449 498,891
uss$ e - 69,751
CAD 7T 225,325 239,737
972,774 808,379
At fixed rates EhalEs 704,258 498,893
At floating rates RIS 268,516 309,486
972,774 808,379
Weighted average effective interest MEFHERFFIE
rates (per annum):
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 6.0% 4.4%
— Other borrowings —HifgE 2.8% 2.2%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Borrowings (Continued)

Details of the Group’s banking facilities are set out in Note 34.
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, certain facilities are secured by

financial assets through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial
assets held by the Group.

Senior notes

e IR R M

(continued) (#)

28 58 (&)

SEZRITREFBEANMEE34S -

RNR_E—RAFR T —NEFF+_A=+—
H BETREREEFEZRAFELIE
AR BEERATELENBEEE
B o

BEARE

2015 2014

—2-FH% —z

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

US$ denominated senior notes AETHEZ BREE 4,992,169 4,978,675

On 25 April 2013, the Company issued senior notes, with an aggregate
nominal value of US$350,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,713,000,000)
at par value (the “Senior Notes A"”), which bear interest at 5.25%
per annum and the interest is payable semi-annually in arrears. The
net proceeds after deducting the direct issuance costs, amounted to
approximately US$344,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,666,000,000). The
Senior Notes A will mature on 25 April 2018 and are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

On 11 November 2014, the Company issued another senior notes,
with an aggregate nominal value of US$300,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,325,000,000) at par value (the “Senior Notes B"”), which bear
interest at 5.00% per annum and the interest is payable semiannually
in arrears. The net proceeds after deducting the direct issuance
costs, amounted to approximately US$296,900,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,300,975,000). The Senior Notes B will mature on 7 May 2020
and are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of the senior notes amounted
to approximately HK$5,075,793,000 (2014: HK$4,844,867,000). The
effective interest is 5.45%. The fair value of the senior notes traded
in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the date of the
statement of financial position. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm'’s length basis. The senior notes are within level 1 of the fair
value hierarchy.

R-ZE—=FmA=-+HA " AFKEMAE
%% 17 BR ™ 42 (& /4 350,000,000 T (&
7 2,713,000,000%8 7T ) KB L EE ([ &
EEBA]) EBEEF525%EE B F B
BEEIN - HBREBERTBEBRRBZNE
X I % EE A #9344,000,0003% 5T (BB E R
2,666,000,000/87T) - BERBAKKR=Z
—N\EMNA-+HBEHERE B
£

R=ZZT—MFE+—A+—H8  QRRZEAE
317 IR E 4.8 /5 300,000,000 37T (15

7 2,325,000,0007%8 7T ) B B HNB 5k BB
([BEZEEB]) - HBF5.00%: 8 B F
EB¥EIN -HBREERTERRBZA
B FRTE R EE A4 296,900,000 % T (FHER
2,300,975,000/87T) - BAEEEBKR=Z
—EFERAAC AR RNE BB L -

R-ZE—RAF+-_A=+—"H BLEZE
Z NFE{E#H A5,075,793,0008 (==
— P4 : 4,844,867,000/8 70 ) o FEEF =
F5.45% MR EBMBEEZBLE
Bz AFEREMBRAKB 2T SHRE
8 o RIKIER IS Jh1E 0] 82 5 i & 7F HA
WRHHT - KT KA TEEE -
WMERGIRERERSHREZTMIE - M
FHRRERELBEMNZEEATMER
SZEMEZR - ZFEREZBEINAR
FEE—EX -
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e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

30 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
by the statement of financial position date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes related to the same fiscal

30

IESE 1S

B IE P15 B0 B A A B 2 SR 7%
KRk BB R EE GBI E 2 W
e -

ERAREANITEANASE BB IRE E R
ERMBRERE  METHEHRY LA
—MBEHER - AR SELERSHEER

authority. BEHEH -
2015 2014
—E-EfF —Z—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets REFTSTE E (16,735) (5,643)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFTSF A E 231,700 419,090
Deferred tax liabilities (net) BEMEHAE CFRE) 214,965 413,447

The net movements in the deferred income tax account is as follows:

BIEFSTRRS 2 S EFHMT

2015 2014

—E-AfF —T—mEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FHET

At 1 January R—A—H 413,447 23,960
Acquisitions of businesses/subsidiaries ~ UXBE %75, HIB A 7 (Hi7E 33)

(Note 33) - 411,700
Currency realignment B (54,533) (34,839)
Effect of change in tax rate (Note 13)  FRZREH) 2 22 (Hiz£13) 30,129 =
(Credited)/charged to consolidated REREBzEA (GEA), kR

profit or loss (Note 13) (M5E13) (174,078) 12,626
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H1H 214,965 413,447
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e IR R M

(continued) (4)

30 Deferred income tax (Continued) 30 ELEMEH (&)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to FRIELEMESHREENRBE (ERE—F % a)
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the TERER 2 HEEAESHAT) 2 EEm T

year are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets BEFRBHEE
Asset retirement obligation Tax losses Total
EEHBRE HEkE &it
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

“E-1FfF -ET-pmF ZE-1f -T-NmE ZB-EfF -T-QF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR THL FAR T TR TEr

At 1 January n—A—H (20,294) = (41,989) = (62,283) =
Acquisition of subsidiary Wk BAR - (17,442) - (90) - (17,532)
Effect of change in tax rate TREE e (1,482) - (1,751) - (3,233) -
(Credited)/charged to consolidated GIA) /e ARE

profit or loss (8,888) (4,442) 2419 (42,700) (6,469) (47,142)
Currency alignment BB 4,114 1,590 1,902 801 6,016 2,391
At 31 December Wt=A=1-H (26,550) (20,294) (39,419) (41,989) (65,969) (62,283)
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFTEHAR

Accelerated tax depreciation

and depletion Others Total
MBI E RIEH Aty At
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

—%-Ef C—T-QBF -%-1f CT-PF -F-BF C-TQF
HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000
TEL AL TERL AL TEL TATL

At 1 January Sz 392,508 4,628 83,222 19,332 475,730 23,960
Acquisition of subsidiary WEEHB AR - 405,196 - 24,036 - 429,232
Effect of change in tax rate hxggz2 28,987 - 4375 = 33,362 =
(Credited)/charged to consolidated GTA)/kEraBs

profit or loss (115,723) 16,292 (51,886) 43476 (167,609) 59,768
Currency alignment EHRE (55,916) (33,608) (4,633) (3,622) (60,549) (37,230)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—A 249,856 392,508 31,078 83,222 280,934 475,730
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30 Deferred income tax (Continued)

During 2014, deferred income tax liabilities to the extent of
approximately HK$12,209,000 have not been recognised for the
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries because the Board considers
that the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Unremitted earnings totaled
approximately HK$1,399,947,000 (2014: HK$1,693,006,000) as at 31
December 2015 and HK$7,396,000 has been recognised as deferred
tax liability for the withholding tax.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2015, the Group
had unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$69,094,000 (2014:
HK$56,643,000) to carry forward against future taxable income. All the
tax losses will be expired within the next 5 years.
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(continued) (4&)

ESEFTS L (&)
RoT-—mF BEAEHAMED

1zzo9oooﬁ.§7n1ﬁ&ﬁ§- RIEME R
HBE  AREARINELERE R

AIZARELRBT: BAEERRARE
TREBEKABASEEES B ERES
BTl R ARRED - R
—hAF+-A=+—H " RELRF&E&HK
49 41,399,947,0008 (=& — I F :
1,693,006,0008 7T ) & 7,396,000 7T 2 5t
B ERBEERIBAE -

EIEFTIS R E E AR B B0 B 75 7l 25 15 1R
ARRRERRAFNEHRALR AR
BKEBEEMER R —HF+ =
A=+—H SEZAHERBEEBELY
69,094,000/ 70 ( — = —VPH4F : 56,643,000
PETT) DAAE S B R SR FE R LR AETSE - FT
REBEER TTERFERER
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tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

31 Other non-current liabilities 31 HbERBERE
2015 2014
—E-RE —E—UFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Asset retirement obligation B E TR AR 98,326 81,166
Accrued employee benefits FEETE B 18 F) - 40,137
98,326 121,303
The movements in assets retirement obligation are as below: BEREEAE EEHNOT :
2015 2014
—E-RE —E—UFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At 1 January m—A—H 81,166 -
Currency realignment B RE (17,592) (6,359)
Acquisitions of businesses/subsidiaries U3 275, B A 7
(Note 33) (F#5E33) 8,924 69,779
Accretion AN 2,044 994
Provision for the year FNEE 23,784 16,752
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 98,326 81,166
In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in Canada, BIENEAEBEHRAEEE  EEESE
the Group is obliged to accrue the cost for land reclamation and site REBRABERAAREE (BERA+LE
closures for the Group’s ownership interest in oil and natural gas RES ) T FR L ARG S M o
assets including well sites and gathering systems. The provision for BEREEREBEAENBECHESZURS
asset retirement obligation has been determined by the directors SEME AEBBEABRALERETE -
based on their best estimates in accordance with the relevant rules and
regulations.
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e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

32 Share capital and share option/award schemes 32 BAKRERE RESHE
(a) Share capital (a) B
Number of
shares Amount
igng 2 ¢=| K]
‘000 HK$'000
TR FET
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at (\\: —mE—H—H -
1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 —EMNF+ZA=+—HEK
and 31 December 2015 —E—RFtZRA=1— EI
BREE.01 Bz Eid 125,000,000 1,250,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITREE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZZ—mFE—H—H
At 1 January 2014 SREE0.01 Bz Eimik 5,000,716 50,007
Issue of shares upon exercise BB AR e A T {50 1 B A T AR AR
of share options (Note (ai)) (FI7E (ai)) 48,860 489
Issue of shares under share BERIREE T S BTG
warrant scheme (Note (ai)) (P (ai)) 250,000 2,500
At 31 December 2014 RZE—OFE+=—A=+—H 5,299,576 52,996
Bonus issue of shares (Note 14) ALRR 31T (Mt 14) 529,608 5,296
Repurchase of shares (Note (aii)) B A (MI3E (aii)) (3,500) (35)
At 31 December 2015 WZE—AF+-HA=+—H 5,825,684 58,257
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32 Share capital and share option/award schemes
(Continued)

(@) Share capital (Continued)

Note:

(ai)  During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company allotted
and issued 48,860,000 shares and 250,000,000 of HK$0.01 each
for cash at the exercise price of HK$0.43 and HK$0.01 per share
as a result of the exercise of share options and shares under share
warrant scheme, respectively.

(aii) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
repurchased a total of 3,500,000 of its own shares on the Stock
Exchange at a price ranging from HK$1.01 to HK$1.02 per share.

e M RAR MR

(continued) (4)

32 RAKRBIRE RETE ()

(a) M7 (4&)

B3

(ai)

(aii)

RY

HE-_Z—NF+=-A=+— E|¢
FE - AEABEREETERR

%E’é%%ﬂlﬁ?H%ﬁffﬁ’ﬁ%ﬂ&ﬁﬁfﬁ
f%0.437 7T }.0.01 7 T BL 38 & #1717
48,860,000 % & 250,000,000 % &A%
E1E0.01 BITHRG « UIBEBERS ©

HE— £¢+ A= + H
JLEF DN AR AT E A &
3,500,000H&ﬁ@ FRM - BIEER
NRE&1.01BTTF1.02738 T 2 °

Number of Aggregate

ordinary shares consideration

Month of repurchase of HK$0.10 each Highest Lowest paid
B A5 FREE10BTHERREA &= ®E ENRERE
HK$ HK$ HK$

AT BT BT

January 2015 3,500,000 1.02 1.01 3,538,200

—T—H%—H

FHRREBER AR 2015FF3f
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32 Share capital and share option/award schemes
(Continued)

(b) Share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has no
allotment and issuance of share options.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed by the
shareholders on 31 January 2002.

Under the Old Share Option Scheme, the Board may at its
discretion offer options to any eligible participant who is an
employee, executive or officer of the Company or its subsidiaries
(including executive and non-executive directors of the Company
or its subsidiaries) and any suppliers, consultants or advisers who
will provide or have provided services to the Company or its
subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Old Share Option Scheme, subject to further
refreshment of the limit on the grant of options by shareholders,
is 10% of the issued shares as at 31 January 2002, being the
date of shareholders’ approval of the Old Share Option Scheme.
On 14 August 2002, 9 June 2004 and 22 September 2006, the
shareholders of the Company passed an ordinary resolution
respectively approving the refreshment of the 10% limit on the
grant of options under the Old Share Option Scheme.

The maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in any 12
month-period shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in
issue on the date of offer of an option.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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32 RARBRE REEE(

(b) EBARAEGTE

Fﬁi_7 AFE+-A=+—A1Lt

ﬁEE
m=

FE - RAAEAE N EITREEE -

BRERERR-_ZE-_F—-A=+—H
) BR A B B R T

BBZRER A
(TRB R El]) »

REREBEENE  EZRANG
REBRETEMNSERZ2EE -
ﬁ%/mﬁﬁ AIREMBARZE

ITBRABSERBE (BREARH
ﬁWE@iZ%ﬁ&#ﬁﬁ%%)wx
BB DEHEMER
EE N L

RAEMK &S
AR AR TS 2 (e
A ©

IR R BB O AT 81 AT 4% H 2 B Bt
s Rzt # B R (BRERA]
FHBERERE) AR _FFT_F—
H=+—H8 (BRIt E R B B AR
FEIER) ZEEBTRMZ210% ° &

ARRE_ZZE_FNAATEA -

Timiﬂﬂﬂaﬁ—7vﬂiﬂﬂ
i3
FHRERA BT SR LB AR

T HARRBERIRE

2 10%[R%E o

REFR+ZEARE SLaERKR2

5

HEZERBE LRI SBBBRERE

ZBHEBETHROBEZ 1% °
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tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

32 Share capital and share option/award schemes 32 RAKRIBRE REGTE (&)

(Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (Continued) (b) HBERREESTEI(EF)

The offer of a grant of options may be accepted within 28 days
after the date of the offer, with a consideration of HK$1 for the
grant thereof. Exercise period in respect of the options granted
shall be determined by the Board and in any event such period
of time shall not exceed a period of 10 years commencing on
the date upon which such option is deemed to be granted and
accepted.

The exercise price in relation to each option offered to an
eligible participant under the Old Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the official closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of offer of an option; (b) the average
of the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of an option; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

In order to motivate and reward the Company’s staff, on 30 July
2009, the Company had granted to certain eligible participants
of the Company share options to subscribe for an aggregate of
100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in share capital
of the Company, under the Old Share Option Scheme (the 10%
general limit under the Old Share Option Scheme has been
refreshed pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 22 September 2006), subject to acceptance by the grantees.

The Old Share Option Scheme was valid for 10 years from
31 January 2002 and terminated on 23 November 2011.
Nevertheless, the share options granted under the Old Share
Option Scheme prior to the termination continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the rules of the Old Share Option
Scheme.

EEBEREZATAIRBRERS
BT 28 BB 1 /BT 2 RERE
MERERT ZBRE - BIRBARE
ZIATEHBEAREERATE - MEER
BEAT  EEHMRASEREBER
RS AR R ERAZ B4 -

ExR2RMBRIREREBRES
ERETRERZEE 2 BNHBRE
EETEE  HEERABRITZER
THRERATZH&RE : (a) BIRER
2E BRO R RS HRES I
ZIERWTE  (b)EZRZIREBARE
EHAAEEEARMRERAER
REPAIZEXNKRTEFHE : K
(okfmrmEE -

AHBREBARET  RAIN_E
TNFEA=ZTHREREERES
B (REBEREEZ10% — B ER
ER—_ETRNFAA-_T+T_RAETZ
ARAIRRBFASHAAIRRIERB
—IHRERELEFN) ARAETEE
RS2 EER B AREQARAR
FEREECO ST ERAKREERE
100,000,000 A% 2 f& B e (MEZB AR I
AN o

%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%z%ﬁ%%+i m
——F+— H_-i—:EIJJ: %Ffﬁ $E
BIREBREFERA - RERA
RIBRB BT 8K T 2 BARED
BRI ATATEE °
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e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

32 Share capital and share option/award schemes 32 BAKREERE REEHE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Share option scheme (Continued) (b) EERREESHEI ()
(i)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of the () FERRFEEE RniEFHIT{EELR
share options are as follows: T~
2015 2014
—T-HF —T-mE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price option price option
REF S B AT AR
1| #A 17128 g
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT TR BT T
Outstanding at 1 January R—A—BEARTE - - 0.43 48,860
Forfeited 28U - - 0.43 -
Exercised (Note ()) 2176 (PH7E () - - 0.43 (48,860)

Outstanding at 31 December ~ W+ A =+—HBHKIT{E - -
Exercisable at 31 December R+-ZRA=+—Ba1fE - =

Notes: Bz -
(@  The closing prices of the Company’s shares at the dates on (a)

which the share options were exercised for the year ended 31
December 2014 were HK$1.19, HK$1.32 and HK$1.35.

(b) The options outstanding at 31 December 2014 had a (b)
weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.58 years.
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BIEEE  RRRHORBRE
TEBHZETERII9E
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(continued) (4)

32 Share capital and share option/award schemes 32 RAKRERE EBETE (EF)
(Continued)
(b) Share option scheme (Continued) (b) HERREESTE(F)

(i) There is no existing share option for the year ended 31 (i) Hz2-_E—HRF+-_A=+—H
December 2015. The following table discloses details of the IEFE - WA IR A AR -
Company'’s share options held by a director and employees TERBEEEZREEREHE=Z
for the year ended 31 December 2014: —NE+=ZA=+—HIEFEM

SUNGIE g s
Number of option (‘000)
BREZA (T4)

Exercise Outstanding Exercised Forfeited  Outstanding

Date of price per Exercisable at 1 January during during at 31 December

grant share period 2014 the year the year 2014

H-2-mE R=%-m%

=1 -A-A tZA=1-A

RILAH T 18 HATE  EREAE ERERM HALTRE

HK$
ER

A director of the Company 30July 2009 043 31 July 2011 t0 30 July 2014 - - - -
£ “IThE ZF——EtA=1-A%
tA=1A ZE-MELA=TA

30July 2009 043 31 July 2012 to 30 July 2014 450 (450) - -
EENE . Sy
tA=1A “Z-mELA=TA

30 July 2009 043 31 July 2013 to 30 July 2014 600 (600) - -
ZETNE ZZ-=EtR=1-R%
tA=1H “Z-mELA=TH

Sub-tota Gt - U - - -

Employees 30July 2009 043 31 July 2011 t0 30 July 2014 570 (570) - -
8 s “F-—FHAZt-BE
tA=1A ZE-MELA=TA

30 July 2009 043 31 July 2012 to 30 July 2014 8,640 (8,640) - -
L P CFEAZT-RE
tA=1A “Z-mEtA=1R

30 July 2009 043 31 July 2013 to 30 July 2014 38,600 (38,600) - -
“EThE R CELA=T-HE
tA=1A “Z-mELA=TH

Sub-total It 47810 (47810) - -

Total @ 48,860 (48 860) - -
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32 Share capital and share option/award schemes
(Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (Continued)

The Company adopted another share option scheme (the
“Existing Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed
by the shareholders on 23 November 2011.

Under the Existing Share Option Scheme, the Board may at its
discretion offer options to any eligible participant who is an
employee, executive or officer of the Company or its subsidiaries
(including executive and non-executive directors of the Company
or its subsidiaries) and any suppliers, consultants or advisers who
will provide or have provided services to the Company or its
subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Existing Share Option Scheme and
the Old Share Option Scheme is 10% of the issued shares of the
Company from time to time.

The maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in any 12
month-period shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in
issue on the date of offer of an option.

The offer of a grant of options may be accepted within 21 days
after the date of the offer, with a consideration of HK$1 for the
grant thereof. Exercise period in respect of the options granted
shall be determined by the Board and in any event such period
of time shall not exceed a period of 10 years commencing on
the date upon which such option is deemed to be granted and
accepted.

The exercise price in relation to each option offered to an eligible
participant under the Existing Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the official closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of offer of an option; (b) the average
of the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of an option; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.
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RIEZBRBBLREE  EFRTH
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B o
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BAR L REE R 2 AR T4 -
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32 Share capital and share option/award schemes
(Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (Continued)

(0

The Existing Share Option Scheme was valid for 10 years from 23
November 2011.

No share options has been granted under the Existing Share
Option Scheme up to 31 December 2015.

Share award scheme

On 4 November 2011, the Board approved the adoption of a
share award scheme (the “Restricted Share Award Scheme”) with
the objective to recognise the contributions by eligible employees
within the Group and to give incentives in order to retain them
for their continuing operation and development and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the rules relating to the Restricted Share Award
Scheme (“Scheme Rules”), shares are comprised of (i) shares
subscribed for or purchased by the Company and delivered to the
Trustee appointed by the Company (Note 37(c)) subsequently; or
(ii) the Trustee out of cash arranged to be paid by the Company
out of the Company’s funds to the Trustee and be held on trust
for the relevant eligible grantees until such shares are vested with
the relevant eligible grantees in accordance with the Scheme
Rules (“Restricted Shares”). The Board of Directors implements
the Restricted Share Award Scheme in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme Rules including providing necessary funds to the
Trustee to purchase or subscribe for shares up to 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

Under the Restricted Share Award Scheme, the Restricted Shares
are granted to eligible employees of the Company or any one
of its subsidiaries for no consideration but subject to certain
conditions (including but not limited to, lock-up period) to be
decided by the Board at the time of grant of the Restricted Shares
under the Restricted Share Award Scheme. The Restricted Share
Award Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from the date of
adoption.

(b)

(c)

e MR HRAR MR

(continued) (#)

32 RARBRE RE:E (E)

BRESHE (E)

SR B = F ——F + —
A=+=BRAHBAEHEF -

BE_Z-—AFt+t-_A=+—H 'R
ZH B BT 8T I B TR
Pt

R A% 22 B =t &)

R-Z——%+—A@A BFR/E
H/E SR — TR AR A B ([ R 1 A
D RE 8 ) FRERAEFEES
EREBZER  REEBBELER
ERAMBARERE  AEEE—
FERBPHRSBAL

B AR R 5 1 A% 15 52 B 5T 21 A B8 AR Al
(TET2IRAD) - BRDRE () A7 RE
HBEWEEREARTFARZIENZIT
AFIEE37(0) 2 B&tn 5 sk (i) BZFEA
NARIERARIESLTHINFZTEA
ZHRERBRBEEV ABHRKLEER
EEAAETEARFE 2R H (TR
MDD  EEZEROBIETEIR
AISEBEREEAEREARAAL - &
EREREFTER A E R G R G
BETE  BEASEAREMES
& UBEARRBERZHARTEZ
BEITRRAN 10% ZR& 1D ©

R IR PR B 1 A £ B2 B AT &) - BRIl M A
MANERERTRAEGERARA
KRB EA—KMBERA - EXER
EERRIER IR 2R E 8K K
BRI 1 A 1 B R TE RO B T 16k (B 1R (E
TR - BEH) o REIMERD ZRhET
BIRSIEIR M B R  RETF -
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(continued) (4&)

32 Share capital and share option/award schemes
(Continued)

(9]

Share award scheme (Continued)

The Restricted Share Award Scheme operates in parallel with
the Old Share Option Scheme and the Existing Share Option
Scheme. All options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme
and the Existing Share Option Scheme continue to be valid and
exercisable subject to and in accordance with the terms of the
Old Share Option Scheme and the Existing Share Option Scheme,
respectively.

Pursuant to the Scheme Rules, the Board may, from time to
time, at their absolute discretion select the eligible grantees after
taking into account various factors as they deem appropriate for
participation in the Restricted Share Award Scheme as a grantee
and determines the number of Restricted Shares to be awarded.
The Board shall cause to pay the Trustee the purchase price and
the related expenses from the Company’s resources for the shares
to be purchased by the Trustee.

The Trustee shall hold such Restricted Shares on trust for the
eligible grantees until they are vested. When the relevant eligible
grantee has satisfied all vesting conditions specified by the Board
at the time of making the award and become entitled to the
Restricted Shares, the Trustee shall transfer the relevant Restricted
Shares to that grantee.

For awardees who cease employment with the Group before
vesting, the unvested shares are forfeited. The forfeited shares
are held by the trustee of the Restricted Share Award Scheme
who may award such shares to the awardees as instructed by the
Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, 15,700,000 restricted
shares have been awarded to the directors and employees for
their services rendered to the Group, and of which 11,670,000
restricted shares granted to certain directors and employees are
immediately vested.
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32 Share capital and share option/award schemes
(Continued)

(0

Share award scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 23,000,000 restricted
shares have been awarded to the directors and employees
for their services rendered to the Group, and all of them are
immediately vested.

Details of the Awarded Shares awarded during the year

For the year ended 31 December 2015:

Number of Fair value per

e M RAR MR

(continued) (4)

32 RARBRE REEE (E)

()

IR 43 22 Byt & (A7)

REBEE=—T—RF+=-_A=+—H1
FE ERESIRESEREBEREEN
PR 7% 5287 23,000,000 AXBR &I M A% 15 T
%< - B2 EBPR 6D BN RS ER & -

FRRERBRD 2FH1E
BHE_Z-—AF+_HA=+—HItHF
E :

Vesting period
SR

Date of award shares awarded share

R A RERGHE BRAYE
HKS$
AT

Directors of the Company

NEES

28 July 2015 20,000,000 0.66

—E-RFtA=+N\H

Employees

EE

28 July 2015 3,000,000 0.66

~E2-RFLA-t/A

vested immediately on 28 July 2015
RZE—RFt A=+ \BEEERE

vested immediately on 28 July 2015
R=Z—AF+tA=1/\BEREE
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e MR MR

(continued) (#&)

32 Share capital and share option/award schemes

(Continued)

(c) Share award scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014:

Number of Fair value per

32 RARBRE REE (F)

() BHEBE (A)

HEZZT-—MOMF+-_A=1+—HLF
E:

Date of award shares awarded share Vesting period
A RERDEE BRAFYE BB
HK$
B
Directors of the Company
RNAER
5 May 2014 10,000,000 1.28 vested immediately on 5 May 2015
—Z—FAAMNA RE=Z—AFAARBRREES
15 July 2014 1,380,000 1.37 vested immediately on 15 July 2015
—E—MNELA+HHE RZZE—RAFtATHANKSGES
Employees
(=]
16 April 2014 400,000 1.32 16 April 2015 to 16 April 2016
—ZE—OFMA+5H —E—RFNA+AHE-_Z—R"FNA+/H
5 May 2014 1,720,000 1.28 5 May 2015 to 5 May 2017
—ET-NFRAAA —E-hAFRAARRAE"ZT—+FAARH
30 May 2014 200,000 1.30 30 May 2015 to 30 May 2016
—E—NFRA=+H —E-RFREA=+THE-Z—"FRA=1H
15 August 2014 1,000,000 1.46 15 August 2015 to 15 August 2017
—E—mFENA+HH —E—RFN\AT+RHE-_Z—tFN\A+HH
14 October 2014 1,000,000 1.28 14 October 2015 to 14 October 2017
—E—NE+A+HHE —E-AFt+AtNEE_ZT—+F+A+WA
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32 Share capital and share option/award schemes
(Continued)

(0

Share award scheme (Continued)

Movement in the number of shares awarded for the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

e M RAR MR

(continued) (#)

32 RARBRE REEE (E)

(c)

B2 e Bt 8l ()
BE_Z—RAFER-_Z—NF+_-A

ST—RILFE  ERRHBA S
o

Number of Awarded Shares

RERMDEE

2015 2014

—ET-EF —ZT—OF

Outstanding at 1 January R—RA—H#ERITE 5,030,000 1,750,000
Awarded B 23,000,000 15,700,000
Forfeited Bk (1,000,000) =
Vested BEEB (24,980,000) (12,420,000)
Outstanding at 31 December R+Z=A=+—BREAKRTE 2,050,000 5,030,000

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Trustee acquired
under the Award Scheme 178,580,000 (2014: 78,440,000)
ordinary shares of the Company through purchases on the
open market with a price range of HK$0.53 to HK$1.02 per
share at a total cost (including related transaction costs) of
HK$143,163,000 (2014:HK$85,897,000) which was credited to
shares held for share award scheme account of the Company as
an equity component of the Company. As at 31 December 2015,
the total number of shares in reserve was 582,799,000 (2014:
383,070,000).

REz=-Z—FF+=-_A=1+—8H
IFFE  SRARBEBEZEN
FEROOS3IBILEN.2ETTHE K
EART™SE A QR 178,580,000
(= & — g F : 78,440,000 % )
TER BRA(BEBEBERS K
7N ) /143,163,000 ;T ( = & — Y
£ : 85,897,000/ L) ' Est ARQA]
RO REEFENRGES
ERBARNKRATES RZFT—H
F+-_A=+—H HEROEHR
/#582,799,000%( =— & — [ 4 :
383,070,000 f%) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS RAR MR

(continued) (4&)

33 Business combinations

(a)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Effective from 20 June 2014, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in Baccalieu Energy Inc. (“Baccalieu”) from independent
third parties at a consideration of CAD235,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,708,600,000). During the year ended 31
December 2014, the above acquisition was completed and the
Group commenced to account for the business combination from
the effective date when the Group gained control over Baccalieu.
Details of net assets acquired and gain on bargain purchase are as
follows:

33. £S5
(a) WEKHELQF

BE-Z-—NEA-+HE £EH
BN EB /S = U EEBaccalieu
Energy Inc.([Baccalieul) K92 &F %
# - {8 5235,500,000 0 7T (49 &
71,708,600,00087T) - REBIE=Z
—MFE+—_A=1+—HIFE ki
WEEEBC SR AEEA AR BH (A
&£ EES Y Baccalieu A HI RS ) 5
WEEBEGHAR EWBEEFE
MEEREkSFEFOT

HK$’000
FHET
Total cash consideration BIRERME 1,708,600
Recognised amounts of FrU B Rl B B E R TR IE B BN E RS
identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed
Property, plant and equipment M - B kAR (FisE16)
(Note 16) 2,336,662
Exploration and evaluation R A B E (M52 17)
assets (Note 17) 238,087
Deposits, trade and other e B5 REAMEUGIE
receivables 101,805
Trade and other payables B 5 hEMERFRIA (139,119)
Short-term borrowings MHEE (199,518)
Other non-current liabilities Hi3Eme B & (157,063)
Current tax payable = HIFE (IR (23,057)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 30)  iEIEFRIB & & (MI7E£30) (411,700)
Total identifiable net assets AR BB EFE 1,746,097
Gain on bargain purchase (Note 8) = {BUkBE UL =S (FTES) (37,497)

Acquisition-related costs of HK$29,787,000 have been charged to
administrative expenses in the profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33 Business combinations (Continued)

(a)

(b)

e M HRAR MR

(continued) (#)

33. ¥ E 6 (&)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) WHBHMIE DR (4
The revenue included in the profit or loss contributed by Baccalieu BaccalieuB — T — W& XA =+
since 20 June 2014 was HK$324,659,000. Baccalieu also HRFEBANKA(EFTAER) A
contributed profit of HK$93,505,000 over the same period. 324,659,000% 7T ° Baccalieu 7 [/ Hf
JNERR R F 93,505,000 7 7T, ©
Had Baccalieu been consolidated from 1 January 2014, the fWBaccalieuBE —_Z—W4F— A —H
profit or loss of the Group would show pro-forma revenue of RE#HZS  AEEEBERBITE
HK$8,078,201,000 and profit of HK$756,980,000. % Ik A.8,078,201,0007%8 7t & & I
756,980,000 7T °
Acquisitions of businesses (b) WEEXEW
On 6 January, 20 August and 20 October 2015, the Group RZZE—RF—AA - ZE—RF
completed the acquisitions of 3 businesses consisting of oil and NBEZt+tBR=-ZZE—RFE+A=-+
gas assets in West Central Alberta. The business combinations B SETRBELANBEREE R
were accounted for using the acquisition method and accounted AER3IEER (RABRRAREE
for as follows: HRK) o FBAEHERKEBEARRA
BRA0R ¢
Canadian  ConocoPhillips
Path Natural Western Canada Total
Resources Ltd Resources Partnership @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT AT TET THET
Total cash consideration ERERE 85,687 319,018 64,855 469,560
Recognised amounts of PRI RI B E
identifiable assets acquired RATEEAEN
and liabilities assumed EHREE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BE Rk
(Note 16) GEA) 90,390 323239 24,144 437,773
Asset retirement obligation BERERE
(Note 31) (BE31) (4,703) (4,221) - (8,924)
Exploration and evaluation HRRHEERE
assets (Note 17) (P 17) - - 46,262 46,262
Total identifiable net assets ARREEERE 85,687 319,018 70,406 475,111
Gain on bargain purchase (Note 8) B () - = (5.551) (5,551)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

33 Business combinations (Continued)

(b) Acquisitions of businesses (Continued)

The respective acquisition projects’ financial performance are

listed as follows:

33. XS0 (&)

(b) WS (&)

BEWERB MM BRIRNETIOT

Canadian  ConocoPhillips

Path Natural Western Canada
Resources Ltd Resources Partnership
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Revenue contributed by acquired B 4288 B #iA SR AT IR EE
business since the date (B BRI E R
of the acquisition 25,010 13,420 183
Profit contributed by acquired U B B HA DA SR PR B
business since the date B ERRER
of the acquisition 16,470 7,320 183
Pro forma revenue if the R —ZE—hF
acquisition closed on —A—B&RD
1 January 2015 HELERE 25,010 21,960 1,220
Pro forma profit if the acquisition ZAREEBR=—Z—HF— A —H
closed on 1 January 2015 EREEZ 5 16,470 12,200 1,220

34 Banking facilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had aggregate banking facilities
of approximately HK$3,708,000,000 (2014: HK$2,906,000,000) for
bank borrowings, of which approximately HK$3,122,674,000 (2014:
HK$2,752,429,000) was unutilised. The Group's banking facilities are
secured by certain financial assets (Notes 21 and 24).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

35 Commitments

(a)

(b)

Operating leases

The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms

ranging from 1 year to 20 years.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future minimum lease

35 J&IE

(a) KEHE

SERBELEHERFHRERLT DM
DYE - HEMENHEPLERT T

FE0FZ2HEAITF -

R=ZF—hAF+=-—A=+—H &4

payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as RIRN AR 2 H & 2 B E N B R
follows: KRB E N RERERAT :
2015 2014
—E-hHF —T—pmE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Land and buildings expiring: FA 5 HABR B HRAY 1oty A=
Within one year —FR 15,293 10,881
After one year but within —FRERAFNAN
five years 29,056 13,600
After five years h & 39,951 27,940
84,300 52,421

Capital commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments outstanding

(b) BEAEE

SERPEAREK BB AT REE

not provided for at the date of statement of financial position: BIAR BT E AR
2015 2014
—E-EHF —T-mg
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Contracted but not provided for: 2 FT#1E AR BE -
Property, plant and equipment Y - WE k& 199,091 442,939
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36 Related party transactions

As at 31 December 2015, the Company was indirectly owned by Sino
Best International Group Limited (“Sino Best”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) which in turn was wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Xu Tie-liang, the Chairman and executive
director of the Company, as to approximately 22.1%. The remaining
77.9% of the Company’s shares were widely held. Mr. Xu Tie-liang and
other directors of the Company are considered to be related as they are
members of the key management personnel of the Company.

Transactions with key management personnel

The directors of the Company are considered as key management
personnel of the Group. The remuneration of the key management
personnel is determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends. Details of the
remuneration paid to them are set out in Note 12.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

36 BEALTRS

R-ZB-—AF+-_A=+—H RFHEFP
FEBREBERAR ([HRER]) (RNEE
HARES((RBEMRES ) ML
MAR BAREIFERATERFKRRSE
E2EBHERA)MEERN22.1% - AF
HER77.9% RIMIREZHE - FFHRREL
MAREMERYSAREIEEEARM
BRBRABAEANL -

HITEBEASNRS

ARAEFREREEEITEEEAR - X2
EEANBZME I HFHEESLEEE
AL ZRERTEBEREE - §T&
FEANLTZEFBEENME 12



37 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

controlled structured entities

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation and

Nominal value of
issued share capital/

e M RAR MR

(continued) (4)

37 FEMBLARAIRZEHEREE

> 31
(a) EEMBEARFBWT :

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
28T
EaiioAve: L RAEE, DEREM
&% FREERER EfEAR RERSE TEXK
Directly  Indirectly
B L3
Profaith Group Limited BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$1 100.0% - Investment holding
enterprise
REERRES 17T REER
HEBERE
All Praise Investment Limited BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$1 100.0% - Investment holding
enterprise
REERRES (E REER
S EBERE
China Oil And Gas Group ~ BVI, Wholly foreign-owned Us$1 100.0% - Investment holding
Limited enterprise
REERRES 17T REZR
SEEERE
China Oil And Gas Hong Kong, Wholly HK$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Management Limited foreign-owned
enterprise
FERRERAR AR BE  IEEERE 17T REER
Alta Financial Holdings BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$1,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Limited enterprise
EREREEERAF KBERRES 1,000%7T KA
HEBERE
Zhongda Industrial BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$10,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Group Inc enterprise
RATIEEEERAR REERRES 10,0003 7T REER
I EBERE
China Oil And Gas Group Hong Kong, Wholly HK$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
(Asia) Limited foreign-owned
enterprise
abeiyes = SENGEY BE  IEEERE 1787 REER

BRAF]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (#&)

37 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled structured entities (Continued)

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

37 FEMBLARAIRZEHERE

BB (#

(a) EEMBERRFBWE : (H&)

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation and issued share capital/ equity attributable
Name kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
21T
Eatiladvs:.L RAEE, DRIEL
Z8 FEERER SEfER REB DL TEEK
Directly  Indirectly
i k3
Hong Kong China Oil And  Hong Kong, Wholly HK$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Gas Group Limited foreign-owned
enterprise
BEPHRREE AR IBEERR 18T REZR
BIRAF
PP RREIREEE PRC, Wholly foreign-owned ~ RMB1,000,000,000 - 51.0%  Investment holding
BRAR("CCNG") enterprise and trading of
natural gas
R RMRIRE S E HE AEEERE AR REZEBREAARE
BRAR ([HaHZER]) 1,000,000,000 75 g
FERRMAREREMLAF  PRC, Limited liability RMB65,874,000 = 40.8%(i)  Trading of natural
company gas, gas pipeline
construction and
operation of
natural gas stations
hE - BREERQT AR 65,874,000 70 AAREE - AAR
BERERRAR
Pt
SERFRREELZETZ PRC, Limited liability RMB40,000,000 - 40.8%()  Gas pipeline
BREMRA company construction
hE - BREERAF AR 40,000,000 7T AAREERIE
SHEPHMBEAAFEE  PRC, Limited liability RMB20,000,000 - 40.8%(i)  Trading of natural gas
BRAT] company
HE - EREEAR AR #20,000,0007T AAREE
AERHEEERAA PRC, Limited liability RMB900,000 = 40.8%()  Trading of natural
company gas-related
equipment
HE - BREERT AR #900,0007T AARIEBREBEER
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37 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled structured entities (Continued)

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation and

Nominal value of
issued share capital/

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR MR

B2 15 ()

(continued) (4)

37 FEMBLARAIRZEHEREE

(a) EEMBEARAFIBWT : (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
[BX:¢h)
Eattiyz ik yd RAEE, NRIEML
Z8 FEERER EMER REBDL TEXH
Directly  Indirectly
HiZ L3
R aRRERET AR PRC, Limited liability RMB 100,000,000 - 30.6%()  Trading of natural gas
company and gas pipeline
construction
HE - ERAEEAR AR#100,000,0007T AAREER
AAREBEE
BN AR AEREE AR PRC, Limited liability RMB50,000,000 = 40.8%()  Trading of natural gas
company and gas pipeline
construction
HE - AREMERAR AR 50,000,000 ARREER
AAREBRE
ERPHMREAERETAT  PRC, Limited liability RMB25,000,000 = 50.5%  Trading of natural gas
company and gas pipeline
construction
FE - BREERT AR H# 25,000,000 7T AAREER
ARREBRE
HERERRAREIAR  PRC, Limited liability RMB27,000,000 - 30.6%()  Natural gas
company transmission
through pipeline
HE - AREERR AE#27,000,0007T BEBRANRHIX
SEBRHEPRMRREMFZ  PRC, Limited liability RMB 12,000,000 - 51.0%  Production and
BRAF company trading of liquefied
natural gas
HE - AREMEAR AE# 12,000,000 BRI RAREERE
=
TN A ERELAR  PRC, Limited liability RMB25,000,000 = 51.0%  Trading of natural gas

company

FE - FREFERA

AR# 25,000,000 7T

and gas pipeline

construction
AAREER

AAREBRE
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37 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled structured entities (Continued)

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

BB (#

37 FEMBLARAIRZEHERE

(a) EEMBERRFBWE : (H&)

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation and issued share capital/ equity attributable
Name kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
BT
MR BRAEE, AR EL
28 ZERERER &R REFDE TEEK
Directly  Indirectly
HiE kS
BN RARBR AT PRC, Limited liability RMB30,000,000 - 51.0%  Trading of natural gas
company and gas pipeline
construction
HE - FREEAF AR 30,000,0007C AAREER
AAREBREE
ML ZERMREAR AT PRC, Limited liability RMB12,000,000 = 40.8%(i)  Trading of natural gas
company
HE - AREFAR AR#12,000,0007T AAREE
RiaR R (B08) PRC, Limited liability RMB75,000,000 - 80.4%  Transportation
BRAR company services
HE - BREFEAR AR# 75,000,000 7T ERR
SEPHEERRARAE PRC, Limited liability RMB20,000,000 - 51.0%  Natural gas
company transmission
through pipeline
HE - BREMAR AR# 20,000,000 7T EEANRER
M REBAAR PRC, Limited liability US$10,000,000 - 45.5%()  Gas pipeline design
BRAF company and construction,
natural gas
transmission
through pipeline
HE - BREFEAR 10,000,000 27T AARE BT KR
o BEAARE
R OB B R A PR PRC, Limited liability RMB 12,000,000 - 30.6%()  Trading of natural gas

BEAT

company

FE - BREELRA

AR# 12,000,000 7T

and gas pipeline

construction
AAREER

AAREBREE
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37 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled structured entities (Continued)

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation and

Nominal value of

issued share capital/

e M RAR MR

(continued) (4)

37 FEMBLARAIRZEHEREE

B2 15 ()
(a) TEWBADHENT : (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
28T
FEaiioAvk: Ly RAEE DR
=% FEERER & RERDL TEEK
Directly  Indirectly
HE L
PBEARRRAREELT  PRC, Limited liability RMB20,000,000 = 35.7%(i)  Trading of natural gas
company and gas pipeline
construction
HE - BREERF AE# 20,000,000 ARREER
AAREBIRE
ol 2R ORI) #abIR AR PRC, Limited liability RMB71,000,000 - 51.0% Investment holding
NGl company
HE - EREEAR ARH71,000,0007C REER
Ik RATEREMLRA  PRC, Limited liability RMB15,000,000 - 35.7%(i)  Trading of natural gas
company and gas pipeline
construction
hE - BREERT AR 15,000,000 70 AAREER
AAREBREE
ILBkTZaE R AR AR 2AF  PRC, Limited liability RMB2,000,000 = 35.7%(i)  Trading of natural gas
company
hE - BREERF AR H# 2,000,000 70 ARREE
RERHFTMAAR PRC, Limited liability RMB75,000,000 - 35.7%()  Trading of natural gas
BREMEAT] company and gas pipeline
construction
hE - BREERRA AR H# 75,000,000 7T ARREER
AAREBRE
AERHPREENA PRC, Limited liability RMB50,000,000 - 408%(i)  Gas pipeline design
BRAT company and construction
HE - ERAEEAR AR #50,000,0007T ARREBRTRE
&
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e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

37 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled structured entities (Continued)

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

37 FEMBLARAIRZEHERE

BB (F

(a) EEMBERARFBWT : (H&)

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation and issued share capital/ equity attributable
Name kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
[BX:¢h)
Eatiladve: Ly BAEE, N FIFEL
Z8 FEERER SEfER RET DL TEEHK
Directly  Indirectly
i B
A R2ERRARAT PRC, Wholly foreign-owned HK$187,500,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding,
enterprise construction of
natural gas stations
and trading of
natural gas
HE - IMNEEERE 187,500,000 47T BEER - RAR
g Gl ap =1 YN PRC, Sino-foreign equity RMB 18,000,000 - 80.4%  Trading of natural gas
joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
HE - FHRERE AR 18,000,000 7T AAREER
% AAREBREE
PHRRIREEB AR AR PRC, Wholly foreign-owned US$75,000,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding
(BB RIS enterprise
(BR)BREEBRLAE)
HE - IMNEEERE 75,000,000 7T REZR
EBRERHEREAERAR PRC, Limited liability US$26,980,500 = 100.0%  Provision for finance
company
FE - AREMERR 26,980,500 57T RERE
BN mAREREEAT PRC, Sino-foreign equity RMB40,000,000 -~ 388%(i)  Trading of natural gas
joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
HE - FHRERE AR 40,000,000 7T AAREER
% AAREBRE
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37 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled structured entities (Continued)

(a)

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation and

Nominal value of
issued share capital/

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR MR

RBZF15 ()

(continued) (#&)

37 FEMBLARAIRZEHERE

(a) EEMBEARAFIBWE : (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
28T
MR BRAEE, AR EML
218 ZEERER HEfER REBDL FTEEHK
Directly  Indirectly
HE B
FEPHE N LERERMA PRC, Sino-foreign equity RMB26,000,000 = 60.4%  Trading of natural gas
BRAT] joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
HE - RINEEAEDRE AR 26,000,000 7T AAREER
AAREEREE
BT HRRARSEEAT PRC, Sino-foreign equity RMB 15,000,000 - 75.0%  Trading of natural gas
joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
HE RGBS E AR 15,000,000 7T AAREE R
% AAREBRE
SERTIRR AT PRC, Sino-foreign equity RMB284,396,200 = 51.0%  Trading of natural gas
joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
HE - FAEEEE AR#284,396,2007C ARREBER
=3 AAREBRE
Baccalieu Energy Inc. Canada CAD 141,040,000 - 100.0% Exploitation and
distribution of
crude oil and
natural gas
mnex 141,040,000 07T R K 2 $H R R &
RAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

37 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled structured entities (Continued)

(a)

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

Notes:

@

(iii)

The Group holds controlling interests in these subsidiaries through a
51.0% owned subsidiary, CCNG. Therefore the Group has control
over these entities and they are considered as subsidiaries of the
Company.

The Group holds controlling interests in this subsidiary through
CCNG and a wholly owned subsidiary, Hong Kong China Oil and
Gas Group Limited (“HKCOGG"). Therefore the Group has control
over this entity and it is considered as subsidiary of the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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BB (#

(a) EEMBERRFBWE : (H&)

Wi -

(@)

(i)

(iii)

KEEBEFESI.0NESNHBAR
B R 3R A % S B A R
@ o Bt KEEEZEERMIZ
# MEERRESARNMER
I

KEERTHPRERZEMNBARE
AR RRRERFR AR ([FETH
AR ) 5B %M B A R o
It EEEAZERENE  MZE
BER A ARIKKE AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (4)

37 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and 37 FEMBARAKRZEFERE
controlled structured entities (Continued) 25 (&)

(b) Set out below are the summarised consolidated financial (b) TREFINFHARRENBAT (EE
information of CCNG and its subsidiaries that have non- HEEBMEBEAZFZERER) RS
controlling interests that are material to the Group. The BHEERNME  THRERR A RBH
information below is the amount before inter-company SHAlZ &8

eliminations.

2015 2014

—E-HF —E—UE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Total assets HEE 9,949,640 9,253,761
Total liabilities wmafE (6,638,138) (5,817,289)
Net assets BERE 3,311,502 3,436,472
Revenue EER 6,009,394 6,098,310
Profit for the year F R A 298,146 324,309
Other comprehensive loss Hith 2 EEE (115,983) -
Total comprehensive income EHEWNELREE 182,163 324,309

Dividend paid to non-controlling A% 8 F IEE A

interests 43,205 187,180
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37 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and

controlled structured entities (Continued)

(b) Set out below are the summarised consolidated financial
information of CCNG and its subsidiaries that have non-
controlling interests that are material to the Group. The
information below is the amount before inter-company

eliminations. (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT R R M

(continued) (#&)

37 FEMBLARAIRZEHERE
BB (#

(b) TR#|EIIPMPRRENBEAR (R
HEEMSBEAZEEZRER) FSE
MBEERBE THRERBQRABY
SHAI 2 &5 - ()

CCNG CCNG
b Lk B 2R
2015 2014
—EB-HF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FBT
Net cash generated from KEEBEE RS FE
operating activities 667,951 604,515
Net cash used in investing KRB EBTA AT
activities (302,799) (579,664)
Net cash used in financing BEEBIFTA 2R eFRE
activities (80,775) (108,615)
Net increase/(decrease) in BeRELEEEEEMCRd) F58
cash and cash equivalents 284,377 (83,764)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BzBE&KReFEER
at 1 January 1,084,013 1,167,777
Effect of foreign exchange fERE e
rate changes (51,521) -
Cash and cash equivalents Rt-ZA=+—B2HRekELEEEE
at 31 December 1,316,869 1,084,013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled structured entities (Continued)

(c) Details of the controlled structured entity are as follows:

The Company controls a structured entity which operates in Hong
Kong, particulars of which are as follows:

e M RAR MR

(continued) (4)

37 TEMBARIRZEHERE
B2 15 ()

E R BRREENT :

AR TR AR
B HEENT :

Structured entities Principal activities
HEER FEXK
Best Thinker Limited (“Trustee”) Purchases, administers and holds the Company’s shares for the Restricted Share

Award Scheme for the benefit of eligible employees of the Group

Best Thinker Limited ( [XFEAL ) REESERESMERHIER D BB EIBEA - EERFARRKD

As the Trustee is set up solely for the purpose of purchasing,
administering and holding the Company’s shares for the
Restricted Share Award Scheme (Note 32(c)), the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
the Trustee and it can derive benefits from the services of the
employees who have been awarded the Restricted Shares through
their continued employment with the Group. The assets and
liabilities of the Trustee are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position from its adoption and the Company’s shares
held by the Trustee are presented as a deduction in equity as
“shares held for share award scheme”.

38 Approval of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2016.

BN ZFEATIE SR B 1A ) 228
HEI(MIE32)) BEA - EBRFAR
Rl RE - ARIEEZEHXTEA
BB R B R 0 3 AT A SR )
HEERNHEE TREXBEREERFT
RUNREESHE - XEANEE
RAEBEERERMAFESBREAER
AEEMBMART - AHZFEAR
B RRBMES—EINRIRR £
SREWR - JHEI R ZEET IR A
Betn] e
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e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

39 Statement of financial position of the Company 39 QAR K
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE—OF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BfaE FEx FHBT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Intangible assets mAE 1,702 1,702
Interests in subsidiaries R B A AR 5,745,289 5,926,515
Available-for-sale financial assets A E S EE 20,050 =
5,767,041 5,928,217
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables H At el GRIE 25,109 25,353
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREEEEE 111,583 373,801
136,692 399,154
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables H b fE(I 518 43,943 46,143
Net current assets MENEEFE 92,749 353,011
Total assets less current liabilities REERRSEE 5,859,790 6,281,228
Non-current liabilities JEREAE
Senior notes BEERE 4,992,169 4,978,675
Net assets BEFE 867,621 1,302,553
Equity T
Equity attributable to owners NEER NEGER
of the Company
Share capital &N 32 58,257 52,996
Reserves B 40 809,364 1,249,557
Total equity T ABER 867,621 1,302,553

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by
the Board of Directors on 23 March 2016 and was signed on its behalf.

Xu Tie-liang
Director

Guan Yijun
Director

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40 Reserves of the Company

e IR R M

(continued) (#)

40 N EIGEE

Shares and
warrants (Accumulated
Capital heldfor  Share-based Exchange (Note (a) losses)/
Share  redemption  shareaward compensation  fluctuation  Contributed Retained
premium reserve scheme reserve reserve surplus profits Total
Bkf
LR WA
X FERAR L3 (K@) (2HER)/
RitEE EEfE B HefE EXRBRE EINE REEA i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$ 1000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
ThL TR ThL Thn Thr TEL ThL TEL
At1 January 2014 RE-BE-A-A 1,594,280 93 47240 11,163 - 86,189 (122.126) 1,617,709
s ofshares upon evercise of REREEREREARA
share options 32,90 - - (12.438) - - - 20522
Fina didend forthe year HET-METCA=T-A
ended 31 December 2014 Lﬁr ZRHRE - - - - - (38014) - (38014)
Purchase or s of own shares for BRhERTEBEAEAAIRA
share award scheme - - (88,397) - - - - (88,397)
Fquity-etted share-based payments DESEEN R BERE i3 - - 278 1215 - - = 4057
Reduction of share premium account (Note (b))~ AliERA R ER (HEE () (1,594,280) - - - - 147,153 1 -
Eterise of warrants under share award scheme IR B2l EIRIER - - (112.500) = = = = (112,500
Loss for the year EmEE - - - - - - (153820) (153820)
At 31 December 2014 e S i 32,960 963 (150,875) - - 1,520,328 (153819) 1,209,557
Bonus ssue of shres Note 14) Bk (k1) (4878) - (418) - - - - (5296)
Equity-etted share-based payments INERESHRRBER 21T - - 18827 - - - - 18827
Bxchange cifferences on ransiating BENEHL
foreign operations EXzE - - - - (16,836) - - (16,836)
Shares purchased for share award scheme. ARREEEEER - - (143,163) - - - - (143,163)
Repurchase of shares (Note 32ai) EERA (320 ) (3.504) 3% - - - - (3) (3504)
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - - (290,221) (290,221)
At 31 December 2015 A=E-RETZA=1-H 21,578 9% (275,629) - (16,836) 1520328 (444,075) 809,364
Note: P&
(@)  The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the (@) ADRZEMABHBIEEERNR—NAN=FRAE

(b)

net assets value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group's
reorganisation in 1993 over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange thereof. Under the Companies Act of Bermuda 1981
(as amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to
the shareholders in certain circumstances which the Company is able to
satisfy.

The share premium account of the Company is distributable in the form
of fully paid bonus shares. During the year ended 31 December 2014, a
special resolution was passed in the special general meeting to approve the
cancellation of the amount of approximately HK$1,594,000,000 standing
to the credit of the share premium account of the Company towards
offsetting the accumulated losses of the Company. The reduction of share
premium complied with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

AmMEEMBRAR 2 EEFEBL QA
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Five Year Financial Summary

AFMBEE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for UTEERBEAEVBFEFEZXEREERS
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial & DA TIE 2 KERYBREFIL T AE
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. ¥iEE oM -

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=t—-HLEFE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-RF —E—mE —E—=F —E—-F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT AT FHIT FHEIT THT
Results E
Revenue <] 7,373,902 7,697,811 6,439,825 4,889,428 4,390,955
Profit before taxation BRAt AT A 50,190 854,163 1,178,540 935,786 646,139
Taxation Hi18 (20,857) (217,565) (240,945) (201,600) (145,757)
Profit for the year E A5 A 29,333 636,598 937,595 734,186 500,382
Attributable to: DA &L -
Owners of the Company NCIEZZ DN (183,831) 308,650 401,494 365,705 208,932
Non-controlling interests FEE R iR 213,164 327,948 536,101 368,481 291,450
29,333 636,598 937,595 734,186 500,382
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-EF T —2—=F - F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FEIL FAIT T FET
Assets and liabilities EEMAE
Total assets BEE 14,087,638 15,467,449 12,156,658 9,188,494 7,101,536
Total liabilities BERE (8,887,384)  (9,374,700) (6,330,511) (4,161,664) (2,903,432)
Total equity RS mE 5,200,254 6,092,749 5,826,147 5,026,830 4,198,104
Non-controlling interests IR (2,423,190) (2,491,642) (2,278,767) (1,847,039) (1,438,629)
Equity attributable to owners RAEAA
of the Company FE{GHERS 2,777,064 3,601,107 3,547,380 3,179,791 2,759,475

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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